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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”),
| am pleased to present the annual report of Jiyi Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021" or the
“Reporting Period”), together with the comparative figures for the
corresponding year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020").

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the management team continued
to put forth significant effort in fostering its existing businesses
and actively seeking for new business opportunities, recovering
and catching up with the Group’'s revenue and net profits,
which had been negatively impacted by the novel coronavirus
("COVID-19") epidemic and from the intense market competition
as a result of market recovery. The Company sought to expand
its sale and distribution of merchandise business segment by
entering the business of bulk commodity trading. As a result, the
Group's revenue had a slight increase in this year while the gross
profit decreased as a result of lower profit margin from the bulk
commodity trading business and the decrease in profit margin as
a result of intense price competition in the market. In FY2021,
the provision of interior design and building engineering services
segment accounted for 19% of the total revenue (2020: 54%),
while the sale and distribution of merchandise segment accounted
for 81% of the total revenue (2020: 46%).

Provision of interior design and building engineering
services

The business segment of the provision of interior design and
building engineering services was severely impacted by the
recession in the real estate and property development industry in
China which had delayed the progress of various interior design
and building engineering projects. This led to a decrease in revenue
in the provision of interior design and building engineering
services segment. The revenue generated from the provision of
interior design and building engineering services decreased by
approximately RMB155.4 million or approximately 64.2%, from
approximately RMB241.9 million in FY2020 to approximately
RMB86.5 million in FY2021. The Group also recorded a decrease
in gross profit of approximately RMB25.8 million or approximately
59.3%, from approximately RMB43.5 million in FY2020 to
approximately RMB17.7 million in FY2021. The gross profit margin
increased from approximately 18.0% in FY2020 to approximately
20.5% in FY2021.
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CHAIRLADY'S STATEMENT
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Sale and distribution of merchandise

The sale and distribution of merchandise remained a stable source
of revenue to the Group. In FY2021, the Group experienced
an overall increase of approximately RMB166.7 million or
approximately 81.3% in revenue from the sale and distribution
of merchandise from approximately RMB205.0 million in FY2020
to approximately RMB371.7 million in FY2021, in particular, the
revenue generated from sale of building materials had a decrease of
approximately RMB108.9 million, which was offset by the revenue
generated from the bulk commodity trading of approximately
RMB285.3 million during the Reporting Period.

Overall, the Group recorded a consolidated net profit of
approximately RMB7.9 million for FY2021, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB2.6 million or approximately 24.8% as
compared with consolidated net profit of approximately RMB10.5
million for FY2020. Such decrease was mainly resulted from the
net effect of the decrease in gross profit generated from the
business segment of the provision of interior design and building
engineering services of approximately RMB25.8 million, offset by
the decrease in administrative expenses of approximately RMB10
million as well as the decrease in finance costs of approximately
RMB8.4 million.

PROSPECTS

In 2021, with the well-coordinated and effective COVID-19
pandemic prevention and control efforts implemented by the
Chinese government, the pandemic is progressively kept under
control in the PRC and as a result, China’s economy and domestic
consumption expenditures have recovered steadily and consistently.
On the other hand, the “14th Five Year Plan”, which emphasizes
a commitment to the “dual circulation” concept for economic
development, will go a long way toward improving market supply
and demand in the domestic markets in China as well as the
business environment. The Group believes that the aforementioned
economic recovery and improving market conditions will provide
positive driving force for the Group’s strategic expansion and
business development in 2022, which helps to enhance the
business performance of the Group's business segment of sale
and distribution of merchandise and the business segment of the
provision of interior design and building engineering services.
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In 2021, the Group completed the relocation of its PRC
headquarters from Meizhou to Shenzhen and had great success
expanding and developing its retail and domestic interior design
and home decoration markets in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area. In FY2022, the Group will continue
to pursue its market expansion strategy in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area by proactively seek for new
project tenders and business opportunities with our corporate and
governmental clients.

Among the new business opportunities the Group identified,
the Company is particularly confident about the business and
market development of new energy supply chain industry and the
international bulk commodity trading industry and the Company
will devote more resources to expanding its operations in these
areas in the coming years.

The Group strives to invest in building online distribution and
e-marketing channels, on top of the traditional retail and wholesale
distribution channels, to sell and distribute its building materials,
home improvement materials and furnishing products. The Group
is looking for investment opportunities to improve the Group’s
service capabilities and capacity of the business segment of sale
and distribution of merchandise through enhancing the Group's
digital transformation on its traditional distribution channels, and to
enlarge the market share and scale of sales of the Group, which is
beneficial to the Group and the shareholders as a whole in the long
run.

In view of the Group’s capital market strategy, in the first quarter of
2022, the Group completed two placements of new shares under
general mandate, raising about HK$75.7 million to strengthen the
Group's financial position and foundation, as well as pave the way
for future business expansion and development. The Company
will continue to focus on capital raising and continue to seek out
strategic relationships with external investors for new and existing
business development and expansion.
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CHAIRLADY'S STATEMENT
EFEHSSE

However, with the uncertainties brought by the prolonged global
COVID-19 pandemic situation and the recent tensions and
turbulences on the global economies, it is foreseen that the year
of 2022 will remain a challenging year for businesses. The Group
will continue to adopt a pragmatic and enterprising approach in
our business strategies by building on from the existing businesses
and at the same time, by actively looking for new investment
opportunities to enhance the Group'’s profitability and maximize the
returns and benefits for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our management and all committed staff members for their
contributions to the Group and the shareholders, valued customers,
suppliers, and other business partners for their continuous support.
Our success would not have been possible without their dedication,
contributions, efforts, time and confidence.

Yours sincerely,

Hou Wei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue by business operations

The Group is a well-established integrated building and home
improvement materials and furnishings supplier and interior design
and building engineering services provider in the PRC. The Group is
mainly engaged in the sale and distribution of merchandise and the
provision of interior design and building engineering services.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue by the
Group's business segments for the Reporting Period with the
comparative figures of FY2020:

EEEs &S

A %5 o] g8
BREBEEIDIHEA

AEERTEARBRNGGERERREEE
MEURKEHEIREARS RERETR
REBHER FERTENFHERDFEH M
RRHERR R TRERT

RSB A EBEF D IE D
U AR BRI S S REEZ LERH

=a .

¥

For the year ended
31 December

#E+_BA=+—HIEE

Sale and distribution of merchandise 4% K243 £ /& &

— Building materials — &M

— Home improvement materials —REBEEME

— Furnishings —fR1A

— Bulk commodity trading* —RrREmEB52*

— Online distribution and electronic — R E DR AL E
marketing

Provision of services IREARTS

— Interior design services —EANRETARTS

— Building engineering services —RET IR

Total “a5t

2021 2020 Changes
—E-—fF TECTE L)
RMB’000 RMB'000 %
ARETFT ANEEFT

69,786 178,719 (61.0)
10,653 9,040 17.8
5,995 8,639 (30.6)
285,314 - N/AT B

- 8,610 N/AT 73 FB

371,748 205,008 81.3
21,322 3,748 468.9
65,226 238,159 (72.6)
86,548 241,907 (64.2)
458,296 446,915 2.5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

* During the year ended 31 December 2021, included in the balance of
approximately RMB33,342,000 of the bulk Commodity trade was sold
to the entities who were related parties of the Group's Suppliers of bulk

commodity trading.

Total revenue of the Group increased by approximately RMB11.4
million or approximately 2.5% from approximately RMB446.9
million for FY2020 to approximately RMB458.3 million for FY2021.
Such increase was mainly attributed to the increase in revenue from
the provision of sale and distribution of building materials and was
partially offset by the decrease in revenue from building engineering
services during the Reporting Period.

Revenue from sale of and distribution of merchandise

Revenue of the Group from sale and distribution of merchandise,
comprising (i) sale of building materials; (ii) sale of home
improvement materials; (iii) sale of furnishings; (iv) bulk commodity
trading; and (v) online distribution and electronic marketing,
recorded an overall increase by approximately RMB166.7 million
or approximately 81.3% from approximately RMB205.0 million for
FY2020 to approximately RMB371.7 million for FY2021. The overall
increase was a combined result of the followings:

Sale of building materials

Revenue generated from the sale of building materials decreased
by approximately RMB108.9 million or approximately 61% from
approximately RMB178.7 million for FY2020 to approximately
RMB69.8 million for FY2021. Such decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in sales of metallic material, offset by the increase in sales
of steel during the Reporting Period.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Sale of home improvement materials

Revenue generated from the sale of home improvement materials
increased by approximately RMB1.6 million or approximately
17.8% from approximately RMB9.0 million for FY2020 to
approximately RMB10.6 million for FY2021. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in sales of ceramic and other home
improvement products during the Reporting Period.

Sale of furnishings

Revenue generated from the sale of furnishings decreased by
approximately RMB2.6 million or approximately 30.6% from
approximately RMB8.6 million for FY2020 to approximately
RMB6.0 million for FY2021. Such decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in sales of electronic products and home decoration
products during the Reporting Period.

Bulk commodity trading

To further expand and diversify the Group’s business segment
of sale and distribution of merchandise, the Group entered the
business of bulk commodity trading and the revenue generated
from the business of bulk commodity trading was approximately
RMB285.3 million for FY2021.

Online distribution and electronic marketing

During the Reporting Period, the Group decided to temporarily
suspend the business of online distribution and electronic
marketing after thorough consideration of the potential profitability
of the business, the cost of maintaining the online distribution
platform, and the changes in the e-commerce licensing policies in
the PRC. As a result, there had been no revenue generated from
the online distribution and electronic marketing business in FY2021
(FY2020: RMB8.6 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

Revenue from provision of services

Revenue from provision of interior design and building engineering
services decreased by approximately RMB155.4 million or
approximately 64.2% from approximately RMB241.9 million for
FY2020 to approximately RMB86.5 million for FY2021. Such
decrease was due to a decline in the scale of corporate projects,
as well as a delay in the stage of completion of some construction
engineering projects as a result of COVID-19 during the Reporting
Period. However, the Board is optimistic in continuing to expand
this business segment in the coming years, given the number and
scale of future projects that are currently under negotiation.

Gross profit and gross profit margin
The following table sets forth the breakdown of gross profit and

gross profit margin by the Group’s business segments for the
Reporting Period with the comparative figures of FY2020:

RERFBEZ KA

REEARAKRBEIERGZBWABR-E
“ERHEFEENNARE241. 98B TR K
ARME155. 488464 2% E " " —§f
HEENYARB86.58E T - BRI THH
PR S HAR b X TH B RER D > LIKRCOVID-19
BRETREIRBER T IREEREEMH A
> &5 B A IE BR IS 3¢ PR ER A R 2R T8 B BV 8L
BRRE EEEHNRREFEEBAZE

B R RBRRRE -

EFMREFE

TREII RS RAEBEFDEE D
WEMREFXBM BR_S_ZHHFE
ZHEB#EF

For the year ended 31 December

#E+_A=+—-HLEE

2021 2020
Z%2-F “R2F
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin Gross profit margin
R ERE el EFES
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARBFT NEBF
Sale and distribution of merchandise HERDHE M 9,880 2.7 12,617 6.1
Provision of interior design and RIEERZ K
building engineering services BETERS 17,700 20.5 43,454 18.0
Total At 27,580 6.0 56,071 12.5
012 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately RMB11.4
million or approximately 2.5% from approximately RMB446.9
million for FY2020 to approximately RMB458.3 million for FY2021,
the Group’s overall gross profit decreased by approximately
RMB28.5 million or approximately 50.8% from approximately
RMB56.1 million for FY2020 to approximately RMB27.6 million for
FY2021. The decrease in the Group’s overall gross profit was mainly
due to the increase in the proportion of revenue generated from
sale and distribution of merchandise with a comparatively lower
gross profit margin during the Reporting Period.

The gross profit margin of provision of interior design and building
engineering services increased from 18.0% for FY2020 to 20.5%
for the Reporting Period, owing to better management and
monitoring of construction progress which reduced construction
costs. With the increasing volume of corporate projects and the
expansion of market share, the Group believed that the gross profit
margin of this business will gradually rise and become more stable.

The gross profit margin of the business of sale and distribution
of merchandise decreased from 6.1% for FY2020 to 2.7% for
FY2021, owing primarily to the new business of bulk commodity
trading with lower profit margin and lower merchandise prices
to retain old customers and attract new customers during the
Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

Distribution and selling expenses

The Group's selling expenses decreased by approximately RMB5.8
million or approximately 51.3% from approximately RMB11.2
million for FY2020 to approximately RMB5.4 million for the
Reporting Period. Such decrease was due to the write-off of
leasehold improvements as well as a decrease in depreciation
expenses as a result of certain retail store closures during the
Reporting Period.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by approximately
RMB10 million or approximately 40.4% from approximately
RMB24.7 million for FY2020 to approximately RMB14.7 million for
the Reporting Period. The decrease was mainly due to a decrease
in equity-settled share-based payment expenses for customers and
consultants, depreciation, legal and professional fee and decrease
in general administrative costs.

Finance costs — net

The Group's net finance costs decreased by approximately RMB8.4
million or approximately 31.9% from approximately RMB26.2
million for FY2020 to approximately RMB17.8 million for the
Reporting Period. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
the finance costs arising from the convertible loan notes during the
Reporting Period.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit for the year
decreased by approximately RMB2.6 million or approximately
24.8% from approximately RMB10.5 million for FY2020 to
approximately RMB7.9 million for the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB32.0 million (2020: RMB4.7 million)
mainly denominated in RMB and HK$. The Group also had a total
restricted cash balances of approximately RMB2.2 million (2020:
Nil) which was mainly related to security deposits provided to
secure certain bank borrowings. The increase in total cash and bank
balances was mainly due to increase in cash inflows from collection
of trade receivables during the Reporting Period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB490.6 million, as compared to approximately
RMB617.0 million as at 31 December 2020.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no unutilised banking
facilities for short term financing (2020: RMB2.6 million) and
total bank borrowings of approximately RMB272.1 million
(2020: RMB169.2 million). The total bank borrowings comprised
approximately RMB116.3 million (2020: Nil) in bank borrowings
arising from discounted commercial bills and discounted letters of
credit that were not yet due.

Other than the bank borrowings arising from discounted
commercial bills and discounted letters of credit that were not yet
due, the bank borrowings of the Group were secured by property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and right-of-use assets
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The bank borrowings were also
jointly guaranteed by Ms. Hou Wei and Mr. Deng Jianshen, husband
of Ms. Hou Wei.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

Details of the Group’s capital structure, in terms of among other
things, the maturity profile of debt and obligation and types of
capital instruments used as at 31 December 2021, are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group has no material capital expenditure during the Reporting
Period.

FINANCIAL RATIO

Current ratio™ FREN LR

Quick ratio? RE X

Gearing ratio (%) BEARBELLE%)?
Net debt to equity ratio (%)“ SEEFE RS LE (%)

(1)  Current ratio is calculated as total current assets divided by total current

liabilities.

(2)  Quick ratio is calculated as total current assets less inventories and divided
by total current liabilities.

(3) Gearing ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total equity and
multiplied by 100%.

(4)  Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as total borrowings net of cash and
cash equivalents and restricted cash, and divided by total equity and
multiplied by 100%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

The Group had no material investment, acquisition and disposal
transactions during the Reporting Period.

UPDATES ON THE ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND
THE USE OF PROCEEDS

On 22 April 2019, the Company entered into eight (8) subscription
agreements with the subscribers (the “Subscribers”) respectively,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue
and the Subscribers has respectively and conditionally agreed to
subscribe for the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$102,100,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). The issue
of the Convertible Bonds was completed on 25 June 2019. The
net proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Bonds, which
amounted to approximately HK$101.6 million after deducting the
related professional forms and an related expenses, have already
been fully utilised during FY2019.

On 24 June 2021, the Company and the bondholders agreed to
extend the maturity date of the outstanding Convertible Bonds with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$64,670,833 from 24 June
2021 to 24 December 2021 (the “Maturity Date”). Save for the
extension of the maturity date, all the terms and conditions of the
Convertible Bonds remain unchanged.

As of 31 December 2021, Convertible Bonds in the amount of
HK$60,544,445 have been converted into 60,544,445 conversion
shares by the bondholders, and the remaining Convertible Bonds
in the amount of HK$41,555,555 were outstanding (“Outstanding
Convertible Bonds”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

After arm’s length negotiations, the Company and the outstanding
bondholders have reached consensus on the Extension, pursuant to
which the maturity date of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds was
extended from 24 December 2021 to the Extended CB Maturity
Date (i.e. 31 August 2022) (the “Extension”). Save for the above,
all other terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds (including
the terms of conversion price) have remained unchanged and have
been in full force and effect.

The Extension was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between the Company and outstanding bondholders. Since 24
June 2021, Convertible Bonds in the aggregate of HK$23,115,278
have been converted into 23,115,278 Conversion Shares. The
extension of the maturity date would allow the Company to enjoy
more flexibility when planning its financial resources, as it would
enable the Company to apply its financial resources to fund its
operation and/or business development, especially when facing
the challenges of the COVID-19 situation, instead of repayment of
the Outstanding Convertible Bonds by 24 December 2021 so as to
maximise returns to the Shareholders. Further, it is also the intention
of the Outstanding Bondholder to further extend the term of the
Outstanding Convertible Bonds to the Extended CB Maturity Date
as and when it consider appropriate.

The Extension and the transactions contemplated above (including
but not limited to the allotment and issue of outstanding conversion
shares under the specific mandate) has been passed and approved
by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM") of the Company held on 7 March 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For further details in relation to the Extension, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 24 December 2020,
31 December 2020, 24 June 2021, and 24 December 2021, the
circular of the Company dated 26 January 2021, 30 July 2021
and 11 February 2022 in respect of the EGM, and the poll result
announcement dated 22 February 2021, 10 September 2021 and
7 March 2022 in respect of the EGM.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from those disclosed in the above paragraphs, there were no
material investments or additions of capital assets authorised by the
Board at the date of this annual report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue in RMB and also incurs cost in
HK$ and RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk with
respect mainly to HK$ which may affect the Group’s performance.
The management is aware of the possible exchange rate exposure
due to the continuing fluctuation of HK$ and will closely monitor
its impact on the performance of the Group to see if any hedging
policy is necessary. The Group currently does not have any foreign
currency hedging policy.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no significant outstanding capital commitment as at
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the employee headcount of the Group
was 95 (2020: 130) and the total staff costs, including Directors’
remuneration, amounted to approximately RMB10.2 million for the
Reporting Period (2020: RMB9.0 million). The increase in total staff
cost was due to the increase in the headcount of senior and middle
management personnel, which drove up the average salary costs
during the Reporting Period.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice and provides various fringe
benefits to employees. The Group conducts induction training for
all of its new employees and on-going training from time to time
during their employment. The nature of training offered depends
on their specific field of operation.

The objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration
paid to its employees (including directors and senior management),
the following factors are considered:

e workload, responsibility and job complexity;

e business requirements;

e individual performance and contribution to results;

e company performance and profitability;

e retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

e  corporate goals and objectives;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e market rates and changes in relevant markets, including
supply and demand fluctuations and changes in competitive
conditions; and

e general economic situation.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties
in addition to those shown below which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

Business Risk

Future growth of the Group relies, to a certain extent, on the
successful maintenance and expansion of the Group's sales to key
customers. As a result, any loss of key customers or substantial
reduction in the amount of purchase by them could significantly
and adversely affect the business, results of operations, financial
condition and prospects of the Group. Further, the business of
the Group is currently concentrated in Meizhou of Guangdong
Province. Any adverse economic or market development in this
region or any other regions that the Group operates may materially
and adversely affect the demand for the merchandise of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAREDH

Operational Risk

Most of the Group’s sale and distribution of merchandise are
derived from merchandise procured from its suppliers. Any
adverse change of the Group's relationship, including termination
or change in requirements as imposed by the suppliers, with its
suppliers may adversely affect the business operation of the Group.
Further, the Group’s operation can also be adversely affected if
there occur any material delay in product delivery by the Group’s
suppliers.

Industrial Risk

The products and services offered by the Group are mainly used
for or closely related to building or home improvement purposes.
Accordingly, business, results of operations and prospects of the
Group are driven, to a considerable extent, by the growth of the real
estate market and the relevant government policies in China.

Financial Risk

The business and operation of the Group are exposed to financial
risks on currency, interest rates, credit and impairment assessment
and liquidity.

Details of financial risk management of the Group are set out in
note 38(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

MANPOWER AND RETENTION RISK

The competition for talents in the cities that the Group operates
leads to the risk that the Group may not be able to attract and retain
key personnel and talents with the most appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence which would meet the business
objectives of the Group from time to time. The Group will continue
to evaluate our remuneration system and policy from time to time
and target to provide attractive remuneration package to attract,
retain and motivate suitable candidates and personnel.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Hou Wei (f%#%), aged 52, was appointed as a Director on
2 February 2015 and was re-designated as an executive Director
on 5 June 2015. Ms. Hou is also the chairlady and chief executive
officer of the Group. She is primarily responsible for the overall
management, strategic planning, business development and
cooperation of the Group. In September 1999, Ms. Hou joined
Guangdong Jiyi Household Building Materials Chain Co., Ltd.
("Jiyi Household™) as the manager of Jiyi Household and she
was later appointed as the executive director of Jiyi Household
in May 2004, primarily responsible for the overall management,
operation, strategic planning and the supervision of the finance
and purchase department. She has about 20 years of experience
in retail chain store operation and distribution of housewares and
building materials. Prior to joining the Group, from July 1989 to
July 1999, Ms. Hou served as a teacher of Meizhou Middle School
of Meizhou (8 48 F£2) . From October 2011 to December
2016, Ms. Hou served as a member of CPPCC Guangdong
Province Meixian Committee (MIZpEREIBHEES). In
November 2011, she received the title of “Guangdong Province
Outstanding Entrepreneurs” (BB & EFH EZFEZX) jointly awarded
by Guangdong Entrepreneurs Council (BER{E¥#KIEEZ)and
Guangdong Province Economists and Entrepreneurs Association
(BEREARBE2RLGERBEES). In November 2012, she
received the title of “Green Brand Advocates of Chinese Household
Building Materials” (FEIEM R Bix B mEEEE) awarded by
China Real Estate Society (FEIE#ZEE E) and China Building
Materials Daily (FEI#E+#R) . Ms. Hou received her diploma in
English from Guangdong Jiaying College (EEER 2 EZ (%) in the
PRC in June 1989 and her graduate certificate in the advanced
class of business strategy (4= 75 B& /S &k FHE ) from the Peking
University (652 A28) in the PRC in January 2013. Ms. Hou is the
sister of Mr. Hou Bo, a non-executive Director, the mother of Ms.
Deng Yiyi, a senior management of the Group and the sister-in-
law of Ms. Deng Haiming, who is also a senior management of the
Group.

EFEAEREBRERE

=
BITESR
ERgt 2 N_E—RE_RB_HES

EREFUN __ZE—HFBELBRAER/H
TEF - GRITREEBEFERTHAR -
REIZEEAEENREEE BRREIAE
BERMGE-R—ANANENR &G LM
ANERE—XEEMEHERQAT ((E—K
B AE—RENKE - HER _ZETMF
IREZERE—RENATES TEES
BREEE K2 BRRIUREEMB RF
BEH-HNEHEEERDHEFREREM S
EEBM0EER -MAXERF LR
—MAN\AEFEELBE-AAAFELBEEEIM
TN EHM - B E——F+RAEZZ
—RE+ZR BRI RERGEREIEHR
ZEEZE-N_ZT—F+—RB REER
TEREFEREREEBEE2REEKBE
SHEABER EREEFEERI RGN _-F
——F+—ARETEEMESEAPEE
MBBEENTHEEZMRXEGERMEEES R
e mEREIN—ANNERBETENERE
BERIFREX R TN _E—=F—A%
FEMIERABRGEE S BSREILR
SXFE BERIBFATEFTERTENK
KT ERSREEEHRERL L ZEHAIF
AAEESREEERNENER L TRk

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR

023



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEERE

Mr. Liu Xianxiu (BB %), aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director on 5 June 2015. He is primarily responsible for overall
internal control and internal audit affairs of the Group. He joined
the Group in July 2011 and served as an account manager and
warehouse logistics manager of Jiyi Household until February 2013,
primarily responsible for accounting and auditing and management
of warehouse logistics. He was re-designated as a deputy chief
financial officer of Jiyi Household from March 2013 to June 2013,
and was appointed as the chief financial officer of Jiyi Household
in July 2013, primarily responsible for the overall management of
financial affairs. He was re-designated as the chief internal audit
officer of Jiyi Household in September 2017, primarily responsible
for the overall internal control and internal audit affairs. Prior to
joining the Group, from July 1995 to November 2001, he served
as the accountant of Meizhou Gas Company Limited ({8 &
EIERABRAE), a company which is principally engaged in
supply of towngas in Meizhou, where he was primarily responsible
for accounting. From November 2001 to November 2004, he was
the finance manager of Meizhou Yanming Lake Tourist Resorts
Company Limited (/& fEIS iR ERMN B RAB]), a company
which is principally engaged in the management of Yanming Lake
Tourist Resorts (fEPS MR EfRAT), primarily responsible for
accounting and finance of such company. From November 2004
to July 2011, he served as the head of finance of Meizhou New
Weima Ceramics Company Limited (@M EEEEBREA
&]), a company which is principally engaged in the production of
ceramics, primarily responsible for accounting and finance of such
company. Mr. Liu received his diploma in financial management and
computer application from South China Agricultural University (£
B2 2E K2 in the PRC in July 1995. He received his qualification
certificate of specialty and technology (intermediate accounting)
(BERMEKFSE (FARES) from the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC in May 2002.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang Baikang (##H®), aged 56, was appointed as our
executive Director on 7 November 2018. He has been the vice
president of the Company since 1 November 2017 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing the engineering services business of
the Company’s subsidiary in the PRC. Mr. Yang served in various
positions in different government departments in Meizhou City,
Guangdong Province, PRC. He served as the deputy mayor of the
People’s Government of the Triangle Town of Meijiang District in
Meizhou City (&ML & = A#E AR BT from December
1995 to March 1999; he served as the deputy secretary of the
Party Committee (EZRIZE50) of the People’s Government of the
Triangle Town of Meijiang District in Meizhou City (i M 181 &
= AE AR from March 1999 to July 2002; he also served
as the mayor of the People’s Government of the Triangle Town of
Meijiang District in Meizhou City (i8N M8 IE =AEARIK
JfF) from December 2000 to July 2002; he served as the deputy
director of the Meizhou Municipal Real Estate Administration Bureau
(BN EESIER) from July 2002 to June 2007; he served as
deputy director of the Meizhou Municipal Construction Bureau ({8
MR
deputy director of Meizhou Municipal Housing and Urban-Rural
Development Bureau (8N & B MM A 3£ 5% /Z) from February
2010 to July 2016. He obtained his diploma in political history
from Jiaying Normal College (FZFEEMEZERIE24R) in July 1986.
He obtained his graduation certificate in economic management
from CPC Guangdong Provincial Party School ((PHEREZZEK)
in December 2000 and obtained his graduation certificate of the

=) from June 2007 to February 2010; and he served as

postgraduate course for world economy and political majors from
Graduate School of Renmin University of China (FFE] A B A2 Hf
ZE4B5E) in June 2002.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hou Bo (f%if), aged 54, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 5 June 2015. He is primarily responsible for the risk
management and providing supervision in the business of the
Group. From September 2010 to December 2011, he has been the
supervisor of Jiyi Household and from December 2011 onwards,
was then appointed as the non-executive director of Jiyi Household,
primarily responsible for the risk management and providing
supervision in the business of Jiyi Household. Since June 2002, he
has been the managing director of Meizhou Xikang Real Estate
Investment Company Limited (I8N 1EREEMEREBRAE),
a company which is principally engaged in property investments,
where he is primarily responsible for the overall business
management. From October 2011 onwards, he has also served
as the managing director of Meizhou Xikang Estate Management
Company Limited (M THBERYEEEFIRAF), a company
which is principally engaged in estate management, where he is
primarily responsible for the overall business management. He
received a diploma in electronics from Meizhou West Vocational
and Technical College (¥ 13k 785 22 £ T 224%) in the PRC in July
1984. Mr. Hou is the brother of Ms. Hou Wei. He was qualified
as a senior industrial construction engineer (L #2ES 4 T2
EM) recognised by the Department of Personnel of Guangdong
Province (EEE & AZEEE) in March 2006, and was registered as
an architect with the Department of Housing and Urban Rural
Construction of Guangdong Province (/&5 & 13 5= F0 15 45 22 5% BE)
in August 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Yihui (323 #8) , aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 6 October 2015. He has been the
independent director of Jiyi Household from July 2013 onwards,
primarily responsible for providing independent view and advice to
the board of directors of Jiyi Household including the effectiveness
of the internal control system and the audit process of Jiyi
Household. Mr. Ye has over 30 years of experience in areas of
finance, audit and tax. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ye served in
various positions where he was primarily responsible for the overall
management of financial affairs, operation and audit management.
He worked with the Audit Bureau of Meizhou Province (1§54%%
5t/5) from 1988 to 1998, during 1995 to 1998, he served as the
supervisor, where he was primarily responsible for the audit of
finance and infrastructure projects; the deputy manager of Zhuhai
Huacheng Certified Public Accountants (kS & sTEM S 5P
from February 2001 onwards, where he was primarily responsible
for the management of financial affairs and operation; the manager
of Meizhou Zhengde Tax Agent Office (I8 [E /@R 5 EM B F5FM)
from November 2010 to October 2021, where he was primarily
responsible for the overall management and operation; the partner
of Zhuhai Hancheng Certified Public Accountants G782 &
sHEMZEFFT) from October 2021 onwards, where he provides
professional accounting and auditing services to clients. He received
his diploma in economics and industrial enterprise management
from Guangdong Radio and TV University (B R EEE R AE2)
now known as the Open University of Guangdong (/& 58 B8 A 22)
in the PRC in July 1986 and his diploma in economic management
from CPC Guangdong Provincial Party Committee Party School
(FHEEEAZER)in the PRC in July 2005 through a distance
learning course. He is an auditor registered with the National Audit
Office of the PRC (% A R M EEE 51E) since November 1992
and an accountant registered with Ministry of Finance of the PRC
(FrEE N B HFNE R ELER) since December 1992. He has been
admitted as a registered certified public accountant of Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FEZE & 5TEMI%E)
since April 1996 and a registered tax agent of Management Center
of Certified Tax Agent of Guangdong Province (5 & =t 375
EM1# &) since June 1999. He has been a member of the Council of
Management Center of Certified Tax Agent of Guangdong Province

(BB MR FFEN ) since March 2011.
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Mr. Ho Hin Yip (ff7%), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 6 October 2015. Mr. Ho
has more than 24 years of financial and auditing experience.
Since April 2012, he is the financial controller and joint company
secretary of Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited (stock code: BKV),
a company listed on the Singapore Exchange Limited, where he
is responsible for the finance and accounting functions, statutory
compliance and corporate governance affairs. Mr. Ho has been
serving as an independent non-executive director of China Ever
Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd (formerly known as PME
Group Limited) (stock code: 379), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, since December 2012. Mr. Ho was
also appointed as an independent non-executive director of Xinhua
News Media Holdings Limited (Stock code:309) from December
2012 up until April 2020, where he resigned from the directorship
due to personal reasons. Mr. Ho received his bachelor’s degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in December 1997. He was admitted as a member and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in August 2000 and August 2005, respectively. He has also been
registered as a certified public accountant (Practising) of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since February 2005.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hou Lianchang (f%E#&), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 6 October 2015. He has
over 20 years of experience in legal work focusing on corporate
finance practice. Since April 2000, Mr. Hou has been a lawyer
with Jing Tian Law Office of Guangdong (BER& X EEMEHE
FIT), specializing in areas such as foreign investment, mergers and
acquisitions, venture capital financing, asset and shareholding
restructuring, and initial public offerings in overseas markets. He
is also well versed in corporate structure and governance matters.
From March 2012 onwards, he serves as a board member of
Shenzhen Association of Trade in Services CRYITARFS & 3 1%
BiEE).
law and his graduate certificate in the professional graduate
course of economic law (A F 2 L4 ERIZZEIEHD) from
Wuhan University (£ A2 in the PRC, in December 1989 and
December 2003, respectively. He is a lawyer registered with the
Ministry of Justice of the PRC (RZE A R HEFMEB)AER) since
September 1995.

Mr. Hou received his bachelor’'s degree in international

Mr. Hou was a director of New Heng Ye Investment Development
Limited GBI EZERBIRAE]), a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong with a principal business of investment
holding and dissolved by deregistration by the Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong as a defunct company pursuant to
section 291 of the Predecessor Companies Ordinance. The
aforesaid company was inactive prior to its dissolution and was
dissolved in 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Deng Yiyi (81#2%8), aged 29, was appointed as our chief
executive officer of the Company on 29 November 2019. She is
responsible for the Company’s strategic management, investor
relations, business development, corporate finance and legal and
regulatory compliance of the Group. Ms. Deng obtained a bachelor
degree in Laws from the University of International Business
and Economics, a master degree in Laws from the University of
California, Berkeley and a Juris Doctor from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Deng has extensive experience and knowledge
in the cross-border of legal and regulatory compliance, merger
and acquisition transactions, investor relations, corporate finance,
private equity and in advising on initial public offerings (“IPOs”) in
Hong Kong and in the United States. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
Deng worked at two leading U.S. law firms, Skadden, Arps, Slate,
Meagher & Flom LLP and Cooley LLP, respectively. She has worked
on over 10 successful high profile IPOs in the U.S. and Hong Kong
capital markets and represented a number of leading new economy
companies in their cross-border merger and acquisition transactions
during her tenure with these two U.S. law firms. Ms. Deng is the
daughter of Ms. Hou, who is the Chairlady, an executive director,
and a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lo Wai Siu (ZBf&JK), aged 34, was appointed as our chief
financial officer and company secretary of the Company on
19 February 2019. He is responsible for the financial and audit
management, corporate finance, investment management,
investor relations, administration and company secretarial matters
of the Group. Mr. Lo holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration in accountancy and management information
systems from the City University of Hong Kong and is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo
has extensive experience and knowledge in the areas of financial
markets, corporate and management accounting, investment
management and auditing. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in the audit and assurance department of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Hong Kong, and later he served key managerial roles in the regional
finance department (Asia Pacific region) of two multinational asset
management companies. He also served as vice president of the
investment management department of a financial group before
joining the Company.

Mr. Ling Yongshan (& Ll), aged 50, was appointed as the
executive vice president of the Group on 1 January 1999, primarily
responsible for managing human resources, warehousing logistics
and information technology of the Group. Since January 1999,
he has been the deputy general manager of Jiyi Household and
is primarily responsible for its overall management, including
human resources management, sales and marketing, warehouse
logistics and customer services. Since 9 January 2015, Mr. Ling has
been a director of Meizhou Jisheng Household Building Materials
Company Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Ling received his graduate certificate in the advanced
class of innovative entrepreneur ((E# X B AI# = K HHELD)
from the School of Continuing Education, Tsinghua University (5
FERBUEHEZP7) in the PRC in August 2012.

EFEAEREBRERE

BRIREE 34 R_E2—HEFE_B+NH
BEEAXNBIZERFUEERLBIME
HEESAEENMBELESEE PERE
KRECE KEERANRTHEERKR R ATME
EH - BAEEREEBRTAZIHEE (B
STEEEEMNAR B2 AT AL
MAEEE - BAENRNEMMG bEREIE
Zi - KREEENSETERARE KR
oM MAXREER FEREERXKESS
S Ect SR HAG HEMBEERE
EEBERNREAEHBHEREER -KIMAR
NEF BB EE—EeHERNKEEE
ER Bl AR E o

EBWRE S0 R—NAANE—B—H
EZERTERANTREIES T EEEEE
AEBNANER - BREYAKRERS KM -8
— AN E—RE R—EEETE—XKEHNE
BMEE, TEEEHEREE A ANER
EEVHEREH BERYMARERRS &
REB_EZ-—HAF-—ANBEERREEE
EENBRAEBMNTEBREERMERAT
BEEAENR_Z——_F )\ AREHRENE
ERBUBHE2REERE RIS M
EHEERZE-

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR

031



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEERE

Ms. Deng Haiming (88/808), aged 65, was appointed as the
chief purchasing officer of the Group on 1 February 2012 and was
re-designated as the vice president of the Group in June 2016.
She is primarily responsible for managing and coordinating the
procurement of raw materials and equipments of the Group. From
October 1998 to January 2012, she served as the general manager
of various branches of Jiyi Household and was primarily responsible
for its overall operation and management. From February 2012
onwards, Ms. Deng serves as the chief purchasing officer of
Jiyi Household and is primarily responsible for supervising the
procurement of building materials and the selection of suppliers.
Since 6 April 2015, Ms. Deng has been a director of Jiyi Household.
She has nearly 16 years of experience in procurement and trading
of building materials. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Deng served
as the labour statistics officer of Dongfeng Enterprise Group of
Guangdong Meizhou Province (BERigMNE R PEER) from
October 1979 to May 1998, where she was primarily responsible
for personnel administration. Ms. Deng received her diploma in
Financial Accounting from Guangdong Radio and TV University
(BHEBEEHRAZS) (currently known as the Open University of
Guangdong (BEEERBEHAZ) in the PRC in July 1991. Ms. Deng is
the sister-in-law of Ms. Hou Wei.
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Mr. Liang Weizhen (2E%&E), aged 36, was appointed as
the chief sales officer of the Group on 1 January 2019. He is
mainly responsible for the sales and marketing management of
the Group. He joined the Group in June 2013 and worked as
a construction engineer in the engineering department of Jiyi
Xinya until September 2013, and was mainly responsible for
supervising construction engineering work. From September 2013
to June 2014, he served as the deputy manager of the purchasing
department of the Company, and was mainly responsible for
managing and coordinating the Group’s procurement. From
June 2014 to January 2015, he was re-designated as the deputy
director of the General Office, and was mainly responsible for
the Group’s internal administration affairs and corporate legal
work. From January 2015 to January 2016, he served as the
company'’s representative, and was mainly responsible for assisting
the company secretary in handling listing-related matters and
coordination between various internal departments of the Group.
Since January 2016, He served as the assistant to the Chairlady and
was mainly assisting the Chairlady in managing the coordination
between internal departments, and was in charge of managing the
Group’s administration, logistics, human resources, legal affairs,
warehousing and other tasks. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in law from Guangzhou University of China in June 2009.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFETHRS

The Board are pleased to present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year under review and a
discussion on the Group's future business development and outlook
of the Company’s business, possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing and important events affecting the Company
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2021 are provided in
the sections headed “Chairlady’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 8 and pages 9 to 22 of
this annual report. An account of the Company’s relationships
with its key stakeholders is included in the paragraph headed
“Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and Customers” of the
report of the Directors on page 55 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2021 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 9 to 22 of this annual report.

An analysis of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group and the particulars of events affecting the Group since
the end of the Reporting Period are set out respectively in the
paragraph headed “Key Risks and Uncertainties” on pages 21 to
22, and the paragraph headed “Event after the Reporting Period”
on page 57 of this annual report.
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In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Company
are provided in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of the on pages 79 to 111 of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 124 to 125 of this report.

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). The Board has
adopted a dividend policy on 31 December 2018. Details of which
is set out of page 36 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
(the “Companies Law”) amounted to approximately RMB621.8
million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 31 December
2018 (the “Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company to allow shareholders to share the Company’s profit and
for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group is profitable
and without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
shareholders of the Company. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, among others, the operating results, cash flow,
financial condition, capital requirements of the Group, the interests
of the shareholders and any other factors that the Board may
consider appropriate. Declaration of the dividend by the Company
is also subject to the Companies Laws, the articles of association of
the Company and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and shall in noway constitute a legally-binding commitment
by the Company in respect of its future dividend. There can be
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific periods.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2021 are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year

ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. Hou Wei (Chairlady)
Mr. Liu Xianxiu

Mr. Yang Baikang

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hou Bo
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ye Yihui
Mr. Ho Hin Yip
Mr. Hou Lianchang

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, Ms. Hou Wei, Mr. Hou Bo and Mr. Ho Hin Yip will
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Reporting
Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had or is having a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The controlling shareholders of the Company entered into a deed
of non-competition in favour of the Company dated 6 October
2015 (“Deed of Non-competition”) as set out in the paragraph
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus, pursuant to which the controlling shareholders of the
Company have undertaken to the Company that she/it will not,
and will procure her/its close associates (other than members of
the Group) not to directly or indirectly be involved in or undertake
any business (other than our business) that directly or indirectly
competes, or may compete, with our business or undertaking, or
hold shares or interest in any companies or business that compete
directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from
time to time. The controlling shareholders have provided an annual
declaration and confirmed their compliance of all the undertakings
provided under the Deed of Non-competition. There are no matters
which required to be deliberated by the independent non-executive
Directors in relation to the compliance and enforcement of the
Deed of Non-competition and it is considered that the terms of the
Deed of Non-competition have been complied by the controlling
shareholders.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”in this annual report, there
are no other changes in the information of Directors, which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 23 to 33 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
each director and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong, the “SFO")), which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of the SFO; as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “"Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Name of Director

EEEA

Ms. Hou Wei (“Ms. Hou") (Note 2)

ERwt+ (MEkt)) (|zz2)

Mr. Hou Bo (“Mr. Hou") (Note 3)

R E (MERE) (HaZ3)

Mr. Liu Xianxiu (Note 4)
REHLE (Hit4)

Mr. Yang Baikang (Note 4)
WIRRREE (Hfit4)

Mr. Ye Yihui (Note 4)
ERELE Hat4)

Mr. Ho Hin Yip (Note 4)
RITTE & (Hfat4)

Mr. Hou Lianchang (Note 4)
B Sk E (Hat4)

Nature of interest

EEEE

Interest in a controlled
corporation

LR

Beneficial owner (Note 4)

BEmEB AN Wit4)

Interest in a controlled
corporation

LR T

Beneficial owner (Note 4)

BmEA A (Hit4)

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Beneficial owner

BmEAA

Beneficial owner

BmEAA

Beneficial owner

BmEAA
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RE2B KRG RERMRKRGBZEFE

Approximate
percentage

Number of of the issued
shares share capital
HBERITRE

ik & H BAEaL
(Note 1)

(Hzt1)

449,198,363 50.45%
449,198,363 50.45%
497,725,431 55.90%
497,725,431 55.90%
5,562,000 0.62%
5,562,000 0.62%
200,000 0.02%
200,000 0.02%
100,000 0.01%
100,000 0.01%
200,000 0.02%
200,000 0.02%
200,000 0.02%
200,000 0.02%
100,000 0.01%
100,000 0.01%
200,000 0.02%
200,000 0.02%
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Notes:

The percentage figures were calculated based on 890,384,445 ordinary
shares (“Shares”) of the Company having a par value of HK$0.1 each in

issue as of 31 December 2021.

Ms. Hou was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Xinling Limited (“Xinling”). Xinling was the registered holder of
449,198,363 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Hou was therefore
deemed to have interests in 449,198,363 Shares in which Xinling was
interested.

Mr. Hou was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Jiesi Global Investments Limited (“Jiesi Global”). Jiesi Global was the
registered holder of 5,562,000 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Hou
was therefore deemed to have interests in 5,562,000 Shares in which Jiesi

Global was interested.

As at 2 November 2018, the Company granted Share Options of 300,000
to each of the members in the Board. For details of the exercise period and
vesting period of the Share Options, please refer to the paragraph headed

“Share Option Scheme” in this section on page 45 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of

the Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was

deemed to have any interests or short positions in any Shares,

underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which

were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exch
were
whic

ange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO or which
required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
h were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, DEBENTURES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

Aggregate long positions in the Shares and underlying
shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest
RERBE Ha E=NE

Xinling (Note 2) Beneficial owner
48 (HHat2) Em#EA A

Hou Wei (Note 2) Beneficial owner
=3 (Htat2) EmBEBA

Yue Xiu Balanced Investment SP (Note 3)  Beneficial owner
Yue Xiu Balanced Investment SP (#/5£3) S EE#ELE

Yiju Holdings Limited (”Yiju Holdings") Beneficial owner
(Note 4)

IR AR AR (DatEEk) BmEAA
(Htat4)
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Approximate

percentage

Number of of the issued
shares share capital
HEZTRE

Lisab g S 4= = dan
(Note 1)

(BrzE1)

449,198,363 50.45%
449,198,363 50.45%
497,725,431 55.90%
497,725,431 55.90%
64,000,000 7.19%
64,000,000 7.19%
55,263,000 6.21%
55,263,000 6.21%
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Name of Shareholder Nature of interest

RRRBE R EmtE

Mr. Liu Shui (“Mr. Liu") (Note 4)

corporation

BIkseE (TR154%)) (HaE4) REELER

Notes:

1. The percentage figures were calculated based on 890,384,445 Shares
with a par value of HK$0.1 each in issue as of 31 December 2021.

2. Xinling was the registered holder of 449,198,363 Shares.

3. Yue Xiu Balanced Investment SP was the registered holder of 64,000,000

Shares.

4. Mr. Liu was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Yiju Holdings. Yiju Holdings was the registered holder of 55,263,000
Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Liu was therefore deemed to have
interests in 55,263,000 Shares in which Yiju Holdings was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company
had not been notified of any other persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO.
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Approximate

percentage

Number of of the issued
shares share capital
LT
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(Hfat1)

55,263,000 6.21%
55,263,000 6.21%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 6 October 2015
("Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant share options
to any directors, employees, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and distributors who in the sole discretion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to the growth and development
of the Group so as to provide incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the success of the Group’s operation. As at 2
November 2018, the Company granted share options to subscribe
for a total of 36,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Share Capital of the Company under the Share Option Scheme to
certain eligible participants. Details of the grant of share options are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2 November
2018.

Summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(a) Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to enable
the Group to grant options to the eligible participants to: (i)
motivate them to optimise their performance efficiently for
the benefit of the Group; and (i) attract and retain or maintain
on-going business relationship with the eligible participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group.

(b) Eligible Participants

Any employees (whether full time or part time), directors
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors), advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers
and distributors of the Group (“Eligible Participants”) who,
in the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the growth and development of the Group.
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(o)

(d)

046

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in
issue from time to time. The total number of Shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at the date of listing of the Shares, being 36,000,000 Shares,
unless the Company obtains the approval of the shareholders
in general meeting for refreshment.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Participant must not exceed 1.0% of the
total number of Shares in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder of the Company or an
independent non-executive director must not exceed
0.1% of the total number of Shares in issue and not
exceed HK$5.0 million in aggregate value.
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(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Period within which the Shares must be taken up under
an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may
specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held

No minimum period for which the option has to be held before
it can be exercised is specified in the Share Option Scheme.

Period open for acceptable of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Participant within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant
of the option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an option

The exercise price must be at least the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.
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() Validity of the Share Option Scheme (i) MRRESIZHEME

The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire
on 5 October 2025 unless otherwise terminated in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

On 2 November 2018, the Company granted a total of
36,000,000 share options (the “Share Options”) under the
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 36,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company. The details of such grant of
the Share Options are set out as follows:

BRESIZAVHASTF ALR/N-F
“HE+ADHER BRIFREBRES
B 2 RSB TRLE -

RZEBE-NFE+—BZH ' A27R
ERERES 8 R H 536,000,000/
et (TEkE)) URBELATGH
36,000,000 EiEA - ARAEIRER L Z
SIBEEIINT ¢

Total number of 36,000,000

Share Options granted 36,000,0001%3

BRI EREER
Exercise price of the HK$0.704 per share, as stated in the daily quotations sheet

Share Options granted issued by the Stock Exchange, the closing price of the date of

EIZHERENITHEE grant and the date immediately before the grant were HK$0.69.
FRRM7H0.704B 7 MU B FAEMNE B RERAR
PO B HA R B4R AT B HARI U (B 40.6978 7T ©

Exercise period and vesting period of (@) approximately 1/3 of the Share Options offered, i.e. Share

the Share Options
fERRE 2 1T E R R R B A

Options to subscribe for 1,833,334 Shares, shall become
vested in the 7th month of the date of this offer letter (the
“1st Vesting Date”) and shall be exercisable at any time
during the period commencing on the 1st Vesting Date
and ending on the day immediately preceding the 1st
anniversary of the 1st Vesting Date (both dates inclusive);

(a) BRHBREZHN=72— (BI50E1,833,334K RNV
) B ABEARHHERREE7ER ((BEHEBE)
BE URPEEREHRRAEERNEZEEEREH
HzBUBFRERR L (BEEEREWA) BN ZEM
R Bl F1T6E 5
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(b)
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approximately 1/3 of the Share Options offered, i.e. Share
Options to subscribe for 1,833,333 Shares, shall become
vested in the 19th month of the date of this offer letter
(the “2nd Vesting Date”) and shall be exercisable at any
time during the period commencing on the 2nd Vesting
Date and ending on the day immediately preceding the 1st
anniversary of the 2nd Vesting Date (both dates inclusive);
and

REBEREN=72— BI0E1,833,333 R AVE
BEHE) BN AZLQREBIARFE19E A (MFHE2EEE B
HA)) BRE WA S521E 5 /8 B ARG R i B 828 5
BHEZFVEFRIER AL (BEEEMA) iR
I RFE R F1T6E 5 &

approximately 1/3 of the Share Options offered, i.e. Share
Options to subscribe for 1,833,333 Shares, shall become
vested in the 31st month of the date of this offer letter
(the "3rd Vesting Date”) and shall be exercisable at any
time during the period commencing on the 3rd Vesting
Date and ending on the day immediately preceding the 1st
anniversary of the 3rd Vesting Date (both dates inclusive)
RUEBEREZN=72— (BI5381,833,333 R AV
B RN ABENRHBERESEER (MFE3EHFE B
HA)) BRI AN R385 B H HAR R R BRI E31E 5
BHEZFVBFREHALL (BEEEMB) iR
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—PRERAR
—=-_gezx 049



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFETHRS

Out of the 36,000,000 Share Options granted, 2,400,000
Share Options were granted to the Directors or substantial
shareholders of the company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), details of which are

as follows:

Name of grantee

AEAMR

Ms. Hou Wei

(s

Mr. Liu Xianxiu

BEHLE

Mr. Yang Baikang

IR E

Mr. Hou Bo

BRI E

Mr. Ye Yihui
ERERE

Mr. Hou Lianchang

EEEE

Mr. Ho Hin Yip
(EEE e

Ms. Deng Haiming

Gl g
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Position(s) held with the Company
RAQE)REZ B

Chairlady of the Board, executive Director and
substantial shareholder of the Company

EFSEIR FREARTESERTERR

Executive Director of the Company
KABRITES

Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 7 November 2018)
ARBHITEE (M _E—/\FE+—BtBEZD

Non-executive Director and the brother of the chairlady of
the Board and substantial shareholder of the Company

ARBFRTES TAEEZTFELTERFZZE

Independent non-executive Director of the Company
RRABVBIUIIFRNTES

Independent non-executive Director of the Company

RABEIUIFATES

Independent non-executive Director of the Company

RABBIUIFAITES

Sister-in-law of the chairlady of the Board and substantial
shareholder of the Company

FABDEFETEREERTZWG

RE&EH 236,000,000 ER
2,400,000 BEREERFTARABZES
FEERFRFEESZEZEAHEA (E
ZR EMRA) > HEFBuT .

Number of
options granted

itz EikEHR

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000
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The following table disclose details of the Company’s

share options held by Directors and other employees and

movements in such holding during the year ended 31

December 2021:

Date of grant AN

Granted to Directors ~ [EREF

2 November 2018 “E-N\F+—-BZH

Granted to senior REREERRT
management

2 November 2018 —E-N\F+—-BZH

Granted to employees [F{EE#EF

2 November 2018 “T-N\E+—-FZH

Granted to consultants [FEERIIEF

2 November 2018 “E-N\F+—FZH

Granted to customers [HEFEF

2 November 2018 —Z-N\F+—-BZH

Total st

TEEBHESREMBESZRE AR
AMREURESBRENRE_T

——F+ZA=t—ALFEEz BN
E

Outstanding Outstanding

and and

exercisable exercisable

at the beginning at the end of

of the year Exercised Cancelled Lapsed the year

REMHR R R A

TERATE BiTE B3] BEH fIfERAI{TE

1,400,000 = = (700,000) 700,000

200,000 (100,000) 100,000

800,000 - - (400,000) 400,000

10,866,667 - - (5,433,333) 5,433,334

10,733,333 - - (5,366,667) 5,366,666

24,000,000 - - (12,000,000) 12,000,000

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR
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The following table disclose details of the Company’s
share options held by Directors and other employees and
movements in such holding during the year ended 31

TERREREEREMEEREZER
BEREUARZEBERERBE S
TES+RB=+—HLEFEZEHFF

December 2020:
Outstanding Outstanding
and and
exercisable exercisable
at the beginning at the end of
of the year Exercised Cancelled Lapsed the year
REREK REXRHEK
Date of grant b =) TERATE Bi7fe B BEX TERATE
Granted to Directors ~ [EEREF
2 November 2018 “E-N\F+—BZH 1,900,000 (200,000) - (300,000) 1,400,000
(Note)
Granted to senior AeREEERT
management
2 November 2018 “E-\F+—BZH 300,000 - - (100,000) 200,000
Granted to employees [F{EE#EF
2 November 2018 “E-N\FE+—BZH 1,200,000 - - (400,000) 800,000
Granted to consultants [EERIIEF
2 November 2018 “E-N\F+—BZH 16,300,000 - - (5,433,333) 10,866,667
Granted to customers [HEFEF
2 November 2018 “E-\F+—BZH 16,100,000 - - (5,366,667) 10,733,333
Total it 35,800,000 (200,000) - (11,600,000) 24,000,000

Note: The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before
the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$0.69 and the
exercise price per share was HK$0.704.
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The fair values of the Share Options granted under the Share Option
Scheme were determined and measured using the Binomial Model
on 2 November 2018. The significant inputs into the model were
the exercise price shown above, risk-free interest rates of 2.02%
to 2.25%, volatility of 43.4% to 46.1% and dividend yield of 0%.
As any changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimates, the valuation models for the Share
Options granted do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure
of the fair value of the Share Options. The related accounting policy
for the fair value of the Share Options granted is disclosed at note
3 to the consolidated financial statements.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the Share Options are based on the Directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

For details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Statutory and General Information — D. Other
Information — 1. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the
prospectus dated 27 October 2015.
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#43.4%E46.1% R EUWEHR0% ° HIX FE &
ABRENERNEEEH A FEGBSGELES
FE BEREBRENGERERRNIRHE
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N ENERAGSTEREEN GRS R BREK
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this report was the Company, its holding company, any of its
subsidiaries or follow subsidiaries or a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts by which any person undertook the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into between the Company and
any person who is not a Director or not engaged in the full-time
employment of the Group or existed during the Reporting Period.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group's five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 70.19% of the Group's
total turnover. The largest customer accounted for approximately
32.35% of the Group's total turnover.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 61.28% of the Group's
total purchases. The largest supplier accounted for approximately
34.49% of the Group's total purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group's business is built on a customer-oriented culture, and
are focused on establishing relationships with customers. The
Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its immediate
and long-term goals. To maintain its market competitiveness within
the industry, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards
of quality in the service to its customers. During the Reporting
Period, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
in the normal course of business are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements, of which certain transactions
also constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules but were exempted from disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation
thereto in accordance with the Articles of Association.
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Directors and officers liability insurance are currently in force and
in place to protect the Directors, officers and/or the directors of
the associated corporation of the Company against potential costs
and liabilities arising from claims brought against them. Permitted
indemnity provision are set out in such insurance contracts.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
on pages 60 to 78 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Group during the Reporting Period.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the reporting period, the Company completed two placing of
new shares under general mandate through Silverbricks Securities
Company Limited (the “Placing Agent”), in which a total of
28,022,000 placing shares had been successfully placed by the
Placing Agent on 25 January 2022 to not less than six Placees at the
Placing Price of HK$1.2 per placing shares pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the placing agreement dated 30 November 2021,
and a total of 48,000,000 placing shares had been successfully
placed by the Placing Agent on 11 March 2022 to not less than six
Placees at the Placing Price of HK$0.9 per placing shares pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the placing agreement dated 4
March 2022.

The Company received net proceeds of HK$33.1 million and
HK$42.6 million from the placing of new shares under general
mandate completed on 25 January 2022 and 11 March 2022
respectively.

For more information of the placing of new shares under general
mandate completed on 25 January 2022, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 30 November 2021, 20
December 2021, 11 January 2022, 12 January 2022 and 26
January 2022.

For more information of the placing of new shares under general
mandate completed on 11 March 2022, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 4 March 2022, 8 March
2022 and 15 March 2022.

Except as disclosed in above, there is no material subsequent event
undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this announcement.
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AUDITORS

During the three years immediately preceding this annual report,
the Company has undergone the following changes of auditors:

Name of former auditors Date of resignation

AIIZ BT 2 %8 FHEBH

PricewaterhouseCoopers 20 September 2019

BB 5T AIE 5T “E-NAFENABEZTH

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 11 November 2020
("Deloitte”)

T -AERS EstANT “_E_ZF+—B+—H
(ME#))

Moore Stephens CPA Limited 3 January 2022
("Moore Stephens”)

AEFHEGHFEHH 2~ —B--F—S=H
BRAR (AEFHE
LR E )
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Reasons for resignation

FHEIRH

The Company and PwC could not reach an
agreement on the audit fee for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019.

RAFEBERBKXEBERBE_Z—NEF
+_R=1+—HUEMBEEZEZERA
EREEN —RER-

The Company and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
could not reach an agreement on the audit
fee for the financial year ended 31 December
2020.

RAEEEY-AEEAGHMITEREEZ
FoTEH-AS T ALNBEEZE
ZERKEREER —RER-

The Company and Moore Stephens could not
reach an agreement on the audit fee for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021.

RABEARESHES N EBAENEE
B+ "RA=+—HUIMBFEZ
BREAFHEREER —RER-



The Board, with the recommendation from the Audit Committee,
has resolved to appoint McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
as the auditor of the Company with effect from 3 January 2022 to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Moore Stephens
and to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 3
January 2022 for more details.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hou Wei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTHRS

EZTRNBERZEGHE T RBZERS
(BH) EStMEHRMERQABDB/ERT ZZ
e B " F—A=BEER LUEM
REFMEG TR EHATFER LR ZEE
TR WERERAT TERRBFEAGHER
RlEe

=4
Z

BHRARTDHARR T - "F—

o

il
It
A\

2]
H

[1] \z}\ir

m

L\)
of

BE_Z_ —F+_RB=1+—HLEFEZR
G BHRREERE &) GstEHBRAR
REBZ ERRNARBEERRBEFAE L
RE HEERILBEREGREE

RKRESFS

&
ZE

&R "B "F=-H=+—H

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR

059



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELRHRS

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
of the Company and to enhance corporate value and responsibility.
The Board comprises three executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The Board
has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code ("CG Code"”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Company has complied with the code
provisions under the CG Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Directors have adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
for Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific
enquiries have been made to all Directors and all Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021. Relevant employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Group
are also subject to compliance with written guidelines or no less
exacting terms than the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
“Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee

Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a

different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, namely
Ms. Hou Wei (chairlady), Mr. Liu Xianxiu and Mr. Yang Baikang,
one non-executive Director, Mr. Hou Bo and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ye Yihui, Mr. Ho Hin Yip and
Mr. Hou Lianchang.

Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 23 to 33
in this annual report. A List of Directors identifying their roles and
functions is available on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s
website.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship between any
members of the Board, and no information relating to the Directors
is required to be disclosed pursuant to rules 13.51(2) and 13.51(B)
(1) of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group.
It also decides on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the
Group's businesses to the executive Directors and members of
senior management. The functions and power that are so delegated
are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis as and when necessary.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and
that every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, Ms. Hou Wei, Mr. Hou Bo and Mr. Ho Hin Yip will
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Details of the re-election are
set out in the AGM circular as despatched together with this annual
report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company and is appointed for a specific term of three
years unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either the executive Director or the Company.

The non-executive Director and the independent non-executive
Directors have each signed an appointment letter with the
Company and is appointed for a specific term of three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company'’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which
include: (a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

The Board has performed the abovementioned corporate
governance functions during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board held 15 Board meetings during the year ended 31
December 2021, and a tentative schedule for four regular Board
meetings for 2022 has been provided to the Directors at the
beginning of the year. The attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings is set out on page 72.

Between scheduled regular Board meetings, Directors may approve
various matters by way of passing written resolutions. Additional
Board meetings may be arranged if required. In addition, at least
14 days’ notice of a regular Board meeting shall be given and the
Company aims at sending the agenda and the accompanying board
papers to Directors at a reasonable time before the intended date
of a Board meeting.

The Company Secretary assists in preparing the agenda for the
Board meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
regarding Board meetings are complied with. Minutes of the
Board and Board committees’ meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary, which are available to all Directors for inspection.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
responsibilities of the external auditor to the shareholders are set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 112 to 123.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect
of indemnification against costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities that may be incurred by the Directors and officers of the
Company in the execution and discharge of their duties.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. For the year ended
31 December 2021, each of the Directors has been given relevant
guideline materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed
by a director. The package will also include the latest published
financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board.

The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or
guidance notes are also issued to Directors where appropriate to
ensure their awareness of best corporate governance practices.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests
of the shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the Board
and its committees to provide their independent and objective
views.

In compliance with rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. Two of
the independent non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Ye Yihui and
Mr. Ho Hin Yip, have the appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors a written
confirmation of his independence and has satisfied itself of such
independence in accordance with the independent guidelines as set
out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three Board Committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined
and written terms of reference approved by the Board covering
its duties, powers and functions. Their terms of reference are
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.
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Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ye Yihui, Mr. Ho Hin Yip and Mr. Hou Lianchang. Mr.
Ye Yihui, who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, to oversee the external and internal audit
processes, to develop and review the Group’s policies and to
perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

There were 5 meetings of the Audit Committee held during the
year ended 31 December 2021. The attendance of each Director at
the Audit Committee meetings is set out on page 72. During the
year under review, the members of the Audit Committee reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and for the six months ended
30 June 2021,
audit activities for 2021 and discussed the change of auditors and

reviewed the risk assessment results, the internal

audit plans for the year ended 31 December 2021 with the external
auditor.

In addition, the Audit Committee held two meetings in March
2022. The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Audit Committee monitors the audit and non-audit services
rendered to the Group by the external auditor and ensures that the
engagement of external auditor in non-audit services will not impair
its audit independence or objectivity.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees in respect of the
audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, is set out as follows:

Statutory audit services AT BIZERTS
Non-audit services IEBZARTS
Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors and one executive Director, namely Mr. Hou
Lianchang, Mr. Ye Yihui and Mr. Liu Xianxiu. Mr. Hou Lianchang is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee include (but without limitation):
(i) making recommendations to the Directors regarding the Group's
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policies; (ii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
our Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (iv) considering
and approving the grant of share options to eligible participants
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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There was one meeting of the Remuneration Committee held
during the year ended 31 December 2021. The attendance of
each Director at the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out
on page 72. During the year under review, the members of the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the existing remuneration
policy and package of all existing Directors and senior
management.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The emoluments paid to each of four members of senior
management of the Company was between RMBO to RMB1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors and one executive Director, namely Mr. Hou Lianchang,
Mr. Ye Yihui and Ms. Hou Wei. Ms. Hou Wei is the Chairlady of
the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee is to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select, or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.

There was one meeting of the Nomination Committee held during
the year ended 31 December 2021. The attendance of each
Director at the Nomination Committee meeting is set out on page
72. During the year under review, the members of the Nomination
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and reviewed the objectives set for implementing the board
diversity policy.
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The Company believes that diversity of Board members can
be achieved through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
length of service and the legitimate interests of the Company’s
principal shareholders. All Board’'s appointment are based on the
merits of the candidates and the Board believes that doing so will
be consistent with achieving a diversity of perspectives.

Meeting with Independent Non-executive Directors

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code states that the chairman of
the board of directors of a listed issuer should hold meetings with
the independent non-executive directors at least annually without
the presence of other directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting was
held between the Chairlady and the independent non-executive
Directors, with each of the independent non-executive Directors
present. The Chairlady will continue to make arrangements for
holding at least one meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors for every subsequent year.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has developed a nomination policy.
Such nomination policy is established with the aims of ensuring
the Board maintains a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Group.

To assess and evaluate whether an individual candidate is suitably
qualified to be appointed as a Director, the Nomination Committee
shall take into account, among other things:

— the qualifications, skills, knowledge, ability and experience of
the individual candidate;
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— the potential time commitment and attention to perform
duties as a director under the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws and regulations;

—  the potential contributions that the individual candidate can
make to the diversity of the Board, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

- the personal ethics, integrity and reputation of the individual
candidate (and where appropriate, adequate background
checks and other verification processes shall be conducted
against the individual candidate);

—  the current structure, size and composition of the Board and
the Company'’s corporate strategy;

—  Board succession planning considerations and the long-term
needs of the Company;

—  (in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
Director), the independence of such candidate with reference
to, among other things, the independence criteria as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and the guidance and
requirements relating to independent non-executive directors
set out in Code Provision A.5.5 of Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules; and

— any other factors and matters as the Nomination Committee
may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy at
least annually and discuss any revisions and updates that may be
required, and recommend the same to the Board for approval.

EEERRS

- RELTRARBRAEERREREESE
BRI EHNRBRED

- BEEREATUSEFTEZTIECHDE
EEM  SEERRIRMER - F&° - X1E
REBEER K FEER Kk A
RARFZEIR

- BEEREANBAER RBERBEE (K
(HER) HEEEREAETRONE R
HBERAMZERERF) ;

- EFENRARB RERMERUKRER
FIAY IR R ER

- EBEECTUEASINZREREREKRELTHN
REIEX

- (UBEBIFRTESZNEREAN > ZiE
EANBIESR EPERE EHRANE
3AMRPAEBVIBILMEREE ; R EHRAIKN
B+ PO SF AR SCEA 5. 5RPTE A B E I
FARTESFHIRIIRRE 5 &

- RRAEEGUAERR/BENEENHEMEA
EYSE R

RAZEERELESEFERT —REBRBRK
SRR RN BN EREBII REMN TMEES
RHMEEEZ M-

S ERERAT
—z-—geg 071



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELRHRS

The individual attendance records of each Director at the
physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and at the general meeting
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set

out below:

FHFEEFE BEREEE #
LEEEERUKRERTRR

FECERETIUNT ¢

BE_Z_ —F+_A=+—HIEFE &=

MZ= ST KRiE
REZ @R H

Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure

Name of Director Board
BEfy g3
Executive Directors BTES
Ms. Hou Wei E 1515
Mr. Liu Xianxiu AEFLE 15/15
Mr. Yang Baikang BRERE 15/15
Non-executive Director FERTES
Mr. Hou Bo RREE 15/15
Independent non-executive BUFRTES

Directors
Mr. Ye Yihui ERERE 15/15
Mr. Ho Hin Yip miT$Rs 15/15
Mr. Hou Lianchang FERELE 15/15
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group's
state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and in accordance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The Group has selected appropriate accounting policies and
has applied them consistently based on prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates. The Board considers that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future and not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may affect the business of the Group or cast
doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors with
respect to financial reporting are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure the Group
maintains a sound and effective internal control and risk
management system. However, risk-taking is an inherent
element of the Group's business and operation. The Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also designed
to safeguard assets against misappropriation and unauthorised
disposition and to manage operational risks. Review of the
Group's internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance control as well as risk management functions.
The Group's risk management framework includes the following

elements:

e identify significant risks in the Group’s operation environment
and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group'’s
business;

e develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
e monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The implementation of risk management framework of the Group
was assisted by the Group's internal audit department which was
responsible for the internal audit function so that the Group could
ensure new and emerging risks relevant to the Group's operation
are promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy of
action plans to manage these risks and monitor and evaluate the
effectiveness of the action plans.
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With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Group: i) carries out
its daily operation with regards to the “Guidance on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong; and ii) closely communicates with its
legal advisor regarding whether the relevant information is likely
to have impact on the price of the shares of the Company or their
trading volume and thus is considered as inside information that
needs to be disclosed pursuant to the Inside Information Provisions

under Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reporting to the Board the
implementation of the Group’s risk management, internal control
policy which among other things, included the determination
of risk factors, evaluation of risk level the Group could take and
effectiveness of risk management measures. During the Reporting
Period, a review was conduct by the Audit Committee together
with the Group's internal audit department in compliance with
Code Provision C.2 of the CG Code. The Board acknowledges
the review of the effectiveness of the risk management and risk
control systems should be an on-going process and plans to
conduct reviews quarterly commencing from the coming financial
year. For resolving defects and weaknesses of internal controls and
accounting procedures of the Group which the external auditors
and the Group’s internal audit department have identified and
reported to the Company, the Company would pay full attention
to the recommendations made by the external auditors and
the Group’s internal audit department and make appropriate
improvements. Based on the reports from the Group's internal
control department and the Audit Committee, the Board considers
the Group's risk management and internal control system is
adequate and effective and the Group has complied with the
provisions on risk management and internal controls as set out in
the CG code.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Wai Siu has been appointed as company secretary of the
Company on 19 February 2019. He fulfills the requirements under
rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of Mr. Lo
Wai Siu is set out in the paragraph headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Lo took no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in compliance with rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The
Company shall in each year hold a general meeting as its annual
general meeting. All general meetings other than annual general
meetings shall be called extraordinary general meetings (“EGM").

Right to convene EGM

Any two or more members of the Company, at the date of the
deposit of a written requisition holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings, shall at all times have the right to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must specify the objects of the meeting,
signed by the requisitionists and deposit it with the Company
Secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 912, 9th Floor, Tai Yau Building, 181
Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionists themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the EGM, but any EGM shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

An EGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Board.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions or requests
for information to the Directors or management through the
communication channel provided in “Contact Us” section in the
Company'’s website at www.jiyiholdings.com or in writing and sent

by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

As a matter of Cayman Islands law, no shareholders are permitted
to propose new resolutions at the general meetings if the
intention to propose the new resolutions is not specified in the
notice convening the general meeting. However, procedures for
proposing candidate(s) for election as Directors at a shareholder’s
meeting are set out in the Corporate Governance section of
the “Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website at

www.jiyiholdings.com.
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EXELRHRS

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company believes that communicating with its shareholders,
investors and other stakeholders by electronic means, particularly
through its website, is an efficient way of distributing information
in a timely and convenient manner. The Company’s website has
a dedicated "Investor Relations” section which publishes the
following information:

the Board, committee charters, key corporate governance
policies and constitutional documents;

— announcements, press and release made to the market and
media;

— annual and half yearly reports and all material information
lodged with the Stock Exchange; and

—  notices of general meetings and explanatory materials, if any.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an overview of
the Group’s management and efforts in terms of maintaining
sustainable developments in respect of environmental, social and
governance aspects.

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group is committed to ethical corporate citizenship and to
promoting sustainability in all of its activities. We demonstrate these
commitments through transparent and responsible management
of our environment and social values. These values respect and
are informed by those of all of our stakeholders, including the
communities with which we interact. The requirements listed below
apply to the Group's operations. Every subsidiary, each manager
and employee, as well as any contractor performing work on behalf
of the Group must support this policy.

The Board is responsible for establishing the Group’s ESG strategies,
and for ensuring the effectiveness in the control of ESG risks and
internal control mechanism. The internal audit department is in
charge of the overall implementation of the Group's ESG strategies.
The Head of internal audit department organized periodical
meeting with other department heads and is responsible for
collecting relevant information on its ESG aspects for preparing the
ESG Report. The Head of internal audit department reports to the
board of directors (the “Board”), which assists in the identification
and evaluation of the Group’s ESG risks and the effectiveness of
the internal control mechanism. The Head of internal audit also
examines and evaluates the Group's performances in different areas
such as environment, safety production, labour standards, and
product responsibilities in the ESG aspects.
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RIE-HERELRS

Scope of reporting
Reporting framework

This report has been prepared in compliance with Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)
— "Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and is
presented under two categories, namely environmental and social.

For the Group's corporate governance practices, please refer to
pages 60 to 78 for the section “Corporate Governance Report”
contained in this annual report.

Reporting period

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Contact us

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions
and suggestions on our sustainability initiatives. You can
provide valuable advice in respect of this Report or the Group’s
performances in sustainable development by post at Unit 912, 9th
Floor, Tai Yau Building, 181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands the importance of developing long-term
relationships and constant dialogues with various stakeholders.
We seek to balance the views and interests of these various
constituencies through constructive conversation. Through
collaborating with the stakeholders, the Group strives to further
improve its ESG initiatives to create greater value for the community
on a continuous basis.

Shareholders

The Company has established a number of efficient channels of
distributing information to its shareholders. The Company regularly
reviews these channels to ensure its effectiveness and ensure
effective and timely dissemination of relevant information to its
shareholders at all times. Shareholders are also encouraged to raise
any question to the Company Secretary.

Customers

The Group is committed to providing quality services and products
to achieve customer satisfaction. Customer feedback is invaluable
as the Group operates in extremely competitive markets. Under
different product categories, we have designated teams serving
key customers. We also have experienced sales attendants on site
who would introduce brands and products based on customers'’
requirement, and assist the customers by offering advice and
guidance on product functions, features, dimensions and
installations. To better serve our customers or potential customers
who do not visit our sales outlets, we have service hotlines and
website for handling inquiries from them.
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RIE-HERELRS

Employees

The Group had 95 employees as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
130). The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice and provides various fringe
benefits to employees. The Group conducts induction training for
all of its new employees and on-going training from time to time
during their employment. The nature of training offered depends
on their specific field of operation. As the Group continues its
expansion, opportunities are always available for hardworking
employees.

Suppliers

The Group is committed to upholding laws and regulations that
are relevant to its business and closely monitor the Group’s policies
relating to maintaining of business ethics.

Government

The Group is mainly engaged in the sale and distribution of
merchandise and the provision of interior design and engineering
services. These activities are mainly subject to the jurisdictions of
laws of the PRC. Along with different government laws, rules and
regulations, each operating company makes tremendous effort to
ensure that it is complied with the relevant laws and regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group’s respective major
operations have participated in the preparation of the Report
to assist the Group in reviewing its operations and identifying
relevant ESG issues and assess the importance of related matters
to its businesses and stakeholders. The Group had compiled
guestionnaires to collect information from relevant departments,
business units, and stakeholders of the Group to identify key ESG
issues.

The Group has taken into account the feedback from relevant
stakeholders in determining the significant ESG aspects covered
in the Report. A summary of significant ESG issues for the Group
based on relative importance is displayed below:

The ESG Reporting Guide
RIR-HERERREIESI

Environmental

RIR-HERELGRS
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Material ESG issues

EXRE -HERERESE

i
A1. Emissions No material emission issues
Al BERYD WmEANBENGEE

A2. Use of Resources
A2. FRER

Paper consumption

MRFERE

Electricity consumption

B

Water consumption

K

A3. The Environmental and Natural Resources
A3. IRIBERKAER

A4. Climate Change
Ad. RIREE

Impacts on the environmental and natural resources
HIRB R RABRNTE

No material climate change issues
TEEARGEECER
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The ESG Reporting Guide
RIR-HEREBERSES

Material ESG issues

EXRE -HEREREE

Social
e
B1. Employment Recruitment, promotion and dismissal
B1. & B B K EE
Compensation and benefits
M @R
B2. Health and Safety Safety management measures
B2. BEHEZE T2 BRI
B3. Development and Training Development and training
B3. EE I ERRIE
B4. Labour Standards Prevention of child and forced labour
B4. T iZ#E BhIEE T K@ lss T
B5. Supply Chain Management Suppliers sourcing and selection mechanism
B5. {HAEHEEIE L 17 7 21 TR e i A
B6. Product Responsibility Product quality and safety
B6. EmETT EmmBERZR
Customer satisfaction
BERmEE
Customer data protection and privacy
ERERHRE KRR
B7. Anti-corruption Anti-corruption
B7. R&S k&5
Whistle-blowing mechanism
B
B8. Community Investments Corporate social responsibility
B8. HEKHE rEHEER

In FY2021, the Group confirmed that it has established appropriate
and effective management policies and internal control systems for
ESG issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents comply with
the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Emissions

Environmental conservation remains a key focus for
the Group. Therefore, we are dedicated to maintaining
our energy consumption and emission at low level in
every single step. The conscientious use of resources
and adoption of best practices across the Group's
businesses underlie its commitment to safeguarding
the environment. The Group encourages environmental
protection, complies with relevant environmental
legislations and promotes awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees.

In light of the nature of business and operation, the
Group does not involve in production of related air,
water, land pollutions, greenhouse gas, hazardous waste
and non-hazardous waste and does not have any direct
or significant impact on the environment and natural
resources. Nevertheless, the Group is aware that the daily
operation of the office and warehouse consume paper,
electricity and water. The Group recognises the impact
caused by these consumptions and the production of
waste. For the past several years, the Group has been
putting emphasis in energy conservation, rolling out IT
initiatives to help decrease unnecessary wastage and
reduce carbon emission and adopting different policies on
use of resources with an aim to reduce the impact on the
environment.
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A2. Use of Resources

The Group is committed to protecting the environment
by enhancing our operational efficiency and energy
efficiency to reduce energy, water, paper and waste by
following initiatives:

Paper

e Using E-fax to minimise printing needs

e Handling documents electronically except for formal

Documents

e Using recycled paper and double-sided printing
except for formal and confidential documents

Paper Consumption: 1.0 tonnes (2020: 0.9 tonnes)

Total consumption of paper of the Group was about 1.0

tonnes (FY2020: 0.9 tonnes).

Electricity

e The use of electricity in the office of the Group must
comply the principles of power saving, safety first,
high efficiency and low consumption

e Light and electronic appliances like air-conditioners,

computers, photocopy machines, printers in
workplace must be turned off when not in use

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Electricity Consumption: 919,858 kwh (FY2020:
695,301 kwh)

Total consumption of electricity at the Group's
headquarter and other subsidiaries in the PRC was
775,360 kWh (kilowatt-hour) (FY2020: 625,192 kWh)
and 144,498 kWh (FY2020: 70,109 kWh) respectively,
which produced about 609 tonnes carbon (FY2020:
491 tonnes carbon) and 113 tonnes carbon (FY2020:
55 tonnes carbon) respectively (Assuming that 0.785 kg
(kilogram) of carbon will be produced by 1 kWh electricity
consumption).

Water

Posting notices at common areas of the office reminding
staff members to reduce water consumption and the
importance of water saving.

Water Consumption: 12,717 m? (FY2020: 15,484 n?)

Total consumption of water at the Group’s headquarter
and other subsidiaries in the PRC was 10,986 m? (cubic
meter) (FY2020: 6,643 m?) and 1,731 m? (FY2020: 8,842
m?3) respectively. The Group had not encountered any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

The consumption of electricity and water reported above
are stated in the total amount of their measuring units.
As the Group is operating a variety of store portfolios,
intensity data (e.g per store or per gross sales area)
were not prepared because such indicators may not be
meaningful.

Stationery and Furniture
Reusing stationery, furniture and equipment among

offices and branches instead of buying new ones or
disposing of such materials.
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Waste

Encouraging recycling through installation of plastic,
paper and aluminum recycling boxes at the headquarters.

Packaging

During the course of the Group’s business operation, it
does not generally involve the use of packaging materials
and thus its impacts on the environment are considered
to be minimal.

The Environment and Natural Resources

During the year, the Group consumed more electricity and
less water. With the resumption of business operation,
as well as sanitization and ventilation systems installed
in the offices as a result of COVID-19, the consumption
of electricity increased by approximately 32%. On the
other hand, with the closures of retail stores and the
Company’s internal policies to control water wastage,
the consumption of water of the Group decreased by
approximately 18% during the year ended 31 December
2021. The Group also continued its campaign to
promote paperless working practice, of which the paper
consumption remained at approximately 1 tonnes during
the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed above, the Group’s business has no
direct or significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

Climate Change

The Group is actively studying the strategies and
policies of the PRC government and agrees that the
environment and climate change will pose risks to the
Group, such as extreme weather that could damage the
Group's operating equipment and increase the Group's
operating costs. In addition, the Group has also identified
opportunities for quality operations, committed to
improving the competitiveness and anticipated potential
risks to resist force majeure.
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B. SOCIAL

B1. Employment

The Group adopts fair and open recruitment mechanism
with all positions being openly recruited regardless of
age, gender, race, nationality, religion, marital status
or disability. Apart from internal transfers, all vacancies
are published to public via different recruiting channels
such as advertisement, online recruitment channels,
recruitment fairs, recruitment through Personnel
Exchange Center and recommendation.

A formal induction together with a tour of the
workplace is provided to all employees on the first day of
employment. This aims to welcome the new employees
and give them a better understanding of the Group. A
brief introduction of employee handbook is provided
to ensure new employees are aware of relevant policies
and code of conduct. Employee handbook together
with various guidelines and benefits are uploaded on
the Group’s intranet network for the access for all staff
members

As at 31 December 2021, the Group complied with the
Labour Law of the PRC, the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and all other
relevant Hong Kong/PRC employment laws and
regulations that deal with working hours and rest period
and had a total of 95 (as at 31 December 2020: 130) full
time employees. Breakdowns of the current employees by
position and gender, age and years of service are set forth
below respectively:
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STAFF DISTRIBUTION BY POSITION AND GENDER
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approximately 26.9% for the Reporting Period as compared
to FY2020. The turnover rate for the management team was
comparatively low which was reflected by the steady number of
senior management employees.

The Group strives to provide a work environment with equal
opportunities regardless of gender and age. As at 31 December
2021, the Group’s male to female employee maintained at nearly
1.2:1. The Group had also recruited from a diverse age group.
Around 73% of our workforce were fell in the age group of 30-50,
while around 11% and 17% were in the age groups of below 30
and 51 or above, respectively.
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B2. Health and Safety

The Group strives to promote safety awareness, improve
occupational environment and reduce occupational risks.
The Group continuously promotes safety awareness among
employees and committed to providing a healthy and safe
working environment for our employees and complies with
the relevant laws and regulations. The Group has dedicated
adequate resources and effort to uphold and improve the
Group's safety management measures in order to reduce the
risks relating to labour safety, such as:

Guidelines

e Adopting and reviewing from time to time written
guidelines and policies for work safety and occupational

health safety

e Ensuring a healthy and safe workplace and compliance
with all relevant workplace health and safety laws
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Insurance

e Maintaining various insurance policies of endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
industrial injury insurance, maternity insurance, and
housing accumulation fund for employees’ compensation
and liability

Other safety Measures
e Conducting fire drill regularly and demonstration of the
use of fire extinguisher so as to enhance the fire safety

awareness

e Providing regular training sessions on accident prevention
and management to the employees

Work Related Injury

e There was no fatality or injury case related to work during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
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B3. Development and Training

The Group believes that investing in employees is essential
to the future strength and success of its business. The Group
conducts various internal trainings for different level of staff
members. There is a general regular training section to all
employees once a month during the morning meeting. For
new employees, they are required to take a one-week training
on specific job duty. The managers of each department will
take turns to different departments to provide training on
product knowledge, sales skills, store management, market
development and business operation etc.

Besides, the Group also encourages and offers the
opportunities for its staff members to take external training
from the suppliers.

All these trainings are designed to enhance and broaden
employees’ skill sets.

The Group encourages communication and interaction of the
staff members with the management. The Group provides a
wide spectrum of informal communication platforms regularly.
There are advisory boxes in the office, and regular experience
sharings between middle and senior management. Through
these gatherings, management is alerted to the issues raised
by staff members and can carry out responsive measures to
improve operations if appropriate. Besides, this enhanced the
sense of belongs of staff members.
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THE PERCENTAGE OF EMPLOYEE TRAINED BY GENDER
AND EMPLOYEE CATEGORY

RIR-HERELGRS
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RIE-HERELRS

Furthermore, the Group arranged some regular and irregular
activities to facilitate as communication platforms for the
management and staff members such as follows:

e Chinese New Year Gathering ("¥TEBEFEE")is the most
prestigious event of the year, attended by all staff in the Group.
Lots of lucky draws and games make the evening full of energy
and excitement. This event provided chances to appreciate all
of the staff members with for the effort during the year.

e The Group believes that happy staff makes happy customers
and endeavor to provide happy working environment. The
Group promotes the relationship between staff to make them
like family members. To promote work life balance, the Group
organised wellness activities like climbing the Baisui Mountain
("BElU"EEREERRBEE) and Tianbaigong Mountain
("RAR"EXEBEIRREE)in the past years.
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B4. Labour Standards

The Group believes in nurturing and developing top talents
regardless of race, gender, age, religious belief, pregnancy,
marital status, family status or disability. The Group also
respects human rights and oppose to the abuse of child labour
or forced labour in our businesses. There is no use of child
labour or forced labour in the Group during the Reporting
Period.

The Group also has policies to ensure all employees and job
applicants enjoy equal opportunities and fair treatment. All
employees have the right to complain in case of discrimination,
suspected misconduct and illegal acts via established
procedures. The Group will investigate each complaint
thoroughly, resolving it fairly and in the strictest confidence.

The Group is also in compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to Labour Contract Law
of the PRC, Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour
and Employment of Children Regulations (chapter, 57B of the
Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong, etc.. Recruitment and
employment are carried out in full compliance with relevant
laws and regulations such as the Employment Ordinance,
Chapter 57, Laws of Hong Kong and the guidelines issued by
the human resources department. The Group did not have any
cases related to child labour or forced labour in this year.
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B5.

B6.

098

Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that sourcing and selection of suppliers
play a crucial part in enriching our brand and product mix.
The assessment on suppliers places emphasis on their market
positioning, image of their brand projected, product design,
production capacity, quality and price range, anticipated
market acceptance of their products, supply lead time,
reliability, creditworthiness and past experiences in conducting
business with them. The Group’s procurement team regularly
looks for quality suppliers in the market, and will engage
new suppliers upon their satisfaction of our internal review
and approval, which includes interview with their responsible
personnel and site visit to the suppliers’ premises.

Product Responsibility

To enhance customers’ satisfaction of the merchandise, the
Group has stringent control over the quality of merchandise.
The Group carefully selects suppliers, and pursuant to the
supply or distribution agreements. The Group’s suppliers shall
ensure the quality of products and may also be required to
provide us with the after-sale services for the products sold
to the Group. The Group conducts inspections on the quality,
measurement and other specifications of the merchandise
before accepting delivery from the suppliers. The Group is
entitled to return or exchange the products to the suppliers
if they are found to be defective or otherwise in unsaleable
condition.
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In general, no products return or exchange by customers is
allowed except for malfunctions of or manufacturing defects
in products. Nevertheless, to foster customer loyalty and
enhance customer satisfaction, the Group may allow product
return or exchange to be made with a valid receipt within
seven days after purchase provided that the merchandise is in
good and saleable condition. The Group also offers product
warranty period of one to three years depending on the
nature of merchandise. During the warranty period, the Group
provides maintenance and repair services to the customers
for free and will also exchange any defective products for
free on the condition that such products have been installed
in accordance with the manual and were used under normal
conditions. Defective products could be returned to the
suppliers for repair or replacement if the relevant supplier is
found to be liable for such defect.

Customer data protection and privacy

In addition, the Group is dedicated to protecting intellectual
property rights as well as consumer data and privacy. Without
the permission of the customers, consumer data will not be
used for publicity or other purposes.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020, the Group has not identified any non-compliance cases
relating to product responsibility.
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B7. Anti-corruption B7. RE5

The Group takes its fraud prevention or anti-corruption
responsibilities very seriously. In addition to the ongoing review
of the effectiveness of the internal control systems, the Group
has established a whistleblowing policy to direct employees to
report to the Group's internal audit department about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Group. The Group
also established policy and guidelines about fraud prevention.
They are Commercial Bribery Control Rule ({7 2 BEE& [ 835
81)), Financial Fraud and Complaint Rule and Fraud Prevention
(FABEEER LSRR FIE D), Inspection and Reporting
Procedures ARBEERBEIEF)) and Management
Override Prevention Policy ({Ff L B2 B EEER ).

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020, no legal case regarding corruption was brought against
the Group or its employees. Also, there were no material cases
of noncompliance with laws and regulations on anti-money
laundering in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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BS. HERE

B8. Community Investments

The awareness of corporate social responsibility has been
increasing in the market. The Group realises the importance of
different stakeholders’ expectations. In achieving long term,
stable and healthy business prosperity and growth, the Group
strives to balance the interests between stakeholders and is
committed to improve the community’s wellbeing.

The Group encourages the employees to play an active role in
the communities where they live and work. In the past years,
the Group was engaged in different events with an aim to
fulfill its social responsibility. For example, in the past few years,
the Group launched “Jiyi Inspirational Student Fund” (58— &h
EBN2E) for the poor but outstanding students in Meizhou
Jiaying University (I8N & EKE), aiming at providing
better environment for those hardworking and ambitious
students to achieve their dreams.

The Group will continue to explore other means to contribute
more to the environment and strive to facilitate the building of
a healthy and sustainable society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

REPORTING INDEX

RIF-HEREBRRSRSI

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPls) Description Section/Declaration
FEHBEE-—K

B RAREANISR S5 EA 4 L

A. Environmental

A. IR

A1: Emissions

Al T BEEY)

General Disclosure *A1. Emissions™*

— AR R *A1 BRI

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data | *A1. Emissions*

B 24 RS 1RAT

HE B8 K AR R BRI BUE

*A1BE YD

KPI'A1.2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where

Not applicable to the Group's

appropriate, intensity business
RS A IS 1RA1.2 RERBASIIEER WER) BE NERAR R ERBAYER

KPI'A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced and, where

Not applicable to the Group’s

appropriate, intensity business
RA SR AERGE1RA1.3 FRELEEREEMEER WER) BE NBRARAEBNER

KPI'A1.4

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity

*A1. Emissions*

BREMIEIRA1 4

FRELESERYEER WER) BE

*A1 B>

KPI'A1.5

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved

*A1. Emissions*

RIS IZA1 .5

5 R R HE I & B+ it K2 P S AR SR

*A1BEYD*

KPI'A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved

*A1. Emissions*

B REMISIRA1.6

HILREAEREZERYNG A REELE
AR RS AR

*A1 B
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HERERES

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHE-Em-—%
B K RRENIEE B A - P L

A2: Use of Resources

A2 [ ERER

General Disclosure

*A2. Use of Resources*

—ARINEE

*A2 BEIRER

KPI'A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total and intensity

*A2. Use of Resources*

B2 AR RIS 1RA2.1

RERMADWEE KR NEREREBEEREE

*A2 BEIRER*

KPI'A2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity

*A2. Use of Resources — Water*

B AERIERA2.2

BIEKEBREE

*A2 BEIRER—7K*

KPI'A2.3

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved

*A2. Use of Resources —
Electricity*

BRI 5 1RA2.3

AR 168 B M 51 B R RIS AR

*A2. BRIEA—B*

KPI'A2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved

*A2. Use of Resources — Water*

FREIERA2.4

I SKEVE R KR R B R REE > UREA R
K i 51 B R PR AS B SR

*A2 BIRFER—7K*

KPI'A2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced

*A2. Use of Resources —
Packaging *

BB IE1RA2.5

M AEEMHNEENR MEBR) SEEE
(A=)

*A2 BRER—EiE*
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
B E K RRERIEE #REA - - LT

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 I IRIBERBARER

General Disclosure

—ARINEE

KPI'A3.1

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them

*A3. The Environment and
Natural Resources*

R S4B WIS 1ZA3. 1

MM RS HRIBEBE R RAERENE
RNEEERZENTE

TERE

*A3IRIBERBRER*

A4: Climate Change

A4 RIREME

General Disclosure

—ARINEE

KPIA.4.1

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them

*A4. Climate Change*

RARENIEIZA 4.1

B CEMPIEEHETAEEXENERRIE
HEEE > REHITH

*Ad R
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HERERES

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures

and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TE@EEE—R

HERABEAENMIER s EA 3L

B. Social

B. #&

B1: Employment

B1: {E(®

General Disclosure *B1. Employment*
—ARINEE *B1 B~

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age *B1. Employment

group and geographical region

— STAFF DISTRIBUTION BY
POSITION AND GENDER

— DISTRIBUTION BY AGE

— DISTRIBUTION BY YEARS OF
SERVICE*

B RAERETRB .1

MR EEEE - FRER R R B DRIB T4
=

*B1.1E{%

- BRI MERE D
- BRERE D

- BRBEEE D

KPIB1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region

*B1. Employment*

RS AE WIE1ZB1.2

Bth) s FheilR Rt EE DRESRE X

*B1.fE %>
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
B E K RRERIEE #REA - - LT

B2: Health and safety

B2 . EEHRZLTS

General Disclosure

*B2. Health and Safety*

—ARINEE

B REREZ 2

KPIB2.1

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

R S4B WIE1ZB2.1

B T /ERRATISE B9 A BUR HE 5

KPI'B2.2

Lost days due to work injury

B2 AR A5 17B2.2

HTHRERN TIERE

KPIB2.3

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored

*B2. Health and Safety*

B SR AR A5 1RB2.3

B FT SRRV B R B R R R 2 48T > LU BRI
TRERGE

Iy

~

*B2 .=

\

i
it
i

B3. Development and training

B3. E&IEI

General Disclosure

*B3. Development and Training™*

—ARINEE

*B3 8 & ;e dEE)l

KPI'B3.1

The percentage of employee trained and employee
category

*B3. Development and
Training*

B S AR A5 1%B3. 1

RESEREDHZIEER DL

*B3 8 ;e iEE)l

KPI' B3.2

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category

*B3. Development and
Training*

RS AE R FE1%B3.2

Rith EEERE D HNEREETMZIT
R

*B3.2% B K15l
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHE-Em-—%
B K RRENIEE B A - P L

B4: Labour Standards

B4 : BT T

General Disclosure *B4. Labour Standards*
— AR5 *B4. B T 1Z#E*
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment *B4. Labour Standards*

practices to avoid child and forced labour

B SR AR 2 FE12B4.1 g st EEIBANERLUB R E TREHISH T | *B4.55 TiR%E*
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices | *B4. Labour Standards*

when discovered

B2 4R A5 1%B4.2 B RIFRER B R HRERIB R REIRAY | *B4.55 TiR%Ex
B
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
B E K RRERIEE #REA - - LT

B5: Supply Chain Management

B5 : B E IR

General Disclosure

—HRIRE
KPI'B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region *B5. Supply Chain
Management*

3 S AR 28 F5 42 B5. 1 7t e 8 oA EE 2R *B5. 1 & 5% B I *

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, | *B5. Supply Chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being Management*
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored

A S AR A $E1EB5.2 HatA AR R EEERE S mENTHRIES *B5. MR B IR~
NHtEEEE « UK B REAINNITRERS A

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify *B5. Supply Chain

BYIER) > R ABRAIT M EER T 0

environmental and social risks along the supply chain, | Management*
and how they are implemented and monitored.
A S 4R X35 1RB5.3 H AR A RS EIRMNNIRIE Rt G ERE | “BS.MAEEEIE

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote *B5. Supply Chain
environmentally preferable products and services Management*
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

A A XI5 1%B5.4 BT REHREREESRIRRE QKRR | *BSHEEEIE
1BA) > LU BRI T R EEE 5 7%
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPls) Description Section/Declaration
TEHE-Bm-—%
B E K RRERIEE B - - L

B6: Product Responsibility

B6 : EmBE

General Disclosure

*B6. Product Responsibility*

—ARINEE

*B6. EmBE*

KPI B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons

*B6. Product Responsibility*

B SR AR A5 1%B6. 1

CENCEXERBHTEZ 2 REREHRME
WHEYE D EE

*B6.EmE*

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints *B6. Product Responsibility*
received and how they are dealt with

A R AE W 518B6.2 RN B ARSI SR BB LU B 75 0% *B6.E an = (X~

KPI B6.3 Description and practices relating to observing and *B6. Product Responsibility*
protecting intellectual property rights

A 4R X35 1%B6.3 i 2t B A o T (R PR R oL EE R R R RY 1B 51 *B6.EE an &= 1~

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall *B6. Product Responsibility*

procedures

B S AE 2 F51%B6.4

EHEEREBEKREREBIWREI

*B6.EmET*

KPI'B6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored

*B6. Product Responsibility*

RS 4E 2 F51%B6.5

3 B MR PR A PR SR » LURAB R AT
BESE

*B6.EmEE*
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HERELRS

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
case

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
FEHB EBEH-—K

KERABENIER e )i L

B7: Anti-corruption

B7 : R&ES

General Disclosure *B7. Anti-corruption*
— RN ER *B7.REI5*

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt -

B 2 4R A5 1RB7 .1

REBESHARETARNEESRETECEGCHE
S ERERFE B B Ko ER A

environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- *B7. Anti-corruption*
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored

R SR AR A HE1EB7.2 B a2 MR AERAFIT R B *B7.R&EJ5*
abzs

KPIB7.3 Description of practices used to promote *B7. Anti-corruption*

BSR4 FE1%B7.3

Rt EREHERREES RIRARERMRBER
BB DURABRI R IT REE 5%

*B7.REI5*
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHE-Em-—%
B K RRENIEE B A - P L

B8: Community Investments

B : &K E

General Disclosure *B8. Community Investments™*
— AR BR *B MBI E*
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, *B8. Community Investments*

environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport)

A SR AR A HE17B8.1 EIEREE WHE RESE - HIEXR & *B8 LB E*
=R &I )=

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the *B8. Community Investments™*
focus area

A S AR A $51FB8.2 AEIHBFAEMNEIR Q1225 RE) *Be it @ E*
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 3L #% B 3R B

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiyi
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group”) set out on pages 124 to 295, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

The key audit matters we identified are:

1) Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract
assets; and

2) Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design and
building engineering services

| I % D R S

ERHNER

KMEREEEGSMAGHEMNEEES
R (TBBEFTER]) ETH - HAEZF
ER T AENEEEERRS LA E 5
REMBREAENSTI ST IFE—TE@
e RFBF B G SEMBVE XSG S5HENE
fasrR (TsrB) - MBI SE£EE TS
RETHBRITHEMNEXEREE - HMBGE"
RPFMESHNES RERTERBEM ST
PR RRMHEER-

FAREStFIR

FREBASEZRERMANEERHE DAY
KPR EMBRRNEFRAEENFR &
SEERREHRMAEABRROMBRRKE
NERRBETREN -ZAMATEHXFRRIE
HEBNER-

RMEHFERETFES

1) EBZRWREUARGHEEZRESHE;
i

2) EARGTAEERIBRBEAHIRENK
AFESS
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B 3L #% B 3R B

Key audit matter
RRREHRE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMANE A NARIZMRENSFIE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

B R BWRIAU R & OEE 2 REFSE

We identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter
due to the significance of trade receivables and contract
assets to the Group's consolidated financial position and
the involvement of significant management judgements
in evaluating the expected credit losses ("ECL") of the
Group's trade receivables and contract assets.
RME#NEZBRURIERGNEE Z RETG
ARAREREE REAREBZRUAREBEBRENE
EYH BERZGEMBRIMESBEKR BNGT
it EEBCEZRURBERENEEZRRAGEE
B8 (FRHREERE) I REREEEH -

1 1 4 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
trade receivables and contract assets included:

BB ZRIRIBRENEE Z RETEFTETZIE
FaiE !

e Obtaining an understanding of the key controls on how
the management estimates the ECL allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets;
TREERBMEZRRNEBERENEETRBES
BEEENEEZES;
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Key audit matter
PR EtHRIE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMANE A NARIZMRESFIAE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

BRRWREURSHEEZRENYE (@

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net trade
receivables and contract assets amounted to
approximately RMB97,699,000 and RMB350,521,000,
which  represented approximately 8% and 29% of
total assets of the Group, respectively. The management
of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of
trade receivables and their related contract assets based
on individual assessment for those which had been
determined as significant balance or credit impaired
whereas the remaining balance are assessed by means
of provision matrix through groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns, after considering internal
credit ratings of trade receivables and their related
contract assets, ageing, repayment history and/or past
due status and forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. Estimated losses are based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and their related contract assets and are
adjusted for forward-looking information.
RZZ2_—H+"RB=+—H> EEEZESEK
MIEUREHNEERFERNAREE7,699,0007T K A
R #350,521,00070 > DAl EEEBEEEZ48%
K29% - BEEREEEREBEERAARENAELREE
BEZ B 5 RIGIER AN E E 28557
G EZRUREBEREEAENEEZ2ATERE
ERESER MREA B EBES L LTS
REZRWARIBEREEASOEENAEEETR
IREC BRI R/ AR RSB EEHER
MHENANE RN P ESHIRIEMERE B BLEL
REEERNSEEFAETOME - GEHERHERTE
BERWAREREEBSOEERSFHRNATE
ZRFENENREL iR R ME B -

Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in identifying of significant or credit impaired trade
receivables and contract assets and grouping of the
remaining balance of trade receivables and contract
assets into different categories in the provision matrix
with reference to ageing, repayment history and/or past
due status of trade receivables and contract assets;
EREEEANAERELREEREZEZREI
MEREHNEEURGEZRINHRIERENEELR
BN ABEBERAEEN ZAERHE BEh2
ZERBNARBERENEEZRK - EBREL R,
g3 BAAR O 5

Assessing the reasonableness in determining i)
estimated loss rate applied for the significant or credit
impaired trade receivables and their related contract
assets, ii) estimated loss rate applied in each category
in the provision matrix and iii) forward-looking
information, with reference to financial information of
debtors (if available), default rates and recovery rates
published by a credit rating agency, historical default
rates and settlement records of debtors, ageing analysis
of trade receivables and contract assets and current
economic conditions;

FMEEEUTEEZ BN HBERANARBERBE LR
EEREZESRIEREBRERBENEE ZEE
0B EBEREERERZ (5T EBEER KiiiAl
BEUHEE BR2ZEBAZYBEN (HaHE
RH) EBNRKREETREBAMZUEBIEREBEFA
ZBFERAXEREMNCR BEZRERREBERENE
2 2 BREe DT LU B AT IR IR
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Key audit matter
RRREHRE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMANE A NARIZMRENSFIE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

BREWREURSHEEZRENYE (@)

As disclosed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised an allowance for
lifetime ECL amounted to approximately RMB1,997,000
and RMB576,000 of trade receivables and contract
assets during the year ended 31 December 2021,
respectively. The accounting policies and estimation
uncertainty in relation to the impairment assessment
of trade receivables and contract assets are set out in
Notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
MG EMBRRMFI0MEE BE-_S - —F
+ZRA=+—HBLFE> BSEERIBZEWIIE
RENEEZL2HAEREERBEREEDIINAAR
#1,997,0007t & A R #576,0007T © F B B 5 FE LR
BHhENEEZBENGZ G BR RGN EE
MR RIEI ARG IR RN EE3Kk4
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Testing the integrity of information used by
management to estimate the ECL allowance of
individual debtors and develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables and contract assets ageing
analysis as at 31 December 2021, on a sample basis,
by comparing individual items in the analysis with the
relevant sales agreements, sales invoices and other
supporting documents;
R EERE RN AsHENEB A ZERESES
EEERTEREERBZEN 2 TEY  AAER
BRERESRERERSHNEEN _E-_—F+_A4
=+—BZR&EDT BB TP Z@ERIER
BB E R HEERRAMSTR XY ;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer and
obtaining an understanding of their scope of work and
terms of engagement; and
TEBUISEREXMGSMZBEEN - ENRE
B T RETFHEREEER ; &

Challenging the valuation technique and
reasonableness of the significant inputs used by the
management and the valuer in the valuations based on
information obtained from the independent sources.
BEEBILBMNRENEZEN BREERE G
EELERPMREER EZRERBAME IE
Mo
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Key audit matter
FREFE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANEAMAREEREE SR

Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design and building engineering services
ERRREETRERBESHITENMATES

We identified the revenue recognition on contract work  Qur procedures in relation to the revenue recognition on
of interior design and building engineering services asa  contract work of interior design and building engineering
key audit matter due to the involvement of significant

management estimation in measuring the progress

services included:
EMMEANR A RBEELIRERBENIRE Z WA
for performance obligations of incomplete services  #{5>12FEAIE :
contracts.

AR BRTARBENZBOEEEEIRER .

Obtaining an understanding of the key controls over

BEE S HAFEBNEANRT RBRELRERS
BMIREZWAEDAMBESEE

The Group recognised contract revenue by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations at the end of the reporting
period which measured based on the proportion of
contract costs incurred for work performed to date
relative to the estimated total contract costs. The
recognition of contract revenue therefore involves
significant management’s judgements and estimation
of the progress and outcome of the project, particularly
in estimating the budgeted contract costs based on
the agreements, quotations or other correspondences
from time to time provided by the subcontractors,
suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of the
management.
EEEZEZNREBRTWENBNETEEZER
BNRA EREEREREBITIFELEZSHIM
AEHGS SO EABEZLEASE AL #ES
MRAS R EEEBHNEBEREERGRZERFE R
TEaJr’TExefﬁuﬁE%m“‘JEZZIK HTRBE2EEA
Zn BB HEENEEB R RRME 2% |RES
HT&LDHL/UE’Z S IRfE 2 A8 Br {5t o

the processes that the management performed in
relation to the estimation of total contract costs and the
determination of the status of completion of the service
contracts;

THREEEM AT SN REREERTENZ
SERARPTET 2 B F P 2 RS ;

Understanding from project managers about the status
of completion of selected contracts at the end of
reporting period;
mMIERKIETHREREE
o

BN KREARZ TTRAA
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Key audit matter
RRREHRE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMANE A NARIZMRENSFIE

Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design and building engineering services (Continued)

EARFRERIRRB AN ITENKRARSE @)

Construction revenue and contract assets are estimated
by using the percentage of completion method, which
is calculated based on the costs incurred on each
construction contract at the end of the reporting period
divided by the total estimated costs for the contract and
then multiplied by the estimated construction revenue
expected to be earned.
BREWARESNEENDERTHB DL EZETHE
O ERATERSEESNNREBEREELEZR
KERUAEH Z (5t AARER > B SR ATRHAR BREX 2 1
ST AGTE

As disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the revenue recognised from provision
of interior design and building engineering services
amounted to approximately RMB86,548,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2021. The accounting policies
and estimation uncertainty in relation to the revenue
recognition on contract work are set out in Notes 3 and
4 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
MR B M B MRS E RBEE S " —
T ZA=+—HIEFERIKRBREEANRT RE
RIRERBZ WA ARTES6,548,0007t - BRAGHY
TRWAER Z 5T BER Rt AREE M DRI
fr e R R EE3 R4
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Evaluating the reasonableness of estimated total
contract costs to be incurred by checking against
the agreements, quotations, invoices or other
correspondences from time to time provided by
subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved, on a
sample basis; and

FRmE2EAPDOE  HEENHEEERE
R % RE EZHEHMBA > AT T
EEZEFHRENMNEAZEEN &

Evaluating the reasonableness of the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligations
of service contracts by comparing the percentage
calculated based on costs incurred at the end of the
reporting period against that calculated based on
confirmations from surveyors, if any, on a sample basis,
and investigating any significant differences identified.
MRS RENBITIRBENBNEEZEEL
BEM HEARLEBRRBRGHARFAEENSSE
ZESLEBERANEMZER WH) T8 Z28D
tE > U B E R RIFf A 2 ERERE
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 31 March
2021.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors of the Company in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

122

conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group’s audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to elimiate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yeung Man Sun

Practising Certificate Number: PO7606
24/F, Siu On Centre,

188 Lockhart Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERmRhAtEZERESR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ®ZEZE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HILEE

2021 2020
—E-—F “ETE
NOTES RMB’000 RMB 000
o= AREFiT NEEFT
Revenue N 5 458,296 446,915
Cost of sales THE A (430,716) (390,844)
Gross profit EF 27,580 56,071
Other income HA A 7 21,105 16,516
Other gains and (losses) Ht s & (8518) 8 7,303 (4,160)
Distribution and selling expenses DIEREERE (5.433) (11,166)
Administrative expenses THRAZ (14,758) (24,748)
Reversal of/(provision for) FEHEERBEET 2
impairment losses under WEEE () #E,
expected credit loss model, net JRRE 10 (6,162) 6,900
Finance costs BAFS Al A 9 (17,846) (26,194)
Profit before tax PRI A F 11,789 13,219
Income tax expense T 11 (3,925) (2,759)
Profit for the year EREF 2 7,864 10,460
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERmkAMZARTR

Other comprehensive income:

Item that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:

Gain on revaluation upon
transfer of property,
plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to
investment properties, net of
related income tax

[tem that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
— Basic (RMB cents)
— Diluted (RMB cents)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Hth 2 mK s

T EER LR m
ZIHEE

R~ B R s B U &
FTHRREEERERE
Y ES IS Yl G
NERAERAPTIEIR

HERIEERN R E R
BH :

MEBINEFREEZ
bE S = 2R

FAHEMEBE W
HERFR1SIR

FAZENmBE
LU & A IS ERER -

—KRBEHEAA
—IFER B

LX—F%EICTEEEW%EH&E%

ABER

—RREHEBA

—IFEREm
SREF

—BR (ERARES)

—B% GRARES)

NOTES
HfaE

15

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020

—E-—fF =l 2= 3

RMB*000 RMB’000

AREFiT NEET T

2,046 1,125

(1,173) 3,060

873 4,185

8,737 14,645

7,559 9,911

305 549

7,864 10,460

8,432 14,096

305 549

8,737 14,645

0.89 1.37

0.88 1.33
E—ERERAS

—s-—geg 125



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mAEMBRRR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 W-Z_—F+_B=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Goodwill

Prepayment for acquisition of
investment properties

Deposits and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Contract assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Amounts due from related parties
Trade and other receivables
and prepayments
Contract assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Restricted cash
Bank balances and cash

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables and
other payables

Bank borrowings

Other borrowings

Lease liabilities

Convertible loan notes

Contract liabilities

Income tax payables
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NOTES

KtaE

16
17
18
19

23(f)
23

22
32

21
26

23
22

20
24
25

27
28
28
31
29
30

2021 2020
—E-— “EIEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ANEEFT
25,009 33,027
7,605 12,986
62,500 61,130
53,208 53,208
33,977 35,810
42,893 -
1,178 -

- 1,363

6,601 2,886
232,971 200,410
4,280 15,920
934 918
580,511 497,277
350,521 342,807
- 18,087

2,182 =
31,958 4,713
970,386 879,722
1,203,357 1,080,132
97,609 111,739
267,734 56,000
50,602 8,356
181 1,967
37,110 56,248
1,576 10,398
24,971 18,030
479,783 262,738




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

REEERE
HWEEARHAR
ERBAR
RITER

HE&R
EETRTBE R

BEFE

RS Rz it

R

(G

T AEGER AL

IRz tEm

fE 4R ER

The consolidated financial statements on pages 124 to 295 were

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ms. Hou Wei

Rt
DIRECTOR

EZF

& A, LA
FEMBRKRAR
AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 R-_E_—Z+_H=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—fF T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
Kzt AREFT NEETF T
490,603 616,984
723,574 817,394
28 4,404 113,223
31 53 8,819
32 21,239 20,911
25,696 142,953
697,878 674,441
33 75,223 69,002
621,777 604,866
697,000 673,868
878 573
697,878 674,441

F124E 205 BN S EREKE

A — B — —

Y ——=Fc—ecs

FoA=+T—HESEEHERFEETIE I

HTIEEAREE

Mr. Liu Xianxiu

ABESBKE
DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mAEEHmEZHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BE_Z_—F+_B=t+—HILEE

Convertible
Contingent  loan notes Property Share-hased Non-
Share Share  consideration equity Other  revaluation  Translation ~ payments Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
ARRER N
% RERE NEEH BRI
Bt ROER  REER i Rt i ERGR i EEHE  REE S FEREZ  BROE
RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO0 RMBO0 RMBO00 RMB000
ARBFR  AERTT  ABEFR  AEBTT ABRFn  AREFT  ABRFn  ARBFR  AERTT  ABRFR  ARETT  ABRFT  ARETR
(Noted) (Note ) (Note )
) () 5,
At1 January 2020 58,208 363,136 = 2811 (54,850) 26,285 o4 42% 16,866 118346 535,562 - 535,562
Profitfor the year Ria - - - - - - - - - 9911 991 549 10460
Other comprehensive income for the year - EREM2ENE - - - - - 115 3,060 - - - 4185 - 4185
Total comprehensive income for the year - A2 ENGEE - - - - - 1125 3,060 - - 9911 14,096 549 14,645
Aviing fom acquistion of subsidaries  EEEREHEAR
(Note 36) 7630 47,306 3577 = = = = = = = 88,513 214 88,531
Conversion of convertible loan notes
(Note29) 3,146 30,990 S (985) S = S & & 985 34136 - 34136
Maodification of convertble loan notes
Note 29) - - - (1,798) - - - - - 1798 - - -
Exercise of share options (Aote 3373 18 13 - - - - - (26) - - 125 - 125
Lapse of share options (Nore 34) = = = = = = - (1,499) - 1499 - - -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payments Aoze 34) - - - - - - - 1436 - - 1436 - 143%
Transfer to statutory reserve (Aote) - - = = = = - - [ (424) = = =
At 31 December 2020 -
T2B=1-H 69,002 441,565+ BT 28* (54,850)* 27410 3504* 4.207* 17,290 132,115+ 673,868 513 674,441
At 1 January 2021 69,002 441,565+ 3577* 28 (54,850)* 27410% 3504* 4207* 17,290 132,115+ 673,868 513 674441
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 7559 7559 305 7864
Other comprehensive income for the year - EREM2ENE - - - - - 2046 (11m) - - - 873 - 873
Total comprehensive income for the year  ER2ENEHE - - - - - 2,046 (1,173) - - 7559 8432 305 8737
Issue of consideratoin shares flore 35~ % 4331 24,144 (3357) - - - - - = = (450 = 4502)
Conversion of convertible loan notes 7
Note29) 1890 17,019 = (10) = = = = = = 188%9 - 18899
Lapse of share options (Aote 4) Bl - - - - - - - (1,775) - 1,775 - - -
Recognition of equity-setled share-based  BEsBLURA: ft
payments flote 34) BERZAEH - - - - - - - 03 - - 0 = 0
Transfer to statutory resenve (oze/ BRTITRE( - - - - - - - - 602 (602) - - -
At31 December 2021 i 3
T2B=1-H 7523 48338 = 18* (54,850 29,456* 2351 2,735* 17892* 140,847* 697,000 878 697,878
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of ~ * ZEHBEREBEGREMBRRARANG S H
approximately RMB621,777,000 (2020: RMB604,866,000) in the HBHIANRYE621,777,0007c (CE_ZF : AR

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Note:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Island (2009 Revision),
the share premium of the Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to
be paid and the Company is able to pay debts as they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.

Other reserves

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, other reserves mainly comprise (i)
the capital injection from its equity holders of the Company and net
accumulative effect of deemed distributions and contributions between
the Company and its equity holders of the Company since 2014, of
approximately RMB91,523,000 in total, and offsetting (i) the aggregate
deemed cost of the consideration amounting to RMB145,450,000
paid to the Company for the issuance of 9,999 new shares to the
shareholders upon the completion of the Reorganisation as detailed in

the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

According to the relevant rules and regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"), each of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries shall
transfer 10% of their net income after tax, based on the subsidiary’s
PRC statutory accounts, as statutory reserves, until the balance
reaches 50% of the respective subsidiary’s registered capital. Further
appropriations can be made at the directors’ discretion. The statutory
reserves can be used to offset any accumulated losses or convert into
paid-up capital of the respective subsidiary.

ez -

TREmEHR

BE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HLEE

fetn s &

RIERESFEARE CEENFETLE) AR
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HhiE R

N_E - —FR_E_EF+_B=+—H"
HMEE T B0EI) - —NEMURA QT
HRAENTERAABTEARABRBTFEAZ
MREDRERHEENRAFEEGENARKE
91,523,0007% > MK ()R BT BB RRE
179,999 # B D T 2 11 F A A Bl BIAR ERE K
HH AR 145,450,000t GERAATHE
“E-RFE+_A=Z+—HIEEENER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Provision for write-down of inventories

Finance costs

Provision for/(reversal of)
impairment losses under
expected credit loss model, net

Interest income

Loss from changes in fair value
of investment properties

Write-off of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on modification of
convertible loan notes

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories
Increase in trade and
other receivables
Increase in contract assets
Decrease in trade and bills payables
and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Income tax paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED
IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Repayment of loan receivables from third
parties

Interest received

Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
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2021 2020
% —ETEH
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ANEBFT
11,789 13,219
6,668 7,210
147 1,669

686 152
17,846 26,194
6,162 (6,900)
(19,315) (15,651)
731 560

10 6,535
(5.360) (2,796)
(2,000) -
(685) -

303 1,436
16,982 31,628
10,954 (2,170)
11,536 9,691
(8,286) (73,448)
(12,681) (23,648)
(8,822) 2,663
9,683 (55,284)
(109) (1,000)
9,574 (56,284)
(374) (4,659)

- 4,505
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Net proceeds from exercising of share
options
Repayment of bank borrowings
Proceeds from other borrowings
Interest paid for bank borrowings
Interest paid for convertible loan notes
Repayment of lease liabilities
— interest portion
Repayment of lease liabilities
— principal portion

NET CASH FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
1 JANUARY
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
31 DECEMBER, represented by
bank balances and cash

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Notes

s

MEEE
RITERPIERIE
TERERE L REFIEREE
33(a)

BIERITIE
HMEMEMRIE
BITEREAFR
MR ERZBEENHE
BEHEESR

—HMEE D
BEHEER

A 1)
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RERBEEEMIEM, (FL)
B
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INEEE BB

®+ZR=+—-HB2
RERREEEN
MERITHEBRRAERT

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
—EC—% —ETTEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ABEFT ANEEFT
44,380 175,296

= 125

(57,800) (111,677)
41,959 =

(9,798) (9,641)

= (6,928)

= (1,125)

(751) (7,641)
17,990 38,409

27,269 (17,764)
4,713 24,209

(24) (1,732)

31,958 4,713

E—ERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

GENERAL

Jiyi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The controlling shareholder of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as to the “Group”) is Xinling
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI") which is wholly-owned by Ms. Hou Wei. The address
of the Company’s registered office was changed from Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO. Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1108, Cayman Islands to Windward 3, Regatta Office Park,
P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands
with effect from 16 December 2020 and the address of its
principal place of business is unit 912, 9/F, Tai Yau Building,
181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 42.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") while the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") to enable the
shareholders of the Company to have a more accurate picture
of the Group's financial position and performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S B 5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:
Amendments to Interest rate benchmark reform
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4

and HKFRS 16

— phase 2

In addition, the Group has early applied Amendment to HKFRS
16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2021.

The application of the amendment to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

ERMIERMBRSEN (FEM
BIREEN) REETE (@)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

ERFEERERZMITEEMBRS
FRREEETE

AEBHRREFEA T ERMERR

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet EUN I BB B REEL R HEET
effective: P/
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to Conceptual Framework' EAMBRSENER  HRoMERZRER

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and the related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5(2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use'

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract!'
Amendment to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018 - 2020 cycle!

I Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material

impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which includes all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

3.
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that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
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The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the end
of each reporting period. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (l.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:—

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

e the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders

of the investee;

e  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance. All
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
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one or more of the three elements of control described in the NLERFE AEESENMIGHHESE
accounting policy for subsidiaries below. FHEEHR o

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply
an optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of
the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred
tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of
activities and assets is determined not to be a business and no
further assessment is needed.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9.
Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of
HKFRS 9 is measured at fair value at each reporting date with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement
as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units. Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units (group of
cash-generating units) is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit (group of cash-generating
units) and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXEHEE#E

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) ERGHWA (&)

Variable consideration ATERE

For contracts that contain variable consideration (variation MEIUSENE BEIREEIE 25
order of construction work), the Group estimates the amount HWME > REEEEERMTERAER

of consideration to which it will be entitled using either (a)
the expected value method or (b) the most likely amount,
depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Existence of significant financing component (Continued)

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the services is less than one year, the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.

For contracts where the Group transferred the associated
goods or services before payments from customers in which
the Group adjusts for the promised amount of consideration
for significant financing components, the Group applies a
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. The Group recognises interest income during the
period between the payment from customers and the transfer
of the associated goods or services.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE @

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of office premises and retail stores that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments
to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent
concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE®

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for
a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e  the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE @

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

154

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in Hong Kong dollars to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. RMB) are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in translation
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
translation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
in relation to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in relation
to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE @

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based payments
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based payments
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be transferred
to share premium.

Share options granted to customers/consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

158

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
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rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment MIFEBHEEHEREYEMBEI 2B
property is depreciable and is held within a business model ABAEENENEBRENTER A

whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.
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For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing M EBERERNERRIBEAREER
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of- A EEEZHERZ ZELERIEM

use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below). Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land under
HKFRS 16 or prepaid lease payments under HKAS 17) at the
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the property, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes and investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, corporate assets are allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.

A MBRRME

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

EXEFHEE @)

ME -BERRBEUARERAERE (HE
BRSM) iHME (2

WEE (IREELEENL 2 WREIEEEG
SHORHEREE IEE (RREELE
i) Z AREE R E H P U El 588 o BLoR BE
REEBR—BZEENEKERTELE
UZABEENRRAEEMDME > &&E
EtBReELEBMAUEN ZREE (B
NEEZRTELBEUAENZATE
HABEERDIREE RRSEEEN
MRz el 2 - IS D AR E IR
BADEREBEBELIUR D EAEEZK
EE Q@A) > ARRLEAIRBEZEMS
EENREELBEUAMNZIREEDER
EHMEE -BERBEASRLOEER
HAFERHEME WrEtE) ~HER
BE WHEE KT URSER/E) -5
ToEEBEEZREBESEZLEAD
REZBUZHMWEENIRESEELEQ
B 7\ o B (B RS R R B S 1B m R RESE o

HEBELOREBE IEE JHEREE
TEBEAUNHEEELEMMER) ZREEE
MEHPWEIEZRZ LB Gt IE
FHIEBEMZ REEFAEBHEE (NRE
EEBANREEEBMARN) RBESF
EREHEDAEBEREE ZREE /o
BEE 2 O BN BF iC 18 2 R FERT o

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR

165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

166

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All reqular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE @

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

e  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

170

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

BE_ - —F+_HA=+—HILEE

EXREFER &

EMTIA @

EHMEE ()

EHMEESERAEE (&

HHH R A K A B

FMEBWATSFERZBIHA A E
e EEERBRAN AR 7
BWAREEREEZREEERA
BERANRFAE HEHREHREER
BzERMEERIN (RTX) -pLHRE
HREGHREZEMEEMS M E
WABET—EARESHEZEE M
BEENBHNAEABERMEE -
HMEREEREZERITANEE
REBEFMAENRNERERNEE
TBHREERE FBWRATIR
EEZEETBHREERERN
BEHRBRE SBNEREEL
FREARERAERF XD -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, loan receivables, amounts due from
related parties and bank balances), and other items (contract
assets) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE @

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=5 M5 IR R Y 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

BE_ - —F+_HA=+—HILEE

EXREFER &

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

174

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

176

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

178

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over five years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=5 M5 IR R Y 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
certain trade receivables and contract assets are
each assessed as a separate group. Trade receivable
and contract assets with significant outstanding
balances, loan receivables and amounts due from
related parties are assessed for ECL on an individual
basis);

e  Past-due status;

e  Nature, size and industry of debtors;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payable and other
payables, bank borrowings and convertible loan notes are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible loan notes

The component parts of the convertible loan notes
are classified separately as financial liability and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE @

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible loan notes (Continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and
cash at bank balances, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

184

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of
discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated income statement.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is
initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured
at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in
accordance with the general guidance for provision above;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
guidance for revenue recognition.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:—

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent;

or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:—

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

186

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXEHEEK®

Related parties (Continued) Rl (&)

Close members of the family of a person are those family BARNECHREXSISTERAIHNZEA

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced BERETXZREEEE ATZEA

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include: FENRKERE 915 .

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (@) BALHFLKEBHEREHRSE;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and (b) ZATEBHEEHENFL ; &

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or 0 ZATHHEBHABEHENZE
domestic partner. N

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 4. FEEHHERGHTFEEEZEE

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The
Group recognised additional deferred taxes relating to Land
Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) and Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
on changes in fair value of such investment properties as
appropriate.

4,

A MBRRME

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

FEGHHBRMEHFHEEEZEE
)

FER S stE R Z T E IR

BUR B8 Rl st B A R (R0 S 7=
ANEEFHERAEAERZ S5 BRKF
HEHGEVBRERABINEEAR
BEARXENEEHIE -

REMEZREREA

MERAFEREGAEREMEELEL
FIEMIAMS  ARBEFZCERETEER
ZREMEHEG ER/EEEZRE
MELIFRBEERSERBHEREY
FEBIZBREDEEN G 2 KFHRE
A -HIb REEREVMEZIELIRE
B ZAREFEEEERARFERES
EZREMEREBENZBHETHN
O] 2 RER M EAR AR - ZERE LB RIK
BRI AT EELHEDERFLMEER
(T IBER)) RBEFFFR (TP
/i) 2 BRIMESETRTE (B A) °

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR

187



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

188

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
(including the trading of bulk commodity) to a customer,
the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is
a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group as a principal) or to arrange for
those goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group as an agent). The Group is a principal if it controls
the specified good or services before that good or services is
transferred to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets with significant balances
and credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually. In
addition, the Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables and contract assets which are individually
insignificant. The Group has engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to estimate the ECL of the
Group's trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on internal credit ratings as groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. Estimated losses are based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables
and their related contract assets and are adjusted for forward-
looking information. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in Notes 38(b), 23 and 22,
respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design
and building engineering services

The Group recognised contract revenue by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation at the end of the reporting period which measured
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date relative to the estimated total contract
costs. The recognition of contract revenue therefore relies
on the management’s estimation of the progress and
outcome of the project, which involves the exercise of
significant management estimation, particularly in estimating
the budgeted contract costs, which are prepared by the
management of the Group on the basis of agreements,
quotations or other correspondences from time to time
provided by the subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved
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budget accurate and up-to-date, the management of the BEERA  BRULGTENKAEEE B

Group conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of service
contracts by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual
amounts incurred. Construction revenue and contract assets
are estimated by using the percentage of completion method,
which is calculated based on the costs incurred on each
construction contract at the end of the respective accounting
period divided by the total estimated costs for the contract
and then multiplied by the estimated construction revenue
expected to be earned.

Notwithstanding that management reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for the
construction contract as the contract progresses, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue and costs
may be higher or lower than the estimates and this will have
significant impact on the revenue and profit recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design
and building engineering services (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the contract assets recognised based
on the percentage of completion method is RMB350,521,000
(2020: RMB342,807,000).

Impairment assessment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. Determining whether goodwill is
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill
is RMB53,208,000. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 19.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair values, with
changes in fair values being recognised in the consolidated
income statement. The Group engaged independent valuation
specialists to determine fair values as at 31 December 2021.
The valuers used valuation techniques based on an income
approach by referencing the rental income of comparable
market data. The carrying amount of investment properties at
31 December 2021 was approximately RM62,500,000 (2020:
RMB61,130,000). Further details are disclosed in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ®ZEZE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HILEE

5. REVENUE 5. KA
(i) Disaggregation of revenue for contracts with (i) PHERSHRA :
customers:

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-_—E+-A=+—HLEE

Provision of

interior

design and

Sale and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

RIEER

HER BEthk
AER  EETIRBRRS @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT AREFT

Types of goods and services HmRkiRFEER
Sale and distribution of merchandise  $5%& K7 857 &
— Building materials — & 69,786 - 69,786
— Home improvement materials —REEEMK 10,653 - 10,653
— Furnishings —RE 5,995 - 5,995
— Bulk commodity trade* —AREmEZ* 285,314 - 285,314
Provision of interior design and REZEARTRERETIZRE
building engineering services
— Interior design —ENHET - 21,322 21,322
- Building engineering services —BRTIRERS - 65,226 65,226
Total 4act 371,748 86,548 458,296
Geographical markets bl
The PRC o 371,748 86,548 458,296

Timing of revenue recognition Yo A FEER B Y

At a point in time NG E 371,748 - 371,748
Over time BEiSIE - 86,548 86,548
Total 4zt 371,748 86,548 458,296
* At the beginning of the business, approximately * REEBREFR ZZ - —FHAREZH
RMB32,342,000 of the bulk trade sales made in 2021 were E A AR 132,342,000t A % = YRR B
purchased by the customers’ related parties. BE-
1 92 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR S B 5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA #@

(i) Disaggregation of revenue for contracts with () PIFEEEHWA : (@)
customers: (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from UTENERGH WA B DILER
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in PIiRESTRZ HiRko

the segment information.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-_—H+-H=1+—HLEE
Adjustments
Segment and
revenue eliminations  Consolidated
DEULA AR HE 58
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT ARETFT

Sale and distribution of merchandise  #5& & #H7E &@ 375,859 (4,111) 371,748
Provision of interior design REEANRFTR

and building engineering services BETRERS 86,548 - 86,548
Total revenue A 462,407 (4,111) 458,296
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. REVENUE (Continued)

0]
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BE_ - —F+_HA=+—HILEE

Disaggregation of revenue for contracts with

customers: (Continued)

Types of goods and services
Sale and distribution of merchandise
— Building materials
- Home improvement materials
— Furnishings
— Online distribution and
electronic marketing
Provision of interior design and
building engineering services
— Interior design
— Building engineering services

Total

Geographical markets
The PRC

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Over time

Total

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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REERRIR
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—BRIERE
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it

WA @)

() DIFEREHWA : &)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-ZF+A=+—HIEE

Provision of

interior

design and

Sale and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

REER

HE K BE R
niEES  BEIERY Aest
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ANEEFT AEBEFT ANRETFT
178,719 - 178,719
9,040 - 9,040
8,639 - 8,639
8,610 - 8,610
- 3,748 3,748
- 238,159 238,159
205,008 241,907 446,915
205,008 241,907 446,915
196,398 - 196,398
8,610 241,907 250,517
205,008 241,907 446,915




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR S B 5 R R MY 5

REVENUE (Continued)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue for contracts with

customers: (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in

the segment information.

Sale and distribution of merchandise
Provision of interior design and
building engineering services

Total revenue

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HERDIFEE®
RUEARR
BREIRRS

BIA

5. A @)

() DIHEEREHWA : (&)

BE_Z_—F+_B=+—HLEFE

LUTHEINERGHWRARD S E R
PIiRESTRZ HiRko

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE"Z_BE+_A-T—HULEE

Adjustments

Segment and
revenue eliminations Consolidated
DEUA R R H i )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEBETFT ANEBTFT ANEBTFT
220,225 (15,217) 205,008
245,621 (3,714) 241,907
465,846 (18,931) 446,915
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

196

customers

Sale and distribution of merchandise

The Group sells a range of building materials, home
improvement materials and furnishings to the wholesale
market and directly to customers through its own retail
outlets. During the course of business, the Group would,
from time to time, trading of bulk commodity with its
customers.

For sales of building materials, home improvement
materials and furnishings to the wholesale market,
revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been delivered
to the wholesaler’s specific location (delivery). Following
the delivery, the wholesaler has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has
the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods.

The Group generally allows a credit period ranging from
0 day to 360 days upon delivery, depending on the type
of products sold. For those new customers, the Group
will request deposits from them who entered into the
sales contracts, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract, until the customers obtain control
of the goods. The amounts of deposits requested vary
amongst different contracts.

For sales of home improvement materials and furnishings
to retail customers, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, being at the point the
customer purchases the goods at the retail outlet.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the goods.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers (Continued)

Sale and distribution of merchandise (Continued)

The wholesalers, retail customers and customers of bulk
commodity trading have neither rights of return nor rights
to defer or avoid payment for the goods once the goods
are accepted by them. A contract liability is recognised
for consideration received for which revenue has not yet
been recognised.

For the trading of bulk commodity, the Group would sell
a commodity within a short period after purchase under
which profit would be generated or loss may be incurred
from these transactions. Since these trading contracts
are entered into for the sole purposes of the receipt
or delivery of the commodity in accordance with the
Group's expected purchase or sale and, accordingly, these
contracts are accounted for as revenue and cost of sales.
Revenue is recognised when control of the commodity
has transferred, being when the commodity have been
delivered to the customers’ specific location (delivery).
Following the delivery, the customers have full discretion
over the manner of distribution and price to sell the
commodity, has the primary responsibility when on selling
the commodity and bears the risks of obsolescence and
loss in relation to the commodity.

The Group generally allows a credit period ranging from
0 day to 360 days upon delivery, depending on the type
of products sold. For those new customers, the Group
may request deposits from them who entered the sales
contracts, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
start of a contract, until the customers obtain control
of the goods. The amounts of deposits requested vary
amongst different contracts.

5. A @)

(i) BEFNSHNBROEE (@)

HERAHEdm (7)

HEM TERRARFERESE
F—BEEX&m AEREEN I
ERIEER B R RZERN] c ANEE
MAREREBRAZERAEBEIBSL
afRe

MATREmEZME  AEETER
BERERPANHERE —Bm WKLt
AEBZREXRSEEENARRE
B-HRFTUZFESENZHE—H
NAREBEAEEZRPARBABEE
WSt Z o RIEEA F G A1F
A TIHE A AREEIE - WA TE
HmiEh EERERED IEmER
HAREFHNFEME (RE) ~ERXY
2B BERAUTEBITRATEHER
mBY D EE A AAER  EHE R mE
AETEEE WAEEDRERN
BREEA IR AT AR

FEE-RAFNFIXNROEE
360HZEEM RYIFMHEERN
BHIME -MEEHELMES > I &
EeEERTUBESNZMER
fEE WRRNENRGERESE
BMER BEERTFRSHmEHR
B -FIERZBEEBRFI ARG
#mmA Fr MR o

—PRERAR
—=-_geg 197



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

198

customers (Continued)

Interior design and building engineering services

The Group provides interior design and building
engineering services to customers. Such services are
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.
Revenue is recognised for these services based on the
stage of completion of the contract using input method.

The Group's interior design and building engineering
service contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the service period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group
requires certain customers to provide upfront deposits
ranged from 20% to 60% of total contract sum, when
the Group receives a deposit before interior design and
building engineering services commences, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until
the revenue recognised on the specific contract exceeds
the amount of the deposit.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers (Continued)

Interior design and building engineering services
(Continued)

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the
same contract, is recognised over the period in which
the interior design and building engineering services
are performed representing the Group's right to
consideration for the services performed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group's future performance
in achieving specified milestones. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional. The Group typically transfer the contract
assets to trade receivables when the Group issued invoice
to the customers based on the value of work.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, are classified as contract assets, which ranges
from one to five years from the date of the practical
completion of the construction. The relevant amount of
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables when
the defect liability period expires. The defect liability
period serves as an assurance that the interior design
and building engineering services performed comply with
agreed-upon specifications and such assurance cannot be
purchased separately.

The Group considers the promised amount of
consideration contain significant financing component
and accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted
for the effects of the time value of money taking into
consideration the credit characteristics of the Group. The
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at the date of transfer of the associated
goods or services. The Group recognises interest income
during the period between the payment from customers
and the transfer of the associated goods or services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

200

customers (Continued)

Online distribution and electronic marketing

During the end of each reporting period, the Group
provided the online distribution and electronic marketing
service to its customers through the multi-channel
network. Throughout the contract period, the Group will
provide the advice on the product prices setting, upgrade
the interface of customers’ online sell or live channels
platforms, provide the training course on online selling
strategy, source the suitable key opinion leaders for
promoting customers’ products through the online live
channels, repair and maintenance customers’ online live
channels. Revenue is recognised when the services are
rendered over time as those services provides all of the
benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customers. The performance obligation is satisfied when
the customers used the Group’s advertising and internet
information services in their daily operations on selling or
promoting their owned products through the different
online platforms. The transaction price for the services are
charged at a predetermined fixed rate with no significant
variable consideration. Invoices are issued on a monthly
basis and are usually payable within 30 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR S B 5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 and the expected timing of recognising revenue are

as follows:

At 31 December 2021

Within one year —FR

At 31 December 2020

Within one year —FQR

5. A #&)

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

(i) PEEREFSHNBRTREOTENR

21

AZEZ—F+ZA=+—HRZ
ToE+-AS+—BARER
TREOEE RERRIHFER 2
25 B R BRI T ;

Hw-E2-_—5+=-HB=+—H

Provision of
interior design
Sale and and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

HER REZARHRK
S BETRRH &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ABEBFT AB®FT AEEFT
- 358,846 358,846

N_B_BF+_A=+—H

Provision of

interior design

Sale and and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

HER REFEARK
N m BRI RRE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEEFT ANEETT ANEETFT
21,000 344,215 365,215

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker (CODM),
make decisions about resource allocation based on the
revenue by types of goods or services delivered or provided and
reviews reports on the financial performance of the Group as
a whole. No other discrete financial information is reviewed by
the CODM for the assessment of performance of the Group.
Therefore, no other segment information is presented. The
Group is currently organised into the following two revenue
streams as follows:

1. Sale and distribution of merchandise

2. Provision of interior design and building engineering
services

202 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR S B 5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable segments:

Year ended 31 December 2021

Segment Revenue
Segment Revenue
Less: Inter-segment sales

External sales
Segment cost of sales

Segment gross profit

SEEA
DEBUA
B D BRI &

ShERSH &
DEPHE M

DEEF

SEEH @

S ERUT A B 4R

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

FEBZWAREFERERDMBEIDZ

DU

BE_FT_—F+"_A=1+—HLEE

Provision of

interior

design and

Sale and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

REER

HER JEt R
NiEEm  BEIERS EEh
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT AREFT
375,859 86,548 462,407
(4,111) = (4,111)
371,748 86,548 458,296
(361,868) (68,848) (430,716)
9,880 17,700 27,580

E—IERBRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

BE_ - —F+_HA=+—HILEE

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

Segment Revenue
Segment Revenue
Less: Inter-segment sales

External sales
Segment cost of sales

Segment gross profit

SEUA
T ERUA
B BRI &

ShERSHE
DEPHE M

SEREF

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the

same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note

3. Segment gross profit represents the gross profit earned by

each segment without allocation of other income, other gains

and losses, distribution and selling expenses, administrative

expenses, reversal of/provision for impairment losses under

expected credit loss model, net and finance costs. This is the

measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at costs.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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6. PWBEE B

SEBURA R AR (B

BE_E=-F

R

F+HA=T—HLFE

Provision of

interior

design and

Sale and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

REER

HE R HEt &
DiEEm  BRERIRERS KBSt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABEFT ANEBIEFT ANEBEFT
220,225 245,621 465,846
(15,217) (3,714) (18,931)
205,008 241,907 446,915
(192,391) (198,453) (390,844)
12,617 43,454 56,071

REDER 2 & 5t BUR BRI FE3FT It 2 AN &
B E 5t EERAR - 0B ERIER D EER
DEHEMUA ~ Hfthm R B8~ DKk
HERS THMAX FAEREEHERERE
TZREBEREE R BN
AR Z EH o IEBFE R DBk RIR

AHEEEEL

DEEHER R AW E -

BRABEZWIHE.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results
of each segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment
liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly review
such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue
and segment gross profit are presented.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC (country of
domicile) and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group's revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the relevant
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

6. PDBEHE B

SEBRA R R (B

FTELERRERBEE DM ZEEER
EHRR-MEZINDEEERDBERE
DT RAREBEERRELERER
NERKRFEFEEREREREN -
It 25D BRRA R D EEF]

HMESH

FEEEFUNDE FIEER kEB-

BERAEERBEIIFEFZWAZER

TRIBERE PR 2 - BRAEE IR
PEEZENDREEMEUERY-

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

KEIHMBERZIA JERBEE
(Note)
(Hiz2)
2021 2020 2021 2020
S E| K| 28— | _2_%F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBEFT | \RETT | AREFT | ARBETT

458,296 446,915 184,543 195,548

_ - 40,649 1,976

458,296 446,915 225,192 197,524

The PRC Gy
Hong Kong BB
Note:

Non-current assets excluded financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and deferred tax assets.

Mt

FFRBBEETBRRATEFAEaNEREE
FIEFERIRE E ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ®ZEZE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. AWEH @
Segment revenues and results (Continued) FEBBARES (&)
Information about major customers BREEERZEH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years REEEE  REEMAEEBIHEEE
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as 10% A EZ2ERZWAMT :
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F TEBTTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEETFT
Customer A ZERA 148,242" N/A
Customer B =FB 85,296 N/A 78 FH
Customer C Z2RC N/A FiEH 182,451"
Customer D ZFAD N/A R 57,843
1 Revenue from sale and distribution of merchandise. L REHERDHERZWA
206 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR S B 5 R R MY 5

OTHER INCOME

Interest income from trade and other
receivables and prepayments and
loan receivables

Bank interest income

Imputed interest income on
contract assets/non-current deposits

Rental income (Note)

Sundry income

Note:

The amount represented rental income arising from operating leases of

investment properties in which the lease payments that are fixed.

et -

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE
7. HgA
2021 2020
—E_—5F TECTE
RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFT NEETFT
B5 REMEWIZIE
VS ELNE =Y
EWE R 2 F] B WA 19,315 14,598
RITH B WA 79 69
BHNEE/FFREEE
HEFEWA - 984
WA FzE) 1,621 805
B A 90 60
21,105 16,516

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR

ZLBEIEHE (TR EEZREYFAZHE
LEZHHTHA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ®ZEZE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HILEE

208

OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES)

8. HthARK (§58)

2021 2020
—¥-—fF TERCTHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEHEFT
Loss from changes in fair value of REVME AT EESH 2
investment properties (Note 18) 518 (WfaE18) (731) (560)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains SMEEE R (B518)
Wz P8R (1 139
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  ##E¥) 2 « B KRR B (10) (6,535)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME -BERRHEZ
plant and equipment Wz 2,000 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 2 W 685 -
Gain on modification of convertible AR EREREST WG
loan notes (Note 29) (M1at29 ) 5,360 2,796
7,303 (4,160)
FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEZE
2021 2020
—E-—5 —ETEH
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEBEFT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITERA B 10,086 9,641
Effective interest expense on convertible O ER BT BIEF
loan notes (Note 29) BRI (Hfa29) 7,740 15,428
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEd R 20 1,125
17,846 26,194

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

10. PROVISION FOR/(REVERSAL OF) IMPAIRMENT
LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL,

NET

Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) on

— loan receivables

— contract assets

— trade receivables

—amounts due from related parties
— other receivables and deposits

TR T & IR RS
(B[a) ZmERIE
— R E™N
—GHNEBEE
— B RIRIA
— FE U RET B 75 7RO
—HtEWRIARZE

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 38(b).

AR S B 5 R R MY 5

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

10. FEAGEGRER T2 REBRERE
/ (BE]) > B4

2021 2020
—EgE-—5 —ECTE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT NEHFT
= (11,472)
572 2,891
2,000 1,642
- 13
3,590 26
6,162 (6,900)
B IBE R MIEE38(b) ©
E—HERBRAT
BT —EFR 209



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11. RGBS

2021 2020
—E-—F T TE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEETFT
PRC EIT REIREFTIER

— Current tax BUHRTRIE 7,050 7,696

— Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior BREFERERIRS
years (FBEREMHE) 773 (8,033)
7,823 (337)
Deferred tax (Note 32) IRIEFRIE (a£32) (3,898) 3,096
3,925 2,759

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and is exempted from the Cayman
Islands income tax.

The Company's subsidiary in the BVI was incorporated under
International Business Companies Act of the BVI and is
exempted from the BVI income tax.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong
Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

21 0 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR S B 5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1. FRiFIRA @)
The income tax expense for the years can be reconciled to the FRMEREAXIEGEEGREME
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or HW AR Z RPN IR T ¢

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—% “ETEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR #FT
Profit before tax EETREl 11,789 13,219
Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% BB EMSRRE
25%stE 2 RIE 2,947 3,305
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARMBAZRBLE
tax purpose (777) (1,742)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for RN Z 2 MBEEE
tax purpose 63 6,230
Underprovision/(overprovision) in respect of BREFEEEELE,
prior years (HBEE#EE) 773 (8,033)
Tax effect of tax losses utilised from FABFAERESIEZ
previous periods MBTE (781) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERMIEEE
MG E 1,700 2,999
Income tax expense for the year FAFERES 3,925 2,759

SE—ERARAR
BT —EFR 21 1



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Directors’ remuneration (Note 13)

Other staff salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Retirement benefit scheme contributions
for other staff

Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses for other staff

Total staff costs

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 16)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 17)

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses for customers and consultants

Provision for write-down of inventories
Variable rental payments in respect of office
premises and retail stores
— Lease rental payment*
— Rental concession”

Gross rental income from investment
properties

Less: direct operating expenses incurred
for investment properties that generated
rental income during the year

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021

212

12. FREF

5

EEFHM (at13)
HMET#H 2 REY
=rl
REME L ZRINAE
F 58I R

H 8 T2 URAS AT LA
IR AR Z IR

ST a8 EE

% BY B 3 B

ME - -BERREITE
(H1£16)

EREESERE WWat17)

TP REERZ U A S 1
LR AEERZ A
553

WoR I S B

ERWAEYERTEE
P N
—HERS >
— &R %"

REYEEEWABER

W ENEERSWAZ
REYESIRZEE
EEMX

FrmF &N GEA) U TRIERE

2021 2020
- T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEREFT NEETFT
2,452 2,718
7,132 5,977

302 253

303 49
10,189 8,997
1,027 1,369
6,668 7,210

147 1,669

- 1,303

686 152

653 653

- (380)

653 273
(1,621) (805)
163 163
(1,458) (642)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S B 5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the application Listing Rules and the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

13. EE BRETHABRESHHM

() EXERESITHASRNZHH

EREFREETHABNT
PIE R LR RE B A B
BT :

B AR
B

B8E_FT_—S+-A=+—HL
FE

Retirement Equity-
Performance benefit settled
Salaries and related scheme share-based
Name of Directors Exty Fees allowances bonuses  contributions expenses Total
bR A {3
BER  MURMAER
ns HEREM  REEMIELD SRR Zh% st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTFT  AREBFT  AREBTT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT
Executive directors BiTES
Ms. Hou Wei EHRLt 1,193 121 - 5 3 1,322
Mr. Yang Baikang BREEE 199 - - - 3 202
Mr. Liu Xianxiu NESRE 199 97 - 21 3 320
1,591 218 - 26 9 1,844
Non-executive director EHTES
Mr. Hou Bo BREE 199 - - - 3 202
Independent non-executive director BUFHRTES
Mr. Ho Hin Yip ffTE%EE 199 - - - 3 202
Mr. Ye Yihui EREEL 99 - - - 3 102
Mr. Hou Lianchang EHEEE 99 - - - 3 102
397 - - - 9 406
Chief executive officer THAEE
Ms. Deng Yiyi HERZt - 497 - 15 - 512
Total st 2,187 715 - 4 21 2,964

SE—ERARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES'’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

BE_ - —F+_HA=+—HILEE

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

214

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Name of Directors

Executive directors
Ms. Hou Wei

Mr. Yang Baikang
Mr. Liu Xianxiu

Non-executive director
Mr. Hou Bo

Independent non-executive director
Mr. Ho Hin Yip

Mr. Ye Yihui

Mr. Hou Lianchang

Chief executive officer
Ms. Deng Yiyi

Total

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EEith

BiTES
Gt
BRERE
BARE

EBITESR
RREE

BUFHTES
(EEE v
RapEns
RBERE

IRABE
BERELL

o3t

13. EE BREITHABRESHHM

(#)

() EFRESITHASNHM =)

BE-S-SET-AS+—AL

FRE
Retirement Equity-
Performance benefit settled
Salaries and related scheme share-based
Fees allowances bonuses contributions expenses Total
BARG A % £
BUHER MR AR
ik a2l RFEMEAL SRR ZH% st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANE#F ANE#F ANE#F NE#F NEBF NEBFT
1,280 116 - - 12 1,408
213 97 - - 12 322
213 65 - 10 12 300
1,706 278 - 10 36 2,030
213 - - - 12 225
213 - - - 12 225
107 = = = 12 119
107 - - - 12 119
427 - - - 36 463
- 533 - 16 - 549
2,346 811 - 26 84 3,267




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

Performance related bonuses is recommended by
the remuneration committee of the Company and is
approved by the board of directors, with reference to the
Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The executive directors” and chief executives’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group. The non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, if applicable. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

In addition to the directors’ remuneration presented
above, the Group also provides other non-monetary
benefits (such as cars) to Ms. Hou Wei. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment in relation to these non-monetary
benefits amounted to approximately RMB397,000 (2020:
RMB418,000).

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office during both years.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during both years.

1&§§3=% TEA & B {E & B9 % M

() EERESITHASNEHMN &)

REHEBEABREARRHFMNEZESD
BER O UTHEFEHE EHE2E
AEBZEEXR BARERAIE
EEER T 54 518U ©

\\XD pil]

EXFIRZATESRESITEA
EZHMNEEZRERARSIEERR
BIRFAEBSEHZRG 2 HM- £X
FImIFATESZHMARSIEME
FRBRREMBAT WER EFZ
e EXFImZBIIFRITESH
MEEABRSEEERTEFTZH
B o

bBrEX 2N EFHFMI AEE
NAEHRZTREEMIIESEEF
(BIUNSE) - BHE_S _—F+_
B=1t—HLLFE > BZEIFSE
BRZYE - -BERZEBITENSA
FK#397,000t CEZEF . AR
418,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FORT

13.

HE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HE_ZE_—F+_FB=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

216

The five highest paid employees of the Group during year
ended 31 December 2021 included three directors (2020:
three directors) and one (2020: one) chief executive of
the Company, details of whose remuneration are set out
in the disclosures above. Details of the remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2021 of the remaining one
(2020: one) highest paid employee who is neither director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

(#)

(b)

13. EE BREITHABRESHHM

XEEBRBEE_ZT_—F+_A1
—t+—HEFEEZEELRSHMNE
BEE=%(CE_ZF . =4ES)
BEERARE % (CTEIEF . —
%) RBTHBABS  BEZHEE
BHRLELXZHEZTE-HE_ZT
T EFE4+ZA=+—HIEFE T
—% (ZTZ2IRF | —4) WIFERRQFE
BEERRETHRABZREHMNE
S FHMEBUNT -

Salaries, allowance and
other benefits in kind
Retirement benefit scheme

contributions
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e R REMBYEN

RIREA 5B HERK

2021 2020
—E-—F - 2=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEBTFT
911 944
15 16
926 960




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR S B 5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EE -BE1THRASRESNHM

EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#&)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEZHE (&)
The number of the highest paid employee who is not TR RBDEEHTHEZZES
director nor chief executive officer of the Company whose HFoEE B THEEH 2 ASL:

remuneration fell within the following bands:

No. of employees

BEEAH
2021 2020
g5 —EBTEF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000 7T 1 1
(c) Directors’ material interest in transactions, ()0 EENXE THRANZEKKE RS
arrangements or contracts
Save for disclosed, no significant transactions, FRETIEEEE N KA B EP AR T
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's FARANEEITEEMNEALBEES
business to which the Company was a party and in RESHRELINEFTERIBEEE
which a director of the Company and the director’s BEANEA#ER Eﬁiﬁ%.ﬁ?‘zﬁ
connected party had a material interest, whether directly FzEARZ  ZHRE
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
14. DIVIDENDS 14. RS
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of BHE_Z”—F+“HA=1+—HILHFE"
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021, nor 1BE 2 (0] 2 B 18 B B 3RO A9 B UK A
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting R BREGIARETEAREIKN 2K
period (2020: Nil). =) (_%E_ﬁﬁ ) o

SE—ERARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

SR

ERREBEANEEEREESRBERT
TR TR B ©

Earnings

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company for the purposes of
basic and diluted earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Share options
Contingent issued shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

2021 2020
g% T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFiT ANEEFT
BH
M EEREAREER
NP YNk Z= PN
&G P A 7,559 9,911
2021 2020
—E—F —BITF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ANEBTFT
b 4=
A BEERELABANME
2 EIBR I 851,822 722,343
BE#gBENEBER FE .
R R e 3,380 7,115
A BFITRG - 18,340
MEtEEREERMMS
ZiBRNIETEE
855,202 747,798

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
convertible loan notes had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
earnings per share and were ignored in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HE_EZ_—S+_HA=+—HILEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. V¥ -BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Owned Motor and office Leasehold ~ Construction
properties vehicles equi;gént improvements in progress Total
EERER
BENE AE WAERE HE%RE EEIR et

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT ARBETT ARETT ARETT AREFT

cosT Bz
At 1 January 2020 \_7_755 A—H 36,997 4,738 1,741 25,878 4,558 73,912
Additions hE 482 184 77 3,916 - 4,659
Arising from acquisition of EXBUERB AR
subsidiaries (Note 36) (Hz#36) - - 122 - = 122
Write-off b6zl (7,037) (275) @) (2,068) - (9,387)
Transfer to investment properties ~ EREHEYE
(Note 18) (Het1s) (712) - - - = (712)
Exchange realignment ERREE - (226) - - - (226)
At 31 December 2020 and R_E_BE
1 January 2021 +ZA=+-EBk
& —-&F—-HF-H 29,730 4,421 1,933 27,726 4,558 68,368
Additions HE - - - 374 - 374
Transfer to investment properties ~ EEE R EYE
(Note 18) (Hizt18) (146) - - - = (146)
Write-off/reclassification MsH/ ExniE 496 (95) (749) (2,261) (4,558) (7,167)
Exchange realignment EREE = (78) = = = (78)
At 31 December 2021 KZE-—&
+-B=+—-H 30,080 4,248 1,184 25,839 - 61,351
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 January 2020 RZE_Z&—-H—H 10,749 1,938 898 17,564 - 31,149
Provided for the year (Note 12) FRRE (512) 1,304 449 234 5,223 S 7,210
Arising from acquisition of ELRIERERT
subsidiaries (Note 36) (Hzt36) - - 32 - = 32
Eliminated on write-off TR BB 8 (1,436) (139) (7) (1,270) - (2,852)
Transfer to investment properties B EREYE
(Note 18) (Hr3£18) (114) - - - - (114)
Exchange realignment EREE - (84) - - = (84)
At 31 December 2020 and RZB-ZE&
1 January 2021 +ZB=+—-HkK
" —&—HF—H 10,503 2,164 1,157 21,517 - 35,341
Provided for the year (Note 12) FREE (at12) 945 397 85 5,241 = 6,668
Transfer to investment properties ﬁiii}é*:t&é‘ LS
(Note 18) (H218) (97) - - - - (97)
Eliminated on write-off/reclassification Wﬁh/ B DERHH (421) (125) (315) (4,681) - (5.542)
Exchange realignment ERRE = (28) = = - (28)
At 31 December 2021 AZEZ—F
+=B=+-H 10,930 2,408 927 22,077 - 36,342
CARRYING AMOUNT fREE
At 31 December 2021 R-E=—
+ZB=+—-H 19,150 1,840 257 3,762 - 25,009
At 31 December 2020 RZTZTE
SF=EE e 19,227 2,257 776 6,209 4,558 33,027
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated, after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, on a straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Owned properties 3.3%
5% to 10%
5% to 10%
5% to 10%

Motor vehicles
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Leasehold improvements

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group leased
out certain properties located in the PRC to independent
third parties and transferred owner-occupied properties
to investment properties. The total carrying amounts of
the properties at the respective dates of transfer were
approximately RMB49,000 (2020: RMB598,000).

BE_Z_—HF+_A=+—HLFE

16. M BB K= (@

Lt BB RRERB N REMGE
FABEBREGEUTIIERITE :

BEME 3.3%
A 5%Z10%
RE\EBERERWAZRE 5%%10%
HEZEE 5%Z10%

BE_SE_—F+A=1+—HILEFE"
AEBHBURPEZETYETEIL
FEoR UK BRYEEREREYE
MERZSBRBPZRAEENAAR
#49,0007t (ZE =4 : AR598,000
JT) °

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FRESE
offices
Leasehold premises and
lands retail stores Total
MAEMER
S TEHE EC
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000
AEEFT ANEEFT ANEEFT
At 31 December 2020 and AZECEE
1 January 2021 +=ZB=+—HR
—g-—-%—B—H
Carrying amount REE 6,800 6,186 12,986
At 31 December 2021 gt St 3
+=-B=+—H
Carrying amount FREE 7,293 312 7,605
JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=5 M5 IR R Y 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

During the year, major items included in the movement of

17. ERESE &)

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

FR TEEEOEERAREEZESHN

right-of-use assets as followings: T @
2021 2020
T —F “EZTTHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEEFT
Depreciation charge (Note 12) wEER (Wti12) 147 1,669
Additions to right-of-use assets fEAEEEEMN 365 6,777
Termination of lease arrangement mIFTEEZHE 5,593 =
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) S EREY % (H15£18) 6 68
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries EFBREHRE AR
(Note 36) (Ht5#36) - 62
During the year, total cash outflow for leases under financing FR MEEHENMEEZRES ML 4EEE
activities as followings: (I
2021 2020
—E-—F T TE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANE BT
Total cash outflow for leases HEZIR® R 4EEE 751 8,766

For both years, the Group leases various offices premises and
retail stores for its operation. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 1 year to 10 years with fixed payment.
The Group does not have the option to purchase the leased
properties at a nominal amount at the end of the relevant lease
terms or any extension/termination options which are solely at
the Group's discretion. The Group's obligations are secured by
the rental deposits for such leases. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The Group determines the lease period
to be the non-cancellable period based on the contractual
terms of the contract.

FPREFE A&EEHESERAEYE
REEEHHREEE A - HESNRE
EFPIFEE10EREENRET L ANE
B EEEENERAARERFERE
AETHEWBEREYZE  TERAEETNE
TEZEMIER 4R IEEN - AEBZ &
KHEMEEZHERSFIRF -AEK
%EE@%%E%ﬁ’iﬁE%ETﬁW
MGG - AREBRBEEOZENGENE
mﬂ%%TTﬁﬁ%%o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 17. EREBSE &

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for retail
booths. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short term leases
to which the short-term lease expense disclosed above.

The above items of right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line method over the lease term.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group with
four independent third parties (“Business Partners”) bided the
land use right with total amount of RMB57,700,000 which
is situated at Shenzhen in the PRC. The portion invested
by the Group amounted to approximately RMB5,758,000,
which represented to 9.69% of the total consideration. All
acquisition costs of land use right were fully paid by the Group
and Business Partners. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group and Business Partners entered into the Land
Transfer Agreement with the local government for the usage
of the land use right with a period for 30 years from 15
September 2020.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the land use
right will be obtained given that the issuance of land use right
certificate is only an administrative procedure. As a result, the
Group recognised the partial land use right in accordance to its
contribution of approximately RMB5,759,000 as right-of-use
assets (including the right-of-use assets classified in investment
properties) as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB5,591,000).
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1) BIRMR BRI L EFARE > 48
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group has entered into Memorandum of Understanding
Agreement with Business Partners, a commercial building will
be constructed and developed on the abovementioned land
and the Group will be the main constructor for the whole
construction project. The directors of the Company expected
that parts of the properties will be used as owned office
and the remaining parts will be leased out for earning rental
income when the commercial building completed.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group leased
out certain properties located in the PRC to independent
third parties and transferred right-of-use assets to investment
properties. The total carrying amount of the right-of-use assets
at the date of transfer was approximately RMB1,079,000
(2020: RMB68,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
early terminated certain lease arrangements, of which the
amounts of corresponding right-of-use assets, lease liabilities
and penalties were approximately of RMB5,593,000,
RMB9,821,000, and RMB4,113,000, respectively. As a result,
approximately of RMB115,000 was recognised as gain on
early termination of lease arrangement, which was recorded in
administrative expenses accordingly.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of approximately RMB234,000
(2020: RMB10,786,000) are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB225,000 (2020:
RMB12,986,000) as at 31 December 2021. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set
out in Notes 31 and 38(b).

17. ERESE &)

AEBEREXFCEBHARBERERBT
Btk 0 R LAt IR RIS R R S — 12
ERF MAEERIEARERRERN
FTEERE-ARDEEHRE HBOZEEF
MERSBIERBEBEMER  HEFHORI
BB TR TR HHELEREGEE A

BE_Z_—+_A=+—HLtHEE>
AEBHBEFTURFEAZYETEIL
B URERAEEEEERELEY
XoREEAOR TRAESEZEREE
# A NRK1,079,0007T (ZE-ZFE A
R #£68,0007T) ©

BE_ S &+ _HB=Z+—HLHE
B AEREERIEETHEZS H
HENERAESEE - HEaEKRIRE
D RIH A AREES,593,00070 AR
9,821,000t & AR #4,113,0007T © AU »
AEERDBDRERILAEZHHNKAEL
AR #115,0007¢c > WAHREST AITERES o

fH & PR 2 5258

s R ZEZ—F+Z/A=+—HEx"R
HARM225,0000 (CE2EZZEF . ARE
12,986,0007T) 2 BERFEAEEERDE
EaEYARNE234,0007T (CE_Z4F
AR #10,786,0007T) BrHFEAFERE
BEZIRFEDIN HEHR I EENE
ARE - HEEEFSREAER LT
& o

HERBZEER B MFBHINHE
315%38(b)°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

18.

BHE-_ZT”—

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group leases out commercial property units under operating
leases with rentals receivable monthly. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 1 year to 15 years and no unilateral
rights to extend the lease beyond initial period held by the
Group and lessees. Majority of the lease contracts contain
market review clauses in the event the lessee exercises the
option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease

F+_A=+—HLFE

18. IR EME

BHE_ZE_—FKR_ZEBE_ZFEFE+_1
=S+ HLEFE AEEREBELEHRE
MEmEYEB AR RER-HE
— R ABEIEE15F ) AER KA
AN ERESEEMNRILSFEREBLER
HE - KRE DA EEABATFEIER
BEIRRERY 2 TG IR R o

NEB N ERAAE T HEMAZINE RS
BERAFREHEYNUERERSEZY
REEMEE AN T EHERGREBEER
R,/ ABAREBEREEENES
EEERE

term.
RMB’000
ANEEFT
At 1 January 2020 A _ETEF—F—H 59,040
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 16)  E#EBYE - BERRE (H1aE16) 598
Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 17) EREERAEEE Wit17) 68
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss (Note 8) 1Bz WIESR 2~ A (&R
(Htz28) (560)
Increase in fair value recognised upon transfer from REMEZEKRERNBEME -BEKR
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets REURERAEEEEREE
to investment properties in other comprehensive KEMERER 2 A FEE
income 1,984
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 (‘:g_gﬁ—f— A=+—H8k
- —4F#—HF—H 61,130
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 16)  EBREEY¥ B KRR E (H1:E16) 49
Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 17) EREEREEE Wit17) 6
Increase in fair value recognised upon transfer from REMEEREZANBYE KRE &
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets REUREAREEBREERE
to investment properties in other comprehensive YRR 2 A AL
income 2,046
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss (Note 8) 1A 18 WHEER 2 A &RV (#fa28) (731)
At 31 December 2021 R-Z2-—%+”"RA=+—H 62,500
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In determining the fair value of the investment properties, the
Group engages the independent qualified professional valuer
to perform the valuation. The management of the Group
works closely with them to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model and explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the investment properties to
the board of directors.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. The fair values
of certain investment properties have been adjusted to exclude
prepaid or accrued operating lease income to avoid double
counting.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used) at the end
of reporting period.

Valuation
technique and

fair value hierarchy
BERER
ATEER

Investment properties Significant input(s)

wEME EXBAYE

Commercial property Income approach

units located in the PRC Level 3
2021: RMB62,500,000
2020: RMB61,130,000
3.25% (2020: 3.25%)
IR PEZ £ KA SHESWABENFARES0TE
—Z”—F: A\R¥62,500,0007¢ 534k AR #150,0007 (Z

“Z°ZF  \R61,130,0007T

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year
(2020: Nil).

18.

Gross monthly rental income ranged from
RMB500 to RMB150,000 (2020: ranged
from RMB800 to RMB189,000) Term yield:
2.75% (2020: 2.75%) Reversionary yield:

AR #8007 E A R #189,0007T)
FHIRER © 2.75% (Z
ERWEE 13.25% (Z

=5 M5 IR R Y 5E

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

REME @

REBERBEME N TER  AEEEZES
YEERBXRGLEMETHE FEEE
BERHASEAF URIEBEMGERE
RGAREZHBH THEFSHERE
MERATEREZIRE -

REstIELRTFER X ZESRRE
RamAEERMAR - ETREMEZAF
BEEFREE  UMFRRM RS EEEE
WA BRERFE -

TRIEHBEREUNANBRSHEREEZS
REYENTFEZEN (CEREESE
e P B el A BU3%) o

Relationship of
inputs to fair value
BARRSA
ATERRE

Aslight increase in the term
yield and reversionary yield
used would result in a
significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa

FBZEHRmERERNK
HREHRIRER AT
BRI R2TF A

V—Vﬂz

BRE1275%)
B_TF 13.25%)

FRUEBAXBHE=HR (CE_F
FiE)e

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

19. GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing on goodwill,
management allocated goodwill to the Group's cash-
generating unit (“CGU") identified. The Group’s goodwill
arising on acquisition of the subsidiaries, as detail in Note 36,
during the year ended 31 December 2020 was allocated to
the online distribution and e-marketing services and home
decoration.

Cost %N

At 1 January 2021 N “E-_—F%—HF—H

19. HE

MEERENEMS  EEERBEDK
EERENAERREELENU ((REeE
B MEBEBF+A=+—
HIEEE s&EBRWERBATMES
e FIERHEE36) ENEESR LD
51 e AR S = B PR 5 DA e BR S B Eff o

Arising from acquisition of ELXEWENELE
subsidiaries (Note 36) (Ht5£36)
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 NTECEER
+ZRA=+—H

Accumulated impairment losses B &35 (EE518

ATBBER
T &

+=B=+-8

At 31 December 2020 and 2021

Net carrying amount IREEE
R_BZEBFR

+ZA=+—H

At 31 December 2020 and 2021
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Online
distribution
and Home
e-marketing decoration
services CGU cGU Total
BERHER
MEETHIRTS RERHRE
REELEM EEE @Rt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETFT ANEEFT ANEEFT
37.411 15,797 53,208
37.411 15,797 53,208
37,411 15,797 53,208




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

19. GOODWILL (Continued)

Online distribution and e-marketing services

The goodwill was arisen from a number of factors including
the expected fast growing on the multi-channel network in
the PRC, digital transformation on the traditional distribution
channels, internet sales channel and assembled workforce of
the acquired business. These benefits were not recognised
separately from goodwill because they did not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

Home decoration

The goodwill was arisen from a number of factors including
the expected growing on the home interior design for
residential properties in the PRC and assembled workforce of
the acquired business. These benefits were not recognised
separately from goodwill because they did not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill of the CGUs recognised is expected to
be deductible for income tax purposes

19. BHE &
45 b3S R B AR SH AR 75

BERBZEAR  SEARNR S RER
RNFEZREWES BROFHRENHK
FEEE EREHEREURBWEZE
BV A F o BRI A 5 Bl Al
BENERRE  SZFM @ EEmE
D FAFEST

REEKAH

BERBZEAR  SEARER S RER
ROFBEEMERERBRSUKRE
WEREEBNEERATF -BARLANTE A H
BT B EREDIRE M FH I 5
SR8 D RS -

ERZESELEANBEENTEH
PSR BT U0 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

228

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HE-Z-_—F+_A=+—HIEE
19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. & @)
Impairment assessment R ET
Online distribution and e-marketing services #R_E DR AT45 SR

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation with reference to a
professional valuation for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year (2020:
five-year) period. Cash flows beyond the projection period are
extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3% (2020:
3%) per annum. The pretax rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows is 23.71% (2020: 23.8%) per annum.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, no
provision for impairment loss on goodwill arising from online
distribution and e-marketing services was recognised.

Home decoration

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation for the year ended 31
December 2021. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year (2020: five-year) period. Cash flows beyond the
projection period are extrapolated using an estimated growth
rate of 3% (2020: 3%) per annum. The pretax rate used to
discount the forecast cash flows is 19.24% (2020: 19.3%) per
annum.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, no
provision for impairment loss on goodwill arising from home
decoration was recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

21.

PROFIT OR LOSS

A MBRRME

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

20. MAFEGFARHEIEMEE

2021 2020

—E-—5F —ETEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ABETFT NEBETFT

Unlisted equity security (Note) JE LTRSS (BYaE) - 18,087
Note: Kat :

The amount represents investment in unlisted equity securities issued
by Xinfeng Culture Media Limited ({5 & X 1bEE B R AE) (“Xinfeng
Culture™)). One of the subsidiary of the Group, Jiyi Entertainment
Limited entered into a repayment agreement with the two guarantors
of the investment in Xinfeng Culture on 1 November 2021, in which the
guarantors agreed to refund the investment principal of approximately
HK$21.32 million, with a maturity date of 30 April 2024 and a 20%
annual interest rate. As a result, the amount has been fully reclassified as
"Deposit and other receivables” in accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and recognised as a financial asset measured at amortised
cost on 1 November 2021.

INVENTORIES

Finished goods E

Inventories represent goods held for resale and interior design
and building engineering projects.

The provision for write-down of inventories is generally made
on those inventories which are sold subsequently with the
prices lower than the carrying amounts while the reversal of
provision for write-down of inventories is only recognised for
those inventories which are sold subsequently with the prices
higher than the carrying amounts.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, provision for write-
down of inventories amounted to approximately RMB686,000
(2020: RMB152,000) was recognised.

21.
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AR EMIT AR\ BHENDES REKAM
FEUGRIE) R B - —F+— B —BRERAR
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#85
2021 2020
—E-— “EIEHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ANEEFT
4,280 15,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

22. CONTRACT ASSETS

Services contracts for provision of interior
design and binding engineering
Less: allowance for expected credit losses

Analysed as
Non-current
Current

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group's future performance
in achieving specified milestones at the reporting date on
construction works. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Contract assets, that are not expected to be settled within the
Group's normal operating cycle, are classified as current and
non-current based on expected settlement dates. The non-
current contract assets is measured at amortised cost using

interest rate of 6.96% per annum.
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2021 2020
—E-—F T TE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT NEEFT

REEANRRERTR
ZRBEH 358,846 351,923
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JERH = 1,363
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

Typical payment terms of services contracts for provision of
interior design and building engineering which impact on the
amount of contract assets recognised are as follows:

e The Group’s services contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction
period once certain specified milestones are reached. The
Group requires certain customers, other than the local
government or with those of long term relationship, to
provide upfront deposits ranged from 20% to 60% of
total contract sum as part of its credit risk management
policies. When the Group receives a deposit before
interior design and building engineering services
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the
specific contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

e The Group also typically agrees a retention period ranging
from one to five years for 3% to 5% of the contract
value. As at 31 December 2021, the retention receivables
amounted to approximately RMB46,332,000 (2020:
RMB45,438,000) are included in contract assets until the
end of the retention period as the Group’s entitlement to
this final payment become unconditional upon expiration
of the defects liability period and are transferred to trade
receivables.

e  The Group classifies contract assets as current when the
Group expects to realise them in its normal operating
cycle.

22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ®ZEZE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HILEE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

Movement in the contract assets and the contract liabilities
balances during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020

are as follows:

At 1 January

Rights of consideration for works amplitude
but not yet billed

Transfer from the contract assets recognised
to trade receivables

Less: allowance for credit losses

At 31 December

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in Note 38(b).
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22. ANEE &)

BE S

T—FRkRZIZFEZZHFE+A
S+ HLEFEGHNEBEERGHNERE

R EENWE ¢
2021 2020
—EZ—F§ TETEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT NEEFT
w—A—H 344,170 273,391
FOTILERAKRZ

TRERMREZER] 86,548 229,485

HERRIGNEEERE
B S EWFIE (79,621) (155,815)
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R+-B=+—H 350,521 344,170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables from contracts with
customers:
Due from third parties:
— sale and distribution of merchandise
— interior design and building engineering
services
Due from a related party:
— sale and distribution of merchandise

Less: allowance for expected credit losses

Other receivables

Contract performance deposits (Note (a))
Project tender deposits (Note (b))

Other deposits (Note (c))

Other tax recoverable

Rental deposits

Others (Note (e))

Less: allowance for expected credit losses

Prepayments

Prepayments for purchase of goods and
provision of services (Note (d)

Prepayment for acquisition of investment
properties (Note (7))

Long term receivables

Less: allowance for expected credit losses

Notes receivable arising from bulk
commodity trading business (Note (g))

Trade and other receivables and
prepayments

Analysed as
Non-current
Current

AR S B 5 R R MY 5
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2021 2020
—E-— —EBETRHF
RMB'000 RMB 000
AR¥EFT NEETFT
50,016 80,884
53,076 26,486
382 -
103,474 107,370
(5.775) (6,278)
97,699 101,092
5,650 1,521
504 1,657
- 4,778
2,295 7,404
165 271
7,759 31,527
16,373 47,158
(2,004) (464)
14,369 46,694
358,256 349,491
33,977 35,810
38,796 -
(2,050) -
428,979 385,301
116,334 =
657,381 533,087
76,870 35,810
580,511 497,277
657,381 533,087
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

234

Contract performance deposits are advanced to customers at the
beginning of interior design and building engineering services
contracts. The deposits are repaid to the Group based on the
progress of services and terms of the contract.

The contract performance deposits are expected to be recovered
within one year from the end of the reporting period.

Project tender deposits are advanced to potential customers during
the contract tendering period. The deposits are repaid to the Group
when the tendering process is completed.

The Group paid RMB5,000,000 to the Meizhou Housing and Urban
Rural Planning and Construction Bureau as a refundable deposit
to guarantee the fulfilment of wages payment to those immigrant
labours. The amount will be recovered upon completion of the
building engineering contracts and is expected to be recovered
over one year from the end of the reporting period. The deposit is
measured at amortised cost with carrying amount at 31 December
2020 of approximately RMB4,778,000, based on the present value
of the estimated future cash outflow discounted using the effective
interest rate of 7% per annum and the adjusted deposit at the date
of inception was RMB4,350,000, net of fair value adjustment of
RMB650,000.

As at 31 December 2021, included in the balance of an amount
of approximately RMB251,754,000 (2020: RMB237,174,000)
represented a prepayment for purchase of goods mainly for the new
construction of a commercial building in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, guarantee on these receivables provided
by Ms. Hou Wei, a substantial shareholder of the Company, is
amounted approximately RMB251,754,000.

The Group recognised an allowance for impairment loss amounted
to approximately RMB1,385,000 of this amount during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(e)

As at 31 December 2020, included in the balance of an amount
of approximately RMB21,934,000 represents the receivable from
Tourmaline for the partial consideration of second step acquisition.
Tourmaline is the consultant to assist the Group in the step
acquisition of Xinfeng Culture. The balance has been reclassified to
“Long term receivables” under “Prepayments” in the Statement of
Financial Position as a result of the re-negotiation of the refund of
consideration with Tourmaline during the year ended 31 December
2021.

This was acquired in a business combination (see Note 36) of Sino
Legacy Group (as defined in below). The properties were in the
process of development of commercial premises by an independent
property developer. The properties are located in Meizhou in the
PRC and planned to be completed by 2022. The management
intends to lease out the properties for earning rental income when
the properties are fully constructed. Full consideration was paid
before the acquisition of Sino Legacy Group and no cash outflow is
expected to be paid for the properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had entered
into several trade receivable (the “Notes”) factoring arrangements
and transferred those trade receivables to banks or other financial
institutions (the “Arrangements”). Under the Arrangements, the
Group may be required to reimburse the banks or other financial
institutions for loss of interest if any trade debtors have late payment
after the maturity date, which is normally for one year terms
from the initial day, or subsequently found default. As such, the
Group retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include
default risks relating to such Notes, and accordingly, it continued
to recognise the full carrying amounts of the Notes as “note
receivables” and the associated borrowings from banks or other
financial institutions. As at 31 December 2021, the original due date
of such Notes are ranging from July to December 2022.

A MBRRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ®ZEZE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HILEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23.
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice

dates:

Within 6 months ANEIEEN

6 — 12 months NETIZEA
1 -2 years —EMF
Over 2 years BBEmE

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group's trade
receivable are debtors with aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RMB68,265,000 (2020: RMB61,055,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. It is not considered
as in default by considering the background of the trade
receivables and historical settlement arrangement of these
trade receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral over
the balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 38(b).
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S B 5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

RESTRICTED CASH

As at 31 December 2021, the restricted cash mainly represents
the security deposits provided to secure certain bank
borrowings.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances, including time deposits with original
maturities less than 3 months, carry interest at prevailing
market rates which ranged from 0.01% to 0.3% (2020:
0.01% to 0.3%) per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is
provided. Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note
38(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due from related parties are non-trade related,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

26. FEMLRRAH A5 wRIR

FE UL RA Bt 75 RRIE 7 JF B 5 18R ~ S HK R
REBRBLEREE-

Maximum amount

outstanding during the

year ended 31 December
#E+-A=+-H
HEEZERHREGEE

2021 2020 2021 2020
—RT-F| T TF| ZB-F| ZT°TF
Related parties BB RMB000 |  RMBO0O | RMBGOO |  RMB'000
ARBETFT | \ElEF7n | ARETFT | NEEFT
Tourmaline, an entity with Ms. Deng B8 (REETHER
Yiyi, the Chief Executive Officer of the ~ ¥iBBLLtAEE
Group, as director” Z2ER - = = 23,820
Meizhou Xikang Construction Company 1§/ HtEEEEE
Limited* ("Meizhou Xikang") TIRRERAF*
(IBMNHERREIRERAR), (e MERel)
an entity significant influenced by a SRHERLLRE
close family member of Ms. Hou Wei MHRNEATZEDN
—XRER) 934 918 16 918
Mr. Wen Jingfeng, the son of ik 6z Sovias
Ms. Deng Haiming @BBEBLLZTF) - - 16 16
934 918

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Deng Yiyi, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group resigned as the director of
Tourmaline, accordingly the amount is reclassified to other receivable
as at 31 December 2020 (see Note 23(e)).

X The English name is for identification purpose only

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 38(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Other payables
Salaries and staff welfare payables
Deposits received for
building engineering services
Accrued construction costs
Other tax payables
Withholding income tax in respect of
dividend payment
Other payables

Trade and bills payables and
other payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables

presented based on the invoice date.

Within 6 months

6 to 12 months
Over 1 year

The credit periods on purchases of goods and subcontracting

services ranged from 0 to 180 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Secured fixed-rate bank borrowings
(note (a))
— Within one year or on demand
— After one but within two years
— After two but within five years

Discounted commercial bills and discounted
Letter of Credit that were not yet due
(Note 23(g))

Unsecured loan from a shareholder
(note (b))
— Within one year or on demand

Unsecured loan from Ms. Deng Yiyi,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
as director”
— Within one year or on demand

Unsecured loan from other un-related
companies
— Within one year or on demand

Total bank and other borrowings

Less: Loans due within one year or on
demand classified as current liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the bank borrowings were
secured by property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
land use right in PRC recognised as right-of-use assets and the
property in the PRC held by Chief Executive Officer.

The bank borrowings were also jointly guaranteed by Ms. Hou Wei
and Mr. Deng Jianshen, spouse of Ms. Hou Wei.

The secured fixed-rate bank borrowings are denominated in RMB.

Details of charges over the bank borrowings are disclosed in Note
39.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings and other
companies’ borrowing are as follows:

BIEAIE (S4) |
B R A3

Effective interest rates (per annum):
Fixed-rate borrowings

The loan from a shareholder is unsecured and interest-free.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES 29. AR ERER

On 25 June 2019, the Company issued convertible loan notes
in an aggregate amount of HK$102,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB89,817,000), bearing coupon interest of
6% per annum to eight independent third parties (the “CB
holders”). The convertible loan notes are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The convertible loan notes entitle the CB
holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time during the conversion period at a conversion
price of HK$1.0 per convertible loan note, which is subject to
the adjustments pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
convertible loan notes as follows:

(i) a maximum of not more than one-third of the principal
amount of the convertible loan notes held by such CB
holders may be converted into conversion shares from
the twelfth month after the issue of the convertible loan
notes;

(i) a maximum of not more than one-third of the principal
amount of the convertible loan notes held by such CB
holders may be converted into conversion shares from the
fourteenth month after the issue of the convertible loan
notes;

(i) all the remaining of the principal amount of the
convertible loan notes held by such CB holders may be
converted into conversion shares from the sixteenth
month after the issue of the convertible loan notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

The convertible loan notes shall mature on the date falling
eighteenth month after the date of issue. The Company may,
at any time prior to the maturity date, redeem all or part of
the outstanding convertible loan notes at the redemption
price of 105% of the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible loan notes before the first anniversary of the date
of issue and 108.5% of the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible loan notes after the first anniversary of the date
of issue, together with the accrued interest incurred before the
period from the redemption date and interest for the period
from the redemption date to the maturity date at the rate of
6% per annum, by giving a prior notice of not less than thirty
days to the CB holders of such convertible loan notes subject
to the terms and conditions of the convertible loan notes.
Any convertible loan notes outstanding on the maturity date
shall be redeemed by the Company subject to the terms and
conditions of the convertible loan notes.

At the maturity date (i.e. 24 December 2020), if the
convertible loan notes have not been converted or redeemed,
they will be redeemed at 108.5% of par, unless the CB holders
and the Company mutually agree to extend the maturity
date to 24 June 2021 (“Extension Period”). CB holders shall
exercise the conversion right to convert the convertible loan
notes into conversion shares during the Extension Period at the
conversion price of HK$1. Interest of 6% will be paid quarterly
up until the settlement date.

At initial recognition, the equity element of the convertible
loan notes amounted to approximately RMB2,811,000, net
of the transaction cost attributable to equity component of
approximately RMB 16,000, was recognised separately from
the liability component. The equity component is presented in
equity heading “convertible loan notes equity reserve”. The
early redemption option is considered as closely related to the
host debt. The effective interest rate of the liability component
is 16.50% per annum.
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29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

On 24 December 2020, 37,429,167 convertible loan notes
with principal amount of approximately HK$37,429,000
(equivalent to RMB34,136,000) were converted into
conversion shares at the conversion price of HK$1 and the
remaining convertible loan notes of 64,670,833 are extended
to 24 June 2021 after mutually agreed by the Company and
CB holders. Except for the above, all the other terms and
conditions remain unchanged.

Details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 14
May 2019 and 24 December 2020.

As at the date of modification on 24 December 2020,
taking into account the terms of the extension, the
fair value of convertible loan notes was amounted to
approximately HK$66,875,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB56,214,000), of which the fair values of liability
component and equity component were amounted to
approximately HK$66,842,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB56,186,000) and approximately HK$33,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB28,000) respectively. As a result, the
Group recognised a gain on modification of convertible loan
notes of approximately RMB2,796,000 in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and transferred the amount of approximately RMB 1,798,000
from “convertible loan notes equity reserve” to “retained
profits” in the consolidated statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The effective interest rate of the liability component for the
extended convertible loan notes is 16.09% per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

On 24 June 2021, the Company and the CB holders agreed to
extend the maturity date of the outstanding convertible loan
notes with an aggregate principal amount of HK$64,670,833
(equivalent to approximately RMB52,875,000) from 24 June
2021 to 24 December 2021. Save for the extension of the
maturity date, all the terms and conditions of the convertible
loan notes remain unchanged.

On 24 December 2021, the convertible loan notes in the
amount of HK$60,544,445 (equivalent to approximately
RMB49,501,000) have been converted into 60,544,445
conversion shares by the CB holders, and the remaining
convertible loan notes in the amount of HK$41,555,555
(equivalent to approximately RMB33,976,000) are further
extended to 31 August 2022 (the “Extended CB Maturity
Date”) after mutually agreed by the Company and CB holders.
Except for the above, all the other terms and conditions remain
unchanged.

Details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
31 December 2020, 22 February 2021, 24 June 2021, 10
September 2021 and 24 December 2021, as well as the
Company’s circulars dated 25 January 2021, 29 July 2021 and
10 February 2022.
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29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

As at the date of modifications, taking into account the
terms of the extension, the fair value of convertible loan
notes were amounted to approximately HK$68,366,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB56,886,000) and
approximately HK$45,411,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB37,128,000) on 24 June 2021 and 24 December 2021,
of which the fair values of liability component and equity
component were amounted to approximately HK$68,333,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB56,859,000) and
approximately HK$45,389,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB37,110,000) on 24 June 2021 and approximately
HK$33,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB27,000) and
approximately HK$22,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB18,000) on 24 December 2021 respectively. As a
result, the Group recognised a gain on modification of
convertible loan notes of approximately RMB5,360,000
in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and transferred the amount of
approximately RMB10,000 from “convertible loan notes equity
reserve” to “retained profits” in the consolidated statements
of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The effective interest rate of the liability component for the
extended convertible loan notes is 17.32% per annum.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued) 29. AIARERRE &
The movement of the equity and liability components of the FAMKREREEEGREEHDZ
convertible loan notes for the year is set out below: gEEEINUWT -
2021 2020
“EZ-F “EIBF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKEFT ARETFT

Equity component BB
Carrying amount at the beginning FHREE

of the year 28 2,811
Transfer to retained earnings RRNBEREREERT

upon conversion - (985)
Transfer to retained earnings upon extension R iEEE EREEREBRF (10) (1,798)
Carrying amount at the end of the year FRIREE 18 28
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29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

Liability component

Carrying amount at the beginning of
the year

Interest charge (Note 9)

Interest paid

Converted into shares

Gain on modification of convertible loan
notes (Note 8)

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at the end of the year
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2021 2020
—E-—F i
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT
56,248 91,496
7,740 15,428
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

30. Y AaE

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
—EZ—%§ TETERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEETFT
Deposits received from customers in HPTMIEEEMZ
relation to: BE R UWEZE :
— Sale and distribution of merchandise —IHE KD I 1,113 3,352
— Provision of interior design and —EHERNRTRESE
building engineering services TR 463 7,046
1,576 10,398

As at 1 January 2020 and 1 January 2021, the contract
liabilities amounted to RMB7,541,000 and RMB10,398,000
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, respectively. The
directors of the Company considered that contract liabilities
would be realised within one year based on the Group’s
earliest obligation to transfer goods or services to the
customers and are classified as current liabilities.

Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year was
primarily due to significant contract liabilities were recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are set out in Note 5(ii).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BE_Z_—HF+_A=+—HLFE

31. LEASE LIABILITIES 31. HHEAR
2021 2020
—E-—F “ETEH
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEETFT
Within one year — &R 181 1,967
Within a period of more than one year but BB —FEEBAZHWEZ
not more than two years HARIA 53 1,682
Within a period of more than two years but  BBREBASHRAEEZ
not more than five years AR = 5,486
Within a period of more than five years Bl AF AR - 1,651
234 10,786
Less: Amount due for settlement within B RBAERE TR
12 months shown under current liabilities +EEREIENZ
Hig (181) (1,967)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months JERENEEIE FFIRZ
shown under non-current liabilities +Z@EA®%E
EIEREN ZRIE 53 8,819
32. DEFERRED TAX 32. IEIEMIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement MREGREMBERRREIMS > & TIEE

MEEEKRBRERIEH M HBHREM

of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities

have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred

tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

= BERIAERRZ T

2021 2020
—E-—&F TECEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR EFT NEH#Fr

Deferred tax assets IRIERIAE B 6,601 2,886
Deferred tax liabilities FEIETRIEE R (21,239) (20,911)
(14,638) (18,025)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=5 M5 IR R Y 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32. IRIERIE (&)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and (assets) UFBRAEFERLANFEZEHEBE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BRTEGER BE) REHEH !
prior years:

Accrued  Revaluation

rental and  of investment Allowance for
payroll properties ECL provision inventories Tax losses Total
Estilie REMEZ BHEE
kIE EifhfE R FaRfE RIESHE by

RIB'000 RIIB'000 RIIB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000
ABETT  ARETH ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2020 RIZ2-ZE-F—H - 19,642 (5,357) (245) (520) 13,520
Avrising from acquisition of subsidiaries Eiﬁ WERB AR

(Note 36) (H&236) - 550 - - - 550
(Credited)/charged to profitor loss B8 (A%) /1%

(Note 11) (11) - (140) 2,877 - 359 3,096
Charged to other comprehensive BEMZ2ERENR

income - 859 - - = 859
At 31 December 2020 and R_E_EF+_A=+—-HK

1 January 2021 & -F-F-H - 20,911 (2,480) (245) (161) 18,025

Gain on revaluation upon transfer from E#1% « B Rk M K
property, plant and equipmentand ~ FEREEEHRERENEE
right-of-use assets to investment ZEfbER

properties - 51 - - - 51
(Credited)/charged to profitorloss ~ E1#8%& (ARR) /B (Hrz#11)

(Note 11) (580) (183) (2,058) (172) (905) (3,898)
At 31 December 2021 R-EB_-%+-A=+-H (580) 21,239 (4,538) (417) (1,066) 14,638
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated REREIAR > AERB KR AEF 2
unused tax losses of approximately RMB24,989,000 (2020: fEET R ENFARIEEEELN A K1E24,989,000
RMB18,188,000) available for offset against future profits. A T (CTEZEE . ARM18,188,0007T) °
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses RB8E_E-_—F+"A=+—HIHF
amounting to RMB3,619,000 (2020: RMB3,938,000) during E EREEEREBERELEREEEA
the year ended 31 December 2021. No deferred tax asset K#3,619,0007T (ZZEZZF | AR
has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses 3,938,0007T) ° SRR EF] uuZTTﬁ‘E
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included B L EBLER TR IE BB RRIE
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RMB14,962,000 I8 é}% BRIEZZFEE; \E
(2020: RMB14,250,000) that will expire from 2022 to 2026 (B -EF . B —FF_FT_F
(2020: 2021 to 2025). Other losses may be carried forward E) HHA” E518 AR 1514,962,0007 (Z &
indefinitely. =T 1 AR ¥14,250,0007T) 5T AR FER

%RIEJ%?E o HAth &5 15 7] SR ARG o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32. IREFRIBE (&)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
difference attributable to the retained profits earned by
the subsidiaries in the PRC amounting to approximately
RMB161,957,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB161,705,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ({fZE A B HFIE
TIZEREITIRMA])) effective on 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT ({2 A R HFE + I EREITIE
B EHEAHEI)) effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sales or transfer of state-owned land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject to
LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures in relation to the gains arising
from sales of properties in the PRC effective from 1 January
2004. Deferred taxation of LAT has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of appreciation
value of investment properties located in the PRC.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. g7
Number of Share
shares capital
440 4= B s
RMB'000
NEEFT
Authorised ordinary shares at BRo1BTZEEEER
HK$0.1 each
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and \’;‘:’3:’35—5 —H-
31 December 2021 TEIERFAT ﬁ
=t+t—HERIZEZ—F
+-BA=+—H 5,000,000,000 609,650
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares SR1EBTZERITR
at HK$0.1 each BREER
At 1 January 2020 N _E_EF—H—H 691,400,000 58,208
Exercise of share options (Note (a)) 1TIERERRE (Hat@a)) 200,000 18
Issuance of consideration share upon RUEEH B AR R EITAR
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) BR1D (Ha36) 86,246,154 7,630
Conversion of convertible loan notes BIAT AR EMER
(Note (b)) (Ht52 b)) 37,429,167 3,146
At 31 December 2020 and RN_B_EHF
1 January 2021 +ZB=+—H8%
2" —H%F—HF—H 815,275,321 69,002
Issuance of consideration share upon R B A BB ET
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) REBRID Ha236) 51,993,846 4,331
Conversion of convertible loan notes EIRO AR EREE
(Note (b)) (Hfz b)) 23,115,278 1,890
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—F
+ZB=+—H 890,384,445 75,223
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BHE-_ZT”—

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, share option holders
exercised their rights to subscribe Nil (2020: 200,000) ordinary
shares in the Company at HK$0.704 (2020: HK$0.704) per share
with net proceeds of approximately RMBNil (2020: RMB125,000)
and resulted in the increase in share capital of RMBNil (2020:
RMB18,000) and share premium of approximately RMBNil (2020:
RMB133,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, CB holders exercised
their rights to convert the convertible loan notes into 23,115,278
(2020: 37,429,167) ordinary shares of the Company at HK$1
per share with net proceeds of approximately RMB18,899,000
(2020: RMB34,136,000) and resulted in the increase in share
capital of approximately RMB1,890,000 (2020: RMB3,146,000)
and share premium of approximately RMB17,009,000 (2020:
RMB30,990,000).

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equi

ty-settled share option scheme of the Company

In order to provide incentives and rewards to eligible

participants for their contribution or potential contribution to

the Group, the Company adopted share option scheme on

6 October 2015. The total amount of shares and any other
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 36,000,000

shares.

Deta

ils of the Company’s share option scheme, please refer to

“Report of the directors” of the Company’s annual report.
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33. g% (&)

Mt

(a)

RBEE_E_—F+_F=+—HLEE"
ERERAE A THEEENZER0.70478 7T
(ZBE-ZTF :0.70487x) BEALATIE
R (CZE =4 1 200,0000%) & Lﬁy FTig
NERFEOABARBE T (ZES fE
ANE#125,00070) @ < RASEIMARKE
TETEE . ARY18,0007T) EzHyZIK«m
BEMHARES T (CZIZE . ARK
133,0007T) ©

REE_E-_—F+_F=+—HLEE"
AMRESFEATEEERIZ 1B TEA
BMEENEE R #423,115278/ (T =
T 1 37,429,16708) @R FRIGRUIESEE
AEIANR 18,899,000 (ZE-FF : A
K #£34,136,0007s) » £ RAIE NG AR
1,890,0007t (ZEZZ 4 : AR3,146,000
7o) R AHEBIE A AR 17,009,0007T
—ET=F 0 AR#30,990,0007T) ©

34. BRI BERZ(TRIH

T AT IR A 32 1 Z e Rt 51 &

HAGERSEERRSHEAER T
FARETE B RNIR (3B R 2B > R AT

—m

AFETHB/NBRMBIZHESTE o IR

MBBERA LB ZEREMBRESE

T

FAE)ERRIES B Z5F 15

#B3536,000,0008% °

P FHBRAAT

FRIEFERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=5 M5 IR R Y 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

On 2 November 2018, the Company granted 36,000,000
share options to certain directors, senior management,
employees, consultants and customers of the Group. These
share options have exercise price at HK$0.704 with exercise
period of 3 years starting from 7 months after the grant date.
Under the plan, participants are granted options which only
vest subject to grantees continuing to be an employee of the
Group or providing service to the Group through each vesting
date. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 2 November 2018.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by directors, senior management,
employees, consultants and customers during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020:

34. URIBBERZ(AMRS @

T AF R AZ 2 A tEstE (&

AR N\F+—BZH > AREEELE
BETEE SREEE -EES BEEK
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ITHEEA0.7048 T THEHRA3IE ) B
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Number of share options
RiEHE
Exercised Lapsed Lapsed
during during during
Options Vesting period At 1.1.2020 the year theyear  At31.12.2020 theyear  At31.12.2021
1 i
RZEZTE ZECEE “EZ-%
i 1134 FES —B-H EMTE ER%¥ +ZA=+-H ER%¥ +-A=+-H
Directors EZ
Tranche 1 02.11.2018-01.05.2019 500,000 (200,000) (300,000) = = =
4t “Z-\F+t-AZHE
“Z-NERA-H
Tranche 2 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2020 700,000 = = 700,000 (700,000) =
B “Z-\F+—AZHE
“Z_2FRA-H
Tranche 3 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2021 700,000 - - 700,000 - 700,000
B4t “Z-\F+t-AZHE
“Z_-%578-H
1,900,000 (200,000) (300,000 1,400,000 (700,000) 700,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Continued)

Options

falRiE
Senior management

Tranche 1

FHt

Tranche 2
BH

Tranche 3

=4t

Employees

Tranche 1
£t

Tranche 2
BH

Tranche 3
Bt
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T AT AR A2 2 e st (2

Number of share options
fRlREYE
Exercised Lapsed Lapsed
during during during
Vesting period At 1.1.2020 the year theyear  At31.12.2020 theyear  At31.12.2021
® N
RZEZEF - -3 ZEC-F
FEY —-B-H FENTTHE ER%¥ +-A=+-H FER%¥ +ZA=+-A
BREERE
02.11.2018-01.05.2019 100,000 - (100,000) - - -
“Z-\E+-BAZHE
“Z-NEFRR-H
02.11.2018 - 01.05.2020 100,000 - - 100,000 (100,000) -
“Z-\E+-BAZHE
“2_ZF1R-H
02.11.2018 - 01.05.2021 100,000 - - 100,000 - 100,000
“Z-\E+-AZHE
“2”-%1R8-H
300,000 - (100,000) 200,000 (100,000) 100,000
£S5
02.11.2018-01.05.2019 400,000 - (400,000) - - -
“Z-\E+t-AZHE
“2-hEF1A—H
02.11.2018 - 01.05.2020 400,000 - - 400,000 (400,000) -
“Z-\E+-AZHE
2 2£RA-H
02.11.2018 - 01.05.2021 400,000 - - 400,000 - 400,000
“Z-\E+-AZHE
“2_-%1A-H
1,200,000 - (400,000) 800,000 (400,000) 400,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. URRinHERZEAMREZ @
(Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company AT (G ZBRRERE (&
(Continued)
Number of share options
fileEH A
Exercised Lapsed Lapsed
during during during
Options Vesting period At 1.1.2020 the year theyear At 31.12.2020 theyear  At31.12.2021
i® N
RZEZEF ZECEF “BZ-f§
fRtE FEH —-B-H FENTTHE FER%¥ +-A=+-H FER%% +-A=1+-H
Consultants =121
Tranche 1 02.11.2018-01.05.2019 5,433,333 - (5,433,333) - - -
1t - \f+-AZHE
“Z2-NFLA-H
Tranche 2 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2020 5,433,333 - - 5,433,333 (5,433,333) =
BTH “Z-\(+-FZHE
“Z_ZF0R-AH
Tranche 3 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2021 5,433,334 - - 5,433,334 - 5,433,334
i - \F+-AZHE
ZE--F1R-H
16,300,000 - (5,433,333) 10,866,667 (5,433,333) 5,433,334
Customers EF
Tranche 1 02.11.2018-01.05.2019 5,366,667 - (5,366,667) - = =
E—H#t “Z-\F+-BZHE
“Z-NERF-H
Tranche 2 02.11.2018 -01.05.2020 5,366,667 - - 5,366,667 (5,366,667) -
B4 “2-\f+-BZHE
“2”ZF1RA-H
Tranche 3 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2021 5,366,666 - - 5,366,666 = 5,366,666
B=Ht “Z2-\F+-BZHE
“Z_-%578-H
16,100,000 - - 10,733,333 (5,366,667) 5,366,666
35,800,000 (200,000) (6,233,333) 24,000,000 (12,000,000 12,000,000
Bxercisable at theend of ~ FAEREHARAI(THE
the reporting period 24,000,000 12,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. URINABBRZIMRS &

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 2
November 2018 was HK$6,953,000. The Binomial model
had been used to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options were based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varied with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

The key inputs of the model for Tranche 1 to 3 were as follows:

Share price AR B
Exercise price TEE
Risk-free rate =R A=
Dividend yield % B
Expected volatility TRHRK 13

Time-to-maturity and expected life 2| A BFER K FE 5+ £

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome. As at 31 December 2021, the weighted average
exercise price was HK$0.704 per share.
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Z 155 AT {E %A6,953,000% 75 ° —IE T 1E
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BAFEMERNEREE RBRERTD
ﬁé%%Z?%{E%Oﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%%?
FHREBEIZNTEEEMBFTARRE -

FE-MRBZTEBHARENT

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
F—i#t BTHt B
HK$0.69 HK$0.69 HK$0.69
0.69787T 0.69787T 0.69787T
HK$0.704 HK$0.704 HK$0.704
0.7048 7t 0.70478 7T 0.7048 7T
2.02% 2.18% 2.25%
0% 0% 0%
43.4% 43.7% 46.1%
1.5 years 2.5 years 3.5 years
1.5 2.5 3.5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company'’s share price over the previous 18
to 42 months. The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB303,000 (2020 RMB1,436,000) for the year ended 31
December 2021 in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, share options
amounting to approximately RMB1,775,000 (2020:
RMB1,499,000) was lapsed and were transferred from share-
based payment reserve to retained profits.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no share options
were granted or exercised, except for 12,000,000 share
options were lapsed.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
12,000,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 12,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$8,448,000 (before issue
expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, no share
options were granted.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 12,000,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 1.3% of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

34. URIBBERZ(AMRS @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 35. B k@mFETE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes of 5%
of eligible employees’ relevant aggregated income with a cap
of HK$1,500 per employee per month, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiary is
required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of RMB549,000
(2020: RMB263,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans.

260 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021

AEBAREBNFBECERESRIL
BEIMAEEE ZFTENEERET
AEGFINESRAE BURNAEREE-
NEBSBEERER CEAGERER
AW ABE 5% S2RBEZERA L
PR#1,5008 7T R B 7MEH BRI R o

AEERTENNEARRESTEK
FEENEREERAKENSTBILE - I
BARAKEEHENETEDILLAR
IEFETEIMA FREFHR - AEE
MEBREMFENE—SEEFHERE

HEh o

vy

FRIBH AR 2 4258 A B 549,000
T (CEZEE ARE263,0007T) 545
ERZEtRAIEECEXENZSE
STEIZ RN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 4 June 2020, the Group and the two independent third
parties (the “Vendors”) entered into the sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Vendors have agreed to
sell and the Group has conditionally agreed to acquire the
sale shares, representing 100% of the issued share capital of
Sino Legacy Investments Limited (“Sino Legacy”), which is
principally engaged in investment holding with its subsidiaries
(collectively as “Sino Legacy Group”) engaged in the business
of online distribution and electronic marketing service and
provision of interior design and home decoration services in
the PRC. On 26 August 2020, the acquisition was completed
(the "Completion Date”).

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the
consideration is satisfied by issuance of shares in two tranches
(the "Consideration Shares”) in the following manner:

(i) The first tranche of Consideration Shares, being
86,246,154 ordinary shares of the Company (the “First
Tranche Consideration Shares”), which were allotted and
issued on the date of completion; and

(i) The second tranche of Consideration Shares, being
51,993,846 ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Second Tranche Consideration Shares”), will be allotted
and issued on or before 30 April 2021 if the aggregate
audited net profit after tax for the financial year ended
31 December 2020 of the operating subsidiaries in Sino
Legacy Group will not be less than RMB4,000,000 (the
“Minimum Profit”). In the event that the Minimum Profit
could not be met, no Second Tranche Consideration
Shares shall be allotted.

36. ¥EAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 36. ¥ &5H @)

As at the Completion Date, the First Tranche Consideration
Shares and Second Tranche Consideration Shares are
representing to 10.34% and 6.32% of the enlarged ordinary
shares of the Company, respectively.

At the Completion Date, the directors of the Company were
of the opinion that the Minimum Profit would be met and that
the Second Tranche Consideration Shares would be issuable
under the contingent consideration share arrangement.
In view of such, the fair value of the Second Tranche
Consideration Shares was determined using share price of the
Company at the Completion Date.

The fair value of the First Tranche Consideration Shares and
Second Tranche Consideration Shares were valued using the
share price of the Company at the Completion Date.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB356,000 have
been excluded from the cost of the acquisition and have been
recognised directly as an expense in the year and included in
the “administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as the amount is not material to overall performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Sino

Legacy Group at the Completion Date was as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Prepayment for acquisition of investment properties
Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposit paid and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Trade payables

Accrual and other payables

Receipt in advance

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Non-controlling interests

Goodwill on acquisition

Considerations satisfied by:
Consideration shares issued at fair value

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition
Cash and bank balances acquired
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 36. ¥ &5H @)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Sino Legacy
Group contributed approximately RMB12,358,000 to the
Group's revenue and profit of approximately RMB4,241,000
to the Group's results in aggregate for the period from the
Completion Date of acquisition to 31 December 2020.

If the acquisition of Sino Legacy Group had been completed
on 1 January 2020, the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020 would have been approximately
RMB459,488,000 and profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 would have been RMB14,973,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2020, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

On 23 April 2021, the Second Tranche Consideration Shares
of 51,993,846 ordinary shares in total had been allotted
and issued to the Vendors for settlement of the contingent
share consideration as the aggregate audited net profit after
tax for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 of the
operating subsidiaries in Sino Legacy Group was more than
RMB4,000,000 and satisfied the Minimum Profit in pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement relating to the acquisition
of Sino Legacy Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes bank and other borrowings, convertible
loan notes and lease liabilities disclosed in Notes 28, 29 and
31, respectively, net of bank balances and cash and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group
receives a report from the share registrars on a timely basis on
substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit from
the date of the Listing.

37.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ®ZEZE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HILEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. £FITAH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &R TEEER
2021 2020
—¥-—fF TERTTHE
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARETFT ANEEFT
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATFEFABGDZ
TREE
Unlisted equity securities JE F MR AE S 1,178 18,087
Financial assets at amortised cost R IE R AT BR 2
TREE 227,204 146,013
Financial liabilities ERaE
Amortised cost HEH A A 44,459 331,439
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables, amounts
due from related parties, bank balances and cash,
trade and bills payables and other payables, bank and
other borrowings and convertible loan notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have the foreign
currency bank balances which exposes the Group to
foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of the
Group's foreign currency denominated monetary
assets at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

BE_ - —F+_HA=+—HILEE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the

need arises.

In the opinion of management of the Group, the
expected change in foreign exchange rate will not
have significant impact on the carrying amount of
the foreign currency denominated monetary assets,
hence sensitivity analysis is not presented.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to bills payable as disclosed in Note 27, lease
liabilities as disclosed in Note 31, fixed-rate bank
and other borrowings as disclosed in Note 28 and
fixed-rate convertible loan notes as disclosed in Note
29. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances as
disclosed in Note 25. The Group manages its interest
rate exposures by assessing the potential impact
arising from any interest rate movements based on
interest rate level and outlook.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates
movement on bank balances.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(if)  Interest rate risk (Continued)

Total interest income from financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost is as follows:

Other income HAUr A
Financial assets at amortised cost 2248 84 B} 2<%/ (& >
SRIEE

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured
at FVTPL:
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(b) HBEAKBERBREREE (@)
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Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

No sensitivity analysis was presented as the
management considers that the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk for variable-rate bank balances
are insignificant.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

270

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, contract assets, amounts due from
related parties and bank balances and cash. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets under ECL model. Information about the
Group’s credit risk management, maximum credit risk
exposures and the related impairment assessment, if
applicable, are summarised as below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals and to
determine any debt recovery action on those delinquent
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers.
Before granting credit to these customers, the Group
reviews the credit quality and defines credit limits by
these customers. Limits attributed to these customers are
reviewed once a year and each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group maintains a defined credit policy
to assess the credit quality of these customers and seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
so as to minimise credit risk. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 28%
(2020: 26%) and 64% (2020: 64%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.
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(b) HBEAKBERBREREE (@)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

272

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances contract assets based
on provision matrix. Except for those trade receivables
contract assets with significant outstanding balances
or credit-impaired, which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables and contract
assets are grouped under a provision matrix based on
shared credit risk characteristics by reference to the
ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of
trade receivables and contract assets. Impairment of
RMB1,997,000 (2020: RMB1,642,000) and RMB576,000
(2020: RMB2,891,000) is recognised for trade receivables
and contract assets, respectively during the year. Details
of the quantitative disclosures are set out below in this
note.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Amounts due from related parties and other receivables
and deposits

For amounts due from related parties and other
receivables and deposits, the directors of the Company
make periodic individual assessment on the recoverability
of these amounts based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The directors of the Company
believe that there are no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. Impairment of
nil (2020: RMB13,000) is recognised for amounts due
from related parties and impairment of RMB3,589,000
(2020: impairment of RMB26,000) is recognised for other
receivables and deposits during the year. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in this note.

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by credit agencies. Based on above,
the credit risk on bank balances is considered to be
insignificant by the management.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

274

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal credit rating
RIS E TR
Low risk

BRER

Watch list

BRLE

Doubtful

RER

Loss

B8

Write-off

6]

Description
it

The counterparty has a low risk of
default and does not have any past-
due amounts

HFFNENRREELEEFR
Hi%%E

Debtor frequently repays after due
dates but usually settle in full

BEHEARERIHEBRER B8R
2HEE

There have been significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally or external sources

BBANEEL Z ERISIMEERIZR
R BT ERUR FEREE
BREEM

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BRBRTEEACHRESHE

There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

BRBERNMEFABAREMHHE
B MAERILEERIKE RS
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(b) MBRAKREERBREREE (@)

1EEm R EFE (&)

AEBNANEERRSRTEE

BLUN 4R

Trade receivables and
contract assets

BERURERSNEE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

2HREEERE
—IEBIREERE

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired
2HEREERE
—IREREERE

Lifetime ECL -

not credit-impaired

2HREEERE
—IEBIREERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

SHEREERE
—BYHREERE

Amount is written off

&R

Other financial assets

HittEMEE

12-month ECL

12{ER FEHEE R

12-month ECL

2B FEIEEBE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

2HRBEEHE
—IEHNREERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

2HRBEREERE
—BHIRESHE

Amount is written off

SR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MBRRME

(Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38. M T H &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of

the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:

Financial assets at amortised cost

BEBNATIEZEREE

Trade receivables from
contracts with customers
RAGHZERRYEE

Amounts due from related parties

RN R

Other receivables and deposits

At EREREE

Bank balances
RITERR

Notes

(i3

23

26

23

25

Internal
credit rating

hEERRE

(Note 1)

(1)

(Note 2)
(Mzk2)

(Note 2)
(Mzk2)

(Note 2)
(Mzk2)

12-month or
lifetime ECL
28R %21
FHEERE

Lifetime ECL
(provision matrix)
LHBHESHE
(EEm
Lifetime ECL-
not credit-impaired
LHBHREERE-
BENREEAE
Lifetime ECL-
credit-impaired
SHBHRESHE-
BHREEAE

12-month ECL
12MEAEBEESR

12-month ECL
12MEAEBEESE

12-month ECL
12MEAEBEESE

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

(b) HBEAKBERBREREE (@)

1EEm R ETE (&

TRFVAETERRAGEEBENG
ZHREEEMEEZEERRE !

2021
3
Gross carrying
amount
REAE
RMB000 RMB'000
AREFT  ABEFT
49,436
54,038
= 103,474
934
299,038
31,958
152,627

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR

2020
E°%E
Gross carrying
amount
RELE
RMB 000 RMB 000
NEEF NEEFI
83,001
21,868
- 104,869
31,375
4,713
144,573
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

276

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Internal 12-month or
Notes  credit rating lifetime ECL
1288 %214

i ABEERE  BHREESHE

BE_ - —F+_HA=+—HILEE

38. M T H &)

(b) MBRAKREERBREREE (@)

EEmBE R ETE (&

AREFT  ABEFT

2021 2020
ot 2 ZBTZF
Gross carrying Gross carrying
amount amount
IREAE RESE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

ANEBTFr  ARETm

alEE

(1)

Contract assets 2 (Note 1) Lifetime ECL

(provision matrix)
HRHEERR
(BB Em)
Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired
PHRHREEEE-
UREREGAE

Notes:

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the Group
determines the ECL on these items by using a provision matrix,
grouped by internal credit rating.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers. The following
table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for
trade receivables and contract assets which are assessed based
on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).
Debtors with significant outstanding balances or credit-
impaired with gross carrying amounts of RMB158,940,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB126,770,000) were
assessed individually.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

A MBRRME

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. EMITH @
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HIEZRAGEEBERBE (&
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERBEFE (&
Notes: (Continued) Wizt ()
1. (Continued) 1. (#)
Gross carrying amount IRE4RE
2021 2020
—EC-F ZZIZE
Average Trade Contract Average Trade Contract
Internal credit rating REEETR loss rate receivables assets |oss rate receivables assets
THEEE EBREKHRE ANEE | TUEEX g3ENHE BHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFR ARETFR NEETFT NEETFT
Low risk BERKE 1.33% 10,394 194,442 1.90% 39,916 185,015
Watch list BEae 8.82% 4,630 7,232 2.25% 19,027 58,208
Doubtful RER 11.88% 34,412 52,270 9.04% 26,559 3,798
Loss B - - - - - -
49,436 253,944 85,502 247,021

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated. The contract
assets have substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same type of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for
contract assets.

st BIREDRBEB A ZRIFH
MWESATREENRME L HBA
BEHASNE RS Z A BEEERE
TR - BB E R DA ) LR
BB ERFANBRENESH-
BHNEBEEZRBRERBERESNZE
S EWFRIRREAER - AL AEEZ
i B ERIEZ BERESH
BEBERGEA M-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
1. (Continued)
Gross carrying amount (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
provided RMB1,997,000 (2020: RMB5,165,000) and
RMB576,000 (2020: RMB3,598,000) impairment allowance

for trade receivables and contract assets respectively, based on
the provision matrix.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that

BE_ - —F+_HA=+—HILEE

38. M T H &)
(b) HERSEEEERKE &)

1EE AR EFE ()

Kzt (&
1. (#®)
IRE4AE @)

HE_Z-_—F+“A=+—HL1L
FECAERREREEEMRESE
WREKRGHNEEDRFTRARTE
1,997,0007c (ZE-=F : AR
5,165,0007T) K5tie A E#576,0007T

—EFF . AR¥3,598,0007T) Z
BB

TRETCHESBBRRERGNE

278

has been recognised for trade receivables and contract assets: ERI T 2HERCESERNE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
- provision - individual - individual
matrix assessment assessment
(not credit- (not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
24 24 24
BHiEERE BEHiEERE BEHiEERE
—REER — & BT — & BT
(ot % 1 3 (ot 8 1 3 (BHR
ZEiRE) =EiRE) =EiRE) ozt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEEFT ANEEFT ANEEFT ANEEFT
At 1 January 2020 R_E-ZTE—-F—H 380 9,118 - 9,498
Changes due to financial instruments  EIf* —Z ~ T4
recognised as —B—HERZ
at 1 January 2020: ERMITEMES:
— Impairment losses recognised —BRDRESE 8,763 - - 8,763
— Impairment losses reversed —BERREER - (4,230) - (4,230)
As at 31 December 2020 AT TE
and 1 January 2021 +ZBA=+—-Bk
“Z-—%—F—H 9,143 4,888 - 14,031
Changes due to financial instruments ER=Z=—
recognised as —B—H®ERz
at 1 January 2021: EMIEMES !
~ Impairment losses recognised —BHEDAEEE 2,572 - - 2,572
— Amount written off as uncollectible  — & R [E EMEFIE = (2,503) = (2,503)
At 31 December 2021 RZFZ—&
+ZA=+-H 11,715 2,385 - 14,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

1.

(Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivable are mainly
due to the recognition of impairment allowance for trade
receivable with a gross carrying amount of RMB103,474,000
(2020: RMB107,370,000) during the year ended 31 December
2021.

The Group writes off trade receivables when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over five years past due, whichever occurs
earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been written
off is subject to enforcement activities.

The Group assessed the loss allowance for amounts due
from related parties and other receivables and deposits on
12m ECL basis. In determining the ECL, the Group performs
periodic review on the financial position of the debtors, its
settlement status and other contractual conditions to ensure
it is financially viable to settle the receivables. The Group
has applied ranged to 0.17% to 18.13% (2020: 0.19% to
8.68%) of credit loss rates and concluded that adequate
impairment loss is made for irrecoverable amount.

A MBRRME

BE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HLEE

38. M T H &)

(b) MBRAKBEEBERBE (&)

1ER AR BETE (7

izt (#)

BoRWREZ GREEEHHEE
HRBEE_S-_—F+_-_HA=+—
HIEFERIBEREBEAARE
103,474,00070 (ZE T4 : AR
107,370,0007%) 2 B 5 BN GRIE Z K
BB

EREHBEREFABAREMBR
HEWEBRWEIRELER GINER
BAETBEEHABEAKRERRF =
EESREREEERBELE R
RHEER®E)) AAEEMBES
FE W RR I © ] 2R B A EE B9 B 5 B IR
TEAETRFINTITH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &M TR @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MFERIGEEBERBE &)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERBEFE (&)
Notes: (Continued) Kzt : (&
2. (Continued) 2. (B
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances TRETEREMBWREREE K
that has been recognised for other receivables and deposits FEUR BA B 75 AR IR EE BB B 2
and amounts due from related parties: iR -
12m 12m
ECL ECL
- individual - individual
assessment assessment
(not credit- (not credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
12{E B a5 12{E A fa#A
EEBIR EEBE
—{E BT & —{E BT
(3 4% 43R (3 % 3R]
EHIRE) EEIRE “act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT — AREFT  ARETFT

At 1 January 2020 HW-E_=F—HF—H 731 11,587 12,318
Changes due to financial AR —_E_ZEHF—H—H
instruments recognised as BREMTEESZ
at 1 January 2020: BhH)
— Impairment losses recognised —BRRRERE 13 - 13
— Impairment losses reversed —BEEREEE 26 (11,472) (11,446)
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEE 770 115 885
and 1 January 2021 +=ZBA=+—BR=%
——%—B—H
Changes due to financial AR _—_E_—F—H—H
instruments recognised as BREMTEESXZ
at 1 January 2021: BhE)
— Impairment losses recognised —BRRRERE 3,590 - 3,590
— Amount written off as uncollectible  —4ifi#5 7R ] Uz [B1ZRE (306) (115) (421)
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ—% 4,054 - 4,054
+=H="T"|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HE_EZ_—S+_HA=+—HILEFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

3. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group has applied the general approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at 12m ECL as there is no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The
Group determines the expected credit losses for bank balances
by assessment of probability of default. During the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 in view of the nature of
the balance and historical default rate and forward looking
information, the Group considers the provision of impairment
allowance for the bank balances are insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of bank balances and cash deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from weighted average
interest rate at the end of reporting period.

38. M T H &)
(b) MBRAKREEAERKE &

1EE R R B EE (B
Mist (&

3. HMRNEERBEEMmMS 4AEEE
FEREAMBREENFESRN—KA
AEtE12EA AR EEHIBNEIEE
B> RRAEERK BT ERBUK
WHRBEEN AERBBTHEDN
BMEETCRITEGNTEHREEREB
HE_ZE - R "FTF+A
=+—HLEE SBREFRNEER
FEFBOXRABREER AEER
AEIRITHERF IRV AERBEL R E
Ko

BB mEE

REERBESARE AEBEE
REFEEBRAEUAREERE
BRHEBETTAERENERIF
B —EKFZIRITERRRIRE
EEEEEEMNERBR LR
BT EMR 58 ©

TRFINEAEBZFETEEZRERE
ZHRTEKEIRIENR  ARBTHIRE
THEENAMBREREREREE
ERRERMRZEF AR - H
T ESRME /NI AR
EEMBHME - 2R B BEFN B K
rERETME

TREFNEREZZHEERE L
NEREBRFBFERMES » RAGRE
BATH 2R B RS BIR 2 M T F] = o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. EMITH @
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BERMBEEEHERBE &
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BB (&)
Liquidity table BB T K
At 31 December 2021 nR-E-_—F+”"HA=+—H
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total
interest  or less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 Over5 undiscounted Carrying
rate 1month months to 1year years years  cash flows amount
g BERS FURRE

THRE  LMER 1E38R  EREE 1E56 BisE RELE IREfE
9% RMBO00  RMBO0O ~ RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
% ABBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT  AREFT  ARBEFT  AREFT

Non-derivative financial liabilities JEfi4% &R & &

Trade and other payables ESREMETTE - 97,609 - - - - 97,609 97,609
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 6.64 - - 359,842 5,308 - 365,130 342,104
Convertible loan notes JEREREE 17.32 - - 41,395 - - 41,395 37,110
Lease liabilities HEEE 10.00 - - 199 64 - 263 24
97,609 - 401,436 5372 - 504,417 457,693
At 31 December 2020 N _EEF+"A=+—H
Weighted
average  On demand Total
interest ~ or less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 Over5  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 month months to 1 year years years cash flows amount
i3 BRERA FUERRE
FiR= DRER 15388 3BAE1E 1556 fieyiohtis mERE REE

N

RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMBUOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO
AEETFT ANBETT ABETT ABETT ARETn ARETT ARETT

ES

Non-derivative financial liabilites ~~ JEFTAE SRS &

Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNTIE - 86,826 - - - - 86,826 86,826
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMER 6.46 36,698 3,792 27,284 121,281 - 189,055 171,579
Convertible loan notes ABRERER 16.50 - 814 59,684 = = 60,498 56,248
Lease liabilities HESE 10.00 361 716 1,929 9,370 1,710 14,086 10,786
123,885 5322 88,897 130,651 1,710 350,465 331,439
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The directors
of the Company are responsible to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The directors
of the Company works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The management reports the
valuation committee’s findings to the board of directors
of the Company to explain the cause of fluctuations in the
fair value.

A MBRRME

BE"Z_—F+_A=1+—HILEE

38. M T H &)

(9]

THMIRZAFERE

AR UARAEENARES
ESHMEERSHAES ATES
Hit o

R FEAERGEEF

AEFEH ORI ANRATES
E UMFMBREAER -TSRTES
BERAFESEEEGEGERD
B A BUR

RAGET R ER  AEBERAIAERER
AEEMHEIE ML ES —REA
FEAIHER MAEEEREE =7
BERGLEMETEE - FARADES
HEEERIIMNEHEMBREGF /IR
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BERAAREREERNIGES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. M T H &)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Investments in the unlisted equity securities classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group assessed the minimum recoverable amount
of the investments will be covered by the personal
guarantee arrangement on the basis that the guarantors
have sufficient assets to support their personal guarantee.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
no fair value change had been recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 and as of the date,
the investments in the unlisted equity securities classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are amounted to approximately RMB1,178,000 (2020:
RMB18,087,000).

There were no transfers in different levels of the fair value
hierarchy during the reporting period.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (but fair value disclosures required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values based on
discounted cash flows analysis.

284 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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39.

40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S B 5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

CHARGES ON ASSETS 39.
The Group has the following charges on assets for bank
borrowings as set out in Note 28 at the end of the reporting
period:

Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE
Investment properties KEMZE
Right-of-use assets FERREE
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 40.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows

from financing activities.

BEKR

R EHR - SEB LM sE28Fn 8 2 IR1T
BERAEUTEERR

2021 2020
—EZ—%§ TETEE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT AERETT

19,151 19,227
62,500 61,130

1,310 1,262
82,961 81,619

MEEHEENEANHR

TERFVIRELHEENEAERERE
7 BERERIFRTEH RETHE
ENERDHEBESRENARARREETRE
REEBZEREREMERDBAME
ISR

SE—ERARAR
BT —EFR 285



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 40. MEEHEENEGBHNHIR @

286

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Bank Convertible
Lease and other loan
liabilities borrowings notes Total
RITR G-
HEaE Hithf& ERER wmst
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEEFT NEBTFT NEBFT ANEEFT
At 1 January 2020 A _E_EBF—-H—H 11,585 113,400 91,496 216,481
Financing cash flows (Note) RERERE W) (8,766) 53,978 (6,928) 38,284
Non-cash transactions: FRERS
Gain on modification of CEIGIEA ,éf%f ZEN
convertible loan notes W - - (2,796) (2,796)
Converted into conversion A DI
shares - - (34,136) (34,136)
Arising from acquisition of ELEBERE AT
subsidiaries 65 - - 65
New leases entered HIVE RN 6,777 = = 6,777
Exchange adjustments B RRE = 560 (6,816) (6,256)
Interest expenses FERX 1,125 9,641 15,428 26,194
At 31 December 2020 and =
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—HK
—_E_—-F—HF—H 10,786 177,579 56,248 244,613
Financing cash flows (Note) RERERE W) (751) 18,741 = 17,990
Non-cash transactions: FRERS
Gain on modification of CRIGIEA éf R
convertible loan notes ol - = (5,360) (5,360)
Converted into conversion A R IR
shares - - (18,899) (18,899)
Termination of KIETREZHE
lease arrangement (9,821) - = (9,821)
Notes receivable EWEE = 116,334 = 116,334
Exchange adjustments BB RRE - = (2,619) (2,619)
Interest expenses FERE 20 10,086 7,740 17,846
At 31 December 2021 W-E-—%+-H
=+—8 234 322,740 37,110 360,084

Note: The financing cash flows mainly represent net proceeds on issue of

convertible loan notes, proceeds from bank and other borrowings,

repayment of lease liabilities, repayment of bank and other

borrowings and interest paid and excluded proceeds from exercising

of share options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR S B 5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. FAE RSB
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated FRRZEFEUBRET 2 EME 2P
financial statements, the Group has following transactions and BEIIN REESMB A EUTRZ KRG
balances with related parties: B
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) BERARAERS

Year ended 31 December

#E+_HA=+—HILFE

2021 2020
g% TETEE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKEFT ARETT

Expense related to short-term lease EfmAMBAESNZ

paid to Mr. Wen Jingfeng FRHAEERS 24 24
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEIEBASNEM
The remuneration of executive directors, being the key HITES (RETEEEAB) B
management personnel, are set out in Note 13, which REE13 BV AFMNEETREE
is determined by the remuneration committee having BARBERHIZEEMETE

regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

SE—ERARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42. AT X EM B AT 1S

288

COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the

Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

ARBRBREMREEREEFAEZN
BATFBHIIWM T

Issued and
fully paid share Proportion ownership Proportion of
Place of incorporation/ capital/Paid-up interest held by voting power held by
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation  registered capital the Company the Company Principal activities
MR M BETRERRS FARFAEZ FRARFEZ
B AEHE EEHE BRAMES FRA et sz Lt REELH TERH
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZET-F (Z2TZF | ZIBZ-F | ZZI2HF
% % % %
Zhan Yun Holdings Limited ~ BVI UsD50,000 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
REERAG HBEYHS 50,000% 7T REZk
Sino Legacy Investments BVI UsD50,000 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
HBEYHS 50,000% 7T REZk
Indirectly held subsidiaries:
RERAZHBAR
Jiyi Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
E—REERAT B0 1#7 RETK
Jiyi Entertainment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
E—FREEBRAH &E 1787 BEER
Jiyi International Trading Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100% 100% 100%  Bulk commodity
(H.K.) Company Limited trading
£—-FRER &) B 10077T ARBRER
BRAR
Win Giant Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
) 1787 BEER
Guangdong Jiyi Household  The PRC RMB161,600,000 100% 100% 100% 100%  Sales of household
Building Materials Chain building materials
Co. Ltd.*
(“Guangdong Jiyi")
BRE-—REEMEH TH AEH HEREEM
BRAF (BRE—) 161,600,0007T

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MBRRME

—F+"A=+—HLEFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operation

SEMPIL R

Name of subsidiary

MEARRE EEME

Meizhou Jisheng The PRC
Household Building
Materials Company
Limited* (“Meizhou
Jisheng")
IBINTEBRERM e
BRAT (TEMNER)
Guangdong Jiyi Xinya The PRC
Decoration and Design
Construction Company
Limited*("Jiyi Xinya")

BRE— R HE
IRBRATF
(T&—{EH)

Jiyi Industrial Group The PRC
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.*

(“Shenzhen Jiyi")

E-BXEE (R HE
BRAE (TRIIE—)

Shenzhen Xinjiale Cloud-  The PRC

based Decoration

Technology Co., Limited*

AT REEZEER R TE
BRAF

Issued and

fully paid share
capital/Paid-up
registered capital

BRTRBERS

BREMES

RMB2,000,000

AE#2,000,0007T

RMB10,100,000

AE#10,100,0007T

RMB 10,000,000

AE#10,000,0007T

RMB35,000,000

A #35,000,0007%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Proportion ownership
interest held by
the Company

TREREZ
Rikki s

2021

k- 3
%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2020
—ECEHE

—<—=

%

100%

100%

100%

100%

BE_ZT—

Proportion of
voting power held by
the Company

TREFEZ
RIELLH

2021

—E--fF
%

100%

100%

100%

100%

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR

2020
—ECEE

—< ==

100%

100%

100%

100%

42, ZATIEEMEBATFE @

Principal activities

FBER

Investment holding

REER

Provision of
interior design
and building
engineering
services

REERFRRE
HETRRH

Investment holding
REER

Provision of home
decoration and
online distribution
and electronic
marketing
services

RERERE LD
i1 R A4 = AR
%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

290

COMPANY (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operation

SEMPRILFRL

Name of subsidiary

WEARRE BEME

Meizhou Xinjiale The PRC
Enterprise Limited*

BN REEE HE
BRAR

Xinjiale Cloud-base The PRC

Gaofeng (Meizhou)

Decoration Engineering

Company Limited*
NREZREDTE (8N) FE

KMTIRERAS
Xinjiale Cloud-base The PRC

Qinyang (Meizhou)

Decoration Engineering

Company Limited*
MREZRERFE (GN)  PE

K TRARAT
Meizhou Xingju Culture The PRC
Media Company Ltd.*

IEMEREEE FE
ARAH

=]

Guangdong Jicheng The PRC
Building Materials
Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)*

BREHEMEE f
(BIRE%)

Annual Report 2021
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Issued and

fully paid share
capital/Paid-up
registered capital

BRTRBERS
BREMES

RMB1,000,000

AE#1,000,0007T

RMB306,000

A K #306,0007T

RMB600,000

AE#600,0007T

RMB1,000,000

AE#1,000,0007T

RMB 10,000,000

AE#10,000,0007%

BE_ - —F+_HA=+—HILEE

Proportion ownership

interest held by
the Company
FARRAEZ
FRA et sz Lt
2021 2020
—S-fF | Z222H
% %
100% 100%
51% 51%
51% 51%
51% 51%
99% 99%

Proportion of
voting power held by
the Company

TREFEZ
RRRELLA

2021

—EC_-F
%

100%

51%

51%

51%

99%

2020
=
%

100%

51%

51%

51%

99%

42, ZATEEMEBATFE @

Principal activities

FBEE

Provision of home
decoration

RfRE

Provision of home
decoration

EHRE

Provision of home
decoration

RERE

Provision of
electronic
marketing
services

RUBREERY

Investment holding

k&R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MBRRME

—F+"A=+—HLEFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEARRE

Jiyi (Shenzhen) Property
Management Co., Ltd*

£— (R nEEE
ARAH

Meizhou Jiyi Building
Materials Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*

IBINTEZRMEB LR
(BIREH)

Jiyi (Shenzhen) Intelligent
Technology Co., Ltd*

E—X (FI) SR
BRAE

Jiyi Zhiwo (Shenzhen)
Intelligent Technology
Co., Ltd*

E—8E (R) BaERE
BRAF

Jiyi Industrial Investment
(Shenzhen) Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*

E—EZERE (R
BBEE (BRED)

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operation

SEMPIL R
EEME

The PRC

T

The PRC

HE

The PRC

T

The PRC

HE

The PRC

T

Issued and

fully paid share
capital/Paid-up
registered capital

BRTRBERS
BREMES

RMB2,000,000

AR 12,000,0007%

RMB 10,000,000

AE#10,000,0007T

RMB5,000,000

AR #5,000,0007%

RMB5,000,000

A 5,000,0007%

N/A

B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Proportion ownership

interest held by
the Company
FARREZ
R Rt za bt )
2021 2020
—S-fF | Z22%HF
% %
100% 100%
65% 65%
100% 100%
51% N/A
FEA
80% N/A
~EA

BE_ZT—

Proportion of

voting power held by
the Company
FRARFEZ
FIELLH

2021 2020

—SC—f | Z2°%F

% %

100% 100%

65% 65%

100% 100%

51% N/A

~ER

80% N/A

~ER

E—IERBRAT
—EC—FFR

42, ZATIEEMBATFE =

Principal activities

FBER

Estate management

MEEE

Sales of household
building materials

HEXEEM

Sales of electronic

products

Sales of electronic
products
HEBTED

Investment holding

REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ##ZE_ T —F+_HA=+—HLEE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

42, ZATEEMBATFE &

COMPANY (Continued)
Issued and
fully paid share Proportion ownership Proportion of
Place of incorporation/ capital/Paid-up interest held by voting power held by
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation  registered capital the Company the Company Principal activities
MR M BETRERRS FARRAEZ FRARFEZ
B A EHTE EEHE BRAMES FRA et sz Lt REMELH TERH
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZET-F (Z2TZF | ZIEZ-F | ZZI2HF
% % % %
Shenzhen shenjilian The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% N/A 100% N/A - Bulk commodity
Trading Co., Ltd* trading
FINTREHES HE AE30,000,0007T B TER ARXERES
BRAR
Guangjilian (Guangzhou) ~ The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% 100% 100% 100%  Bulk commodity
Trading Co., Ltd* trading
BEH (B B2 HE AR 30,000,0007T ArEmES
BRRAH

* The English name is for identification purpose only

All the principal subsidiaries operate predominantly in their
respective places of incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR S B 5 R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 43, ZATIMBIR AR FEERR

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—E-— _E TS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBETFT NEBFT

Non-current assets JERENE E
Investment in a subsidiaries RBABNKRE 254,468 254,468
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE IS BT B A B Rk IE 74,913 76,874
Other receivables Hh g U sris 21,617 =
Right-of-use assets EREEE 225 -
351,223 331,342

Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE Wb 8 A B 7R I8 243,110 241,665
Amount due from a related party & Wit A Bt 75 TR 1B — 22,183
Prepayments and other receivables TE FRIE & H At FE WLRIE 315 355
Bank balances and cash RITHEERRIRE 131 1,089
243,556 265,292
Current liabilities B =R

Amounts due to subsidiaries FET BT B A B FRIE 1,169 =
Amount due to a related party FE 1 BB 75 FRIE 818 =
Other payables HAE I 3,775 352
Convertible loan notes R ERER 37,110 56,248
Lease liabilities HEasE 181 791
43,053 57,391
Net current assets RENE EFE 200,503 207,901

Non-current liabilities JERBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 53 =
Net assets BEFE 551,673 539,243

Capital and reserves B s R ik e
Share capital &2 75,223 69,002
Reserves B 476,450 470,241
Total equity HEmia%E 551,673 539,243
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

43. ZRFMBRRRFEFERER (@

294

Movement in the Company'’s reserves TRAEHEZEE
Convertible Share-
Contingent loan notes based
Share  consideration equity Translation payment  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserves reserve losses Total
ABERER
Rz ER LRHAER 23t
RHEE  RARERE fEiifitE ffE PAGEA: | i @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2020 AZE-ZE—F—H 363,136 - 2811 34,880 4,29 (18,538) 386,585
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (15,591) (15,591)
Other comprehensive expense ~ EREMRERT
for the year - - - (14,171) - - (14,171)
Arising from acquisition of EEEWENEAD
subsidiaries 47,308 33,577 - - - - 80,885
Conversion of convertible loan B AMRENER
notes (Note 29) (H5#29) 30,990 - (985) - - 985 30,990
Extension of convertible loan ERIHRERRE
notes (Note 29) (H29) - - (1,798) - = 1,798 =
Exercise of share options TEERE
(Note 33(a)) (H1a233(a) 133 - - - (26) - 107
Lapse of share options BRELY - = = = (1,499 1,499 =
Recognition of equity-settled TR AENZ
share-based payments DR AEBEIR
(Note 34) (Hizt34) - - - - 1,436 - 1,436
At 31 December 2020 and NETE
1 January 2021 +ZA=+-Bk
“E_-5-A-H 441,567 33,577 28 20,709 4,207 (29,847) 470,241
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (4,126) (4,126)
Other comprehensive income ~ EREM2EKE
for the year - - - 1,858 - - 1,858
Arising from acquisition of ELENERBAR
subsidiaries 22,522 (31,356) - - - - (8,834)
Conversion of convertible loan ~ BIABMRENZRH
notes (Note 29) (H15#29) 17,018 - (10) - - = 17,008
Lapse of share options BRELY - = = = (1,775) 1,775 =
Recognition of equity-settled BURAER 2 URA
share-based payments AERAR
(Note 34) (Hiz£34) - - - - 303 - 303
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—-§
+=B=+-R
481,107 2,221 18 22,567 2,735 (32,198) 476,450
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=5 M5 IR R Y 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE_E_—F+_H=+—HILEEFE

44, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the reporting period, the Company completed two
placing of new shares under general mandate through
Silverbricks Securities Company Limited (the “Placing Agent”),
in which a total of 28,022,000 placing shares had been
successfully placed by the Placing Agent on 25 January 2022
to not less than six Placees at the Placing Price of HK$1.2 per
placing shares pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
placing agreement dated 30 November 2021, and a total of
48,000,000 placing shares had been successfully placed by the
Placing Agent on 11 March 2022 to not less than six Placees at
the Placing Price of HK$0.9 per placing shares pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the placing agreement dated 4 March
2022.

The Company received net proceeds of HK$33.1 million and
HK$42.6 million from the placing of new shares under general
mandate completed on 25 January 2022 and 11 March 2022
respectively.

For more information of the placing of new shares under
general mandate completed on 25 January 2022, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 30 November
2021, 20 December 2021, 11 January 2022, 12 January 2022
and 26 January 2022.

For more information of the placing of new shares under
general mandate completed on 11 March 2022, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 4 March 2022, 8
March 2022 and 15 March 2022.

Besides above, there is no other material subsequent event
undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

44, FREHAEERIR

RIREEE > KRB RE—RBREES
TEESARAR (MBLERE) ERMR
WRARS EPEREEREENR -
F—AZ+HERBEEHEA-ZS - —F
+—B=+HZERE R 2GR &S
BEREERMDI2ETZEEERINE
RO NG AEABE &$£28,022,000
KREERMUREEREENR S
F-A+—HBHRBEAPAZS - _F=
BOBHZEEWZE ZBRREHRER
FLERMB0IBTZEEEBR B RLR
7N A EC A\ EC & & ££48,000,0008% Fig £ AR
RS

KXRABDHNR B __F—H_+HH
kRZEBZ_F=ZA+—HEBRE—RER
T 5 B B & R AR (0 BVIS PR 1S "R IR $# 8R33.1
BRATK4A26BRABTTC

EMBEEZR_EF—AZ+AHBR
BE—REREREENTRT 2B B2
RARBHBASINAZE—F+— ﬁ
=+t —F+ZHZ+HC
F—A+—H-ZFEZZHF—A+Z
BRZEZ—F—B -+ "HzZrEe.

BREZR_ZE-__F=HB+—HREK
—RIEETREEMRMNZER B2
KABIHHADR A -E_"F=AMB
2 F=-ANBRZZEZ-F=H
+HRBZAS

bR EXFratish » RABHAERR ZF
%+ R=+—BREEXFHRA
HA S S E HME R ERHAREIR
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEMBHRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZ_-ZT”—

The consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial reporting periods as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group are summarised

below:

RESULTS

Revenue A

Profit before tax PRIQATEF
Income tax expenses REZiba
Profit for the year FRNEF

Total comprehensive income  FERNZEUALEZE

for the year

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BEMEE
Total liabilities aE8EE
Total equity Rt 4B EE
296 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021

F+_A=+—HLFE

BHaE

E 3

For the year ended 31 December

#E+_A=+—HLEE

FEERBEAERCEZGREM BT RERLZ
BELEAMBREAZGEEE BEERER

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—EC—F | T FF “ZT-hE ETNE T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000
ABETFT |NEEFT ANEEFT ANRBEFT AEEFT
458,296 446,915 573,675 599,478 415,968
11,789 13,219 16,729 18,451 14,698
(3,925) (2,759) (3,659) (6,159) (5,717)
7,864 10,460 13,070 12,292 8,981
8,737 14,645 35,167 15,394 8,043
BEERAR

At 31 December

w+=-B=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E_—F | “Z2°F%F T—NE ZZB-NE ZZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABETFT |NEEFT ANEEFT ANRBEFT AEEFT
1,203,357 1,080,132 929,930 743,963 507,770
505,479 405,691 394,368 250,241 172,846
697,878 674,441 535,562 493,722 334,924
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